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B R ER IR EIRL 5]

#2021 f£12 5 31 HULEFF
i A
2021 & 2020 £F
F55T F=5T
1,273,512 1,149,124
341,380 195,512
(3,881) (125,743)
(381,534) (279,087)
(299,807) (203,414)
973,433 532,835
164,047 73,508
501,336 194,043
2,568,486 1,536,778
(501,954) (457,018)
98,519 304,365
(403,435) (152,653)
19,477 80
552,697 314,400
13,642 -
- 92,320
2,750,867 1,790,925
(865,333) (537,469)
1,885,534 1,253,456
1,414,637 952,320
470,897 301,136
1,253,456

1,885,534
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EEH P E IR IR

g81F 2021 #E12 B 31 HLILFE
2021 & 2020 £F
T F355T
1,885,534 1,253,456
5,024 3,425
115,480 27,074
53,299
429,019 1,023,341
4,565 (3,718)
554,088 1,103,421
2,439,622 2,356,877
1,844,570 1,750,169
595,052 606,708
2,356,877

2,439,622




ES R E R BIRZ A

BtiF 2021 fF12 5 31 BUFE
L] > ==
ReArRRE o
F 2021128 31H sl
2021 £ 2020 ££
it 124831 H 12 531 H
FE5T FET
JEifizhEr=
RN B 11 15,269,504 21,380,459
HEECIWHIGH 13 3,080,404 2,090,883
SECE W ANSHE 14 2,811,647 1,799,882
BT BRAFT 15 24657 21,455
k. B RO & 16 823,082 348,530
TR A 17 316,716 309,790
Hithi<HRIZ R 18 2,336,864 2,125,346
HibAEmohiRr= 19 716,633 778,399
25,379,507 28,854,744
mohEEr=
W R ELAth BRI 20 2,889,843 1,573,419
BaEFERr 21 5,532,665 1,166,970
MEFINESE N 22 716,941 1,160,752
9,139,449 3,901,141
i Y] 34,518,956 32,755,885
BEREES
AR 23 6,950,825 6,950,825
& 24 7,278,443 5,432,846
14,229,268 12,383,671
DEBRFINES 5,627,871 5,176,090
N 19,857,139 17,559,761

58 26 E5 113 TN EBAZEE M SIREN—Bo .
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FafFERR
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Bk 2021 12 5 31 HIULFE

2021 £ 2020 £

it 12531 H 12631 H
F=5T F=ET

25 7,095,801 7,096,129
15 1,751,698 2,455,806
26 500,368 317,337
9,347,867 9,869,272

25 1,086,493 3,150,219
27 1,591,910 1,751,374
158,889 95,758

21 2,476,658 329,501
5,313,950 5,326,852

14,661,817 15,196,124
34,518,956 32,755,885

EEST 2022 5 4 B 15 BizfEHFa R .
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55 26 =3 113 WM EB A SAM S IREN RS

20



) —
BN TR ETR N
#2021 E£12 5 31 BUHEEH
DA, I
FRENTENR
1
BZE 2021 F12 H 31 HILEFE
RG] BpsEf! TR KB 2SN =/ g l7i) P2
K EEERINR BT TMER R (FETHE) R Bt WRnse £ Podorer -

T Faw THT et T T T T TF#T TFHéT T
F2020F 1810 6,950,025 (8,331) 38,849 (847,662) 3,305 32,854 (1,554,630) 6,452,085 11,065,275 3,762,481 14,827,736
FERABRESW
9 . L - . : . 952,320 952,320 301,136 1,263,456
b Ty
WhFaHRINIRETNES - . - 717,760 - . - 717,789 306,572 1,023,341
ECIERN LY 5] . . . . 3 27,074 - - 27,074 = 27,074
SRR - - - 53,209 . . 53,200 53,209
RIL SRS VREERS - (3,718) - - . . - = (3,718) . (3,718)
U AMHEHRAIE UL B i . . - - 3,425 - - - 3,425 - 3,426
HiSAUAMN . (3.718) - 717,769 3,425 80,373 - - 797,849 305,572 1,103,421
FEEEPOM : (3,718) - 717,769 3426 80,373 - 952,320 1,750,168 606,708 2,356,877
WS N RUBRAR ARP3E )
REDBEIRRIRE . . - . - - . . 715,084 715,084
ADIBIRRE T4 SRt . (1,320) . - . . : - (1,320} (16,131) (17,451)
WRS TN E) (PR 29) - - - = = E . s 183,240 183,240
LMEFAT (iHE 29) A A a . | E z . (80,745) (80,745)
AL TRIRAEEF . : - . 3 . (430,453) (430,453) . (430,453)
SeiHADEBRIR R F] . - - . - . (14,627) (14,527)
A& : 17,207 5 . . : . (17,207) . E
BRYRPRRR B it i 15,887 - . - - - (447,660) (431,773) 806,921 375,148
F 2020612831 H 6,950,025 3,838 38,840 (120,913) 6,730 113,227 (1,564,630) 6,956,745 12,383,871 5,176,080 17,559,761

526 =55 113 maaﬁﬁiiﬁxgiam%}ﬁ%m—%ﬁﬁ.
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BN R EW A

&01F 2021 £ 12 5 31 HILFEE
=D, AN
FatNzETEiEk
n 5
&= 2021 F 12 B 31 HIEFE (87)
RN J. 304 sioaRE L17 {3 DRONER EMFNE B
BF  AEEEL AN G RS WHAE & (FTRE) pii) 4 Eirds  REme 128 o=zl g
T TFHT T TR T Fn T FaT T T T
F2021£1818 6,950,825 3,838 38,848 (120,013) 8,730 113,227 (1,554,630) 8,056,745 12,383,671 5,176,080 17,550,761
FEBE AN
2Tk} . = . 1,414,637 1,414,697 470,807 1,885,534
MRS Brat
WSMLEAHRINDIREIA NS 304,864 - - 304,864 124,165 429,019
ity AL ] - - - - 145,480 - - 115,480 - 116,480
EAZh ot IR R WV B . 5,024 5,024 5,024
R &E R Ra Y (3,236) 5 L E; et (3,236) (3,236)
sy 23 prealldiwr =T TG 2 7,801 : = B E: = 7.801 = 7,801
Ritusdnpatam 4,565 . 304,864 5,024 115,480 : - 428,933 124,155 554,088
HEGAtaE - 4,565 - 304,864 5,024 115,480 - 1,414,637 1,844,670 596,062 2,430,622
RSHEA R MORRANES
REDRBIROBE 2 _ - 457,644 457,544
DB (244,569) (244,680)
Hithim : a (85,033) (85,033)
LN 4 69,505 = = (69,595) . . .
DBEIRB T2 SRS (1,186) : (1,188) (223,858) (225,044)
T30 (M 20) : . 100,374 100,374
AEMFRT (BHE 20) . - (11,754) (11,754) (727,036) (738,790)
AEEIRI R T DAk 13,967 = . 13,887 624,660 638,617
TR DOBAIR AR F] . (35,223) (35,223)
BRARER S 82,376 50,325 N (11,754) N (69,595) 1,027 (143,271) (142,244)
F20215 128318 8,850,825 90,779 36,849 174,851 5 228,707 (1,564,630) 8,301,787 14,220,268 5,627,871 19,857,139

% 26 £ 113 AN EE TR AU SRERN—5ES.
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BB IR ]

ZLF 2021 $E 12 5 31 HILEETSEIRE
'_;_t f*_— R I
2021 £F 2020 £E
F T
2,750,867 1,790,925
1,369 1,624
133 124
28,137 22,604
(138) 1,030
(572,174) (406,800)
(7,360)

(13,642) -
(164,047) (73,508)
(501,336) (194,043)
(973,433) (532,835)
(288,301) (155,069)

993 12,387
44 587 -
403,435 152,653
50,325
(14,199) -
- (8,647)

694,891 610,445
(669,592) (1,106,929)

740,490 1,078,532

765,789 582,048
(150,973) (94,582)

614,816 487,466
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LB ERREIRA A

2P 2021 £ 12 B 31 HIFEEMERS

2021 £ 2020 £
F=T F3E5T
(957,490) (299,500)
4,224,412 2,432,012
(756,503) (773,393)
- (926,810)
(785,650) (929,301)
10,850 .
55,306 2,968
(205,036) (87,910)
1,033 1,282
7,704 422,325
(393,210) (225,302)
110,117 5,576
(219,850) (148,059)
- (18)
8,644 :
(1,279,504) (1,082,681)
(116,929) (20,174)
2 11,522
(43,592) (528,759)
(48,313) (23,058)
(7,243) (49,503)
(349,419) (60,315)
(753,760) :
(68,135) .
72,136 136,228
94,453 305,997
41,293 7,350
275,595 146,359
68,135 2
61,470 34,092
(953,486) (1,649,072)




A SR E SR IR 5]
BE1F 2021 £ 12 5 31 H I EESFEE

rENSRER .
BE2020F 23 1HEFE®)Y) ———

BiEE 2021 £ 2020 £
FET T
R EDTENRSTE
KB DEIRIRIE R 457,544 626,175
DHBRRIBE (244,589)
RITHEISRROIEIRIRE 4,398 -
B IEE AR N EHERR 22(b) - (451,554)
B/ DEBRARAETR 22(b) . 8,849
{EIRDEAIRERR 22(b) (10,202) (10,672)
EEEEWHERK 22(b) - 31,111
FREEEIAER 22(b) - (59,639)
BRBRE R AVAIERR 22(b) - (51,090)
ERE=FAERK 22(b) (637) (3,990)
BRI TIERX 22(b) 6,713,692 5,633,415
ERIRITIERX 22(b) (6,829,248) (4,292,235)
RITIRS 22(b) 2,751,731 599,999
N 22(b) (2,633,904) (30,285)
BEFE 22(b) (500,670) (488,279)
AT DEBRIRRE R (35,223) (14,527)
MOEERREF2 BIRRAD (220,286) (17,451)
A DI HE FE) 638,517 -
SRHERRRA SIS 22(b) (14,400) (4,622)
SR RER RSB 22(b) (6,852) (3,231)
SRR ENRNERERE 69,871 1,471,974
MERMEFM (BL) 1 1BINAYSHE (268,799) 310,368
7 Amyes

FRSRALENT [ V) 1,222,062 859,715
SNCRTTHORE | 10,186 51,979
FFRMERIMEF N 22 963,449 1,222,062

28 26 2% 113 TR BAZE WS IRFN—EBS .
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(a)

[y e T N =T
EpIF 2021 212 B 31 HIHEEEIRE

M55 HRRMTE

—REEEH

2013F 10 B 15 H, AATIH CLH Limited fE&F#ERIZ, CLH Limited & GLP Pte. Ltd.B9F
NE, BEERIBEEM.

CLH Limited ¥ Global Logistic Properties Holding Limited ( “GLPH Limited” ) ZEFF &A%
3, £ GLP Pte. Ltd 92 RTERAZANT], CLH Limited {@II7EBESER. #rNBFIEHSEM
NREBRIMEIR AT, BIEFEEPEARKNE ( "FE" ) iEMNME L RRARD. GLPH
Limited @IS EEESHEMA China Management Holding Srl F17EE & EMH China
Management Holdings (Hong Kong) Limited FAZRIEHEISER A\ DTFE—REPE TR ETE
nE), EigineR (L) BRAE ( "CMC” ) RIS,

ARATIBIIE, GLP China Asset Holdings Limited (% F34% “lowa China Asset Holdings
(Hong Kong) Limited” ) ( “China Asset Holdco" ) BERITE 2013 &£ 10 BNz, {ERAATR
Bi#TAEl. 25, GLP HK Holdings Limited ( "&#B#=i&EA" ) 1 GLP SG Holdings Pte.
Ltd. ( "SrNEdsi&ER" ) H849kpaZ, 1EJ9 China Asset Holdco FI-F2E].

2014 £ 5 A 20 H, EHIBREMKSZNEDPERIMERAE, MEFARSEERY, B
EREHNEERFES, HRECBSE. SRS SEmosEsMegas, REFL
A58ER, BRBEFHBEIRFS. FHE, GLPH Limited J§HEE China Management
Holding Srl SRiFE BRI ERHAAR T,

4% FPASHEING, AATRETIEI/MERATEMEESEFAESSERI. (FAHEETE
N—&89, RNATSIANTFIRESE : Khangai Company Limited, Khangai 1l Company
Limited, GLP Associate (1) Limited #] GLP Associate (II) LLC, CLH Limited fZEA2 R
b FIREZE 66.2%

FESIUTEER

=y =

A FRERRIRBEBRIINTLOSMENAEERN (FBUSKREEN) (WATRASHE

ERIE (FBUSREEN) . (FBRHEN) Miek). FBLONRITTRUMES
(2EFG)) ERD. U TRAEEARBNEESTBERME.
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ESHEER a2 S
BiIE 2021 12 F 31 HILEEETFiR#E

EBRSITBER (87)

BBRUMARE TETIITHEETH (FEMSREEN) . XLENEREFNEAL
SHRINSTHARFFAE M T 4HRRRA. ESAERAEXASEERIRN X EFRIIE
IEITROERIRRS | RS RIFILAMERTHRBEASUEEREY, ETAUSREARR, BX
BRESITHEE 2(c) .

W

B 20215 1 8 1 BHE 2021 £ 12 8 31 HIEFESEVSIRRGEAAINRETATIRASE
FAZBHERISEERWZBES,

BRIAT A SRERIEAMENK (R T FEESTTEER) 5, AU iRERHNmEISLAG S
RAE T BESE:

- NEIE (BIEMHE 2(h)) ;
- REMEMTT (BFE 20)) .

RN E IS FENLEHES EUESTHN A AN EREHEMA G SRS Y
BHEENK (BIFEMFE 2(2)) .

ARFIRIHEERTAART. XEWMFIREUETIIR, HAUSAAERBANTUE. G
LASETTHIRRINA S5 (58 EARERHHE 2(x) BTG SITTBER FLIRE,

EEERERHINS (FRUSHREEN) NUSRRIGELAE. Eit5Rie, XESRWD
RATBEREOMABLAR R, AR, WAMBRBIRESHTRE, XEETHFIEXRIZERTELL
EERNEEERSIMERANSENSEGERIFHN, AR T EIRREREKE
Hhg2 LA S MR- SR REMKEERI P ELLAIMTROER. SCARERATRERRI Tl THEER.

EEESFEERSIEIHFIEXEIR. MRRTHETHAUEITREMNE I, E¥WaE
ZHAEAHIA; ASRIEITXS LSRRI E RN, WAE(FHEITRURARFNRERAIERIA.

BXREERENA (FBVSHREEN) FFHENAVSREREEATMAM, UREE
R EE R REE RIS AR, HFITFHIES.
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(d)

B EhEE e aIR e
BLIF 2021 £E 12 5 31 FIFEE %

FERUHBE (4)
KU BORAEE
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Fr@EL / T
HPE 39.50% 39.50% 3,725,000
T
FE 100.00% 100.00% 14,000
F=ET
hE 100.00% 100.00% 26,000
F=Er
= 100.00% 100.00% 20,200
FET
hE 100.00% 100.00% 20,000
FAED
$E 60.00% 60.00% 174,497
FARTH
hE 60.00% 60.00% 422813
FAERM
FE 88.00% 88.00% 650,044
FARM
HhE 53.14% 53.14% 1,800,000
FARM
HhE 60.00% 60.00% 185,500
FARM
] 100.00% 100.00% 3,535,354
FART
FRE 100.00% 100.00% 6,590,000
FART
PE 100.00% 100.00% 185,000
F=T
HE 100.00% 100.00% 67,000
FART
e 100.00% 100.00% 40,000
T—
F_.;__—;f_éb
e ’
“M‘__-""“—--
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12.

e
et

HWFERIRE ()

LETERR

EELE (KP) RAEEA KB
(BREK)

HigE RIS EA kL
(BIR&K)

LigHpmll R R EIRAR
BRIk
(BIRELK)

GLP Thor LP Limited

GLP Capital Investment 5 (HK) Limited

JEREBH EIER RAIREEAT].

F20205 1 B 1 BER

S
BWINISEHRIMDIREREES
SIS LRI ZN
KaFA 3 (BE 29)
MEB RIS Fo T D
LHEFATRD (HE 29)
TR BRI RIS

F2020F 12831 BR
20211 81 BES

EFIE

BN S EHRINTIRRITEER
REDERRTFRIARAR
DEBRTRRA

Hithipee

KIEF ) (BTE 29)

LEFAT (MFHE 29)
MDEBRW TSR0
FDEB R B F AT D
SRR A5 BohSF)

" /{‘-_—'-—— e
T o

LR SRR E R 2 5
B1F 2021 £ 12 B 31 LGB HEE

Vi =t =147 A
AEGH
BEIZENE SRS AL\THE FLTFE R FEE
FART
e 100.00% 100.00% 3,000,000 el b
FART
hE 100.00% 100.00% 1662889 2%
FARED
HhE 70.00% 70.00% 2,000,000 BEL R
FART
HE 100.00% 100.00%  2:500,000 2
FEm
FaHD 100.00% 100.00% 0.001 et
F=Eu
& 100.00% 100.00% 18,823 elitate
FART
RE 80.00% 80.00% 100,000 BaYnlltia
TRIH S DHRERN T IRIE X ER R AER B EEX DHIRNEN T AT,
AR 5
CLFI ACL CLF 1l Hith Yol
T Tt F=5T F=T F=ET
1,434,412 491,697 757,002 1,079,350 3,762,461
133,620 10,935 67,494 89,087 301,136
106,472 34,638 36,037 128,425 305,572
391,280 323,804 715,084
27,887 155,353 183,240
= (16,131) (16,131)
(12,676) (48,069) (60,745)
(14,527) (14,527)
1,674,504 537,270 1,267,024 1,697,292 5,176,090
169,970 24,814 194,655 81,458 470,897
48,810 12,875 22,175 40,295 124,155
308,327 149,217 457,544
(244,589) (244,589)
- (95,033) (95,033)
2,944 97,430 100,374
- - (727,036) (727,036)
(44,774) (179,084) (223,858)
- 537,075 87,475 624,550
(35,223) (35,223)
574,959 2,287,426 1,116,791

F20215 128 31 BER

1,648,695

5,627,871
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12.

A E I EIR A
EbLF 2021 £E12 B 31 HUEEIVERE

WFATRIRE (42)

TRIE T SHEEADEIRFIGEINASKRE FAE CLF | fuisHl CLF I BXMER. TF
S5 SRR ALEEMERRZRHEHRRN S

2021 ££ 2020 £F

12 531 H 12531 H

FE5T Tt

CLF I (%)

DEIRFRREERIB D 69.88% 69.88%
manEes 4,467,499 181,617
ERNEF . 3,843,506
IRan AR (2,117,227) (164,882)
ERNRAR - (1,473,037)
T 2,350,272 2,387,204
DEBRIRIN S 1,648,695 1,674,504
2021 £ 2020 £

T F=5T

9N 3L )l 228,202 187,007
R N5 59 243,223 191,207
GEWERER 313,068 343,566
AB T EBRAYSFE 169,970 133,620
WME (D) 1 HBINFER 85,510 41,952

iE: CLF | B9%7= | taff T 2021 £F 12 B 31 BRHFEIFERHER" / iR fHt 21)




12.

WFATAHRE (42)

ACL

DB ERNED T
kel i

E (37071 <

i

IEARENRIR

e

DY D

N

I

LR TER

HB T ERRIRASFE
SIS0

CLF 1l
DEBIRR B S
i g

IR AR

MR

JERENAR
DEBIR N R

FET

DRI B

= Holw\
S
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SR ER IR T
BEIF 2021 412 B 31 HUIEFEERE

2021 £F
12 531 H
F=T

46.86%
83,964
2,013,303
(148,011)
(711,109)
1,238,147
574,959

2021 ££
F=T

91,217
52,952
80,427
24,814
10,272

2021 £
12531 H
F=1

60.5%
276,061
5,643,476
(1,537,630)
(689,248)
(106,053)
3,586,606
2,287,426

2020 &£
12531 H
=T

46.86%
77,804
1,919,171
(143,715)
(695,796)
1,157,464
537,270

2020 £
T

78,104
23,335
97,250
10,935
15,450

2020 £
12 531 H
F55T

43.62%
252,335
3,939,812
(677,553)
(761,066)
(117,280)
2,636,248
1,267,024



12.

13.

(a

HF AR (452)

BN

FFE

LREWET R
BT O HRIRISFFE
VeI 2

HNEaERWRE

BERRMTEBRIELT (fBFR “CMCI”)
GLP Thor Fund I, L.P (f&%% “Thor Fund” )
ItREEB B RERAE
(&R “z3 A" )
ERRTERR (RE) RS (BIREK)
(F#R "CVA I Fund" ) PN
it = )

FAEERLTNIAR ERREASER, EipiRINSTiERE.

cMmCi

J/ipe3

(a)
(b)

(c)

(d)
(e)

B R EIR 2 B

&1L 2021 ££12 F 31 Hil EFEEEEE
2021 &F 2020 £
FE T
102,234 44 475
351,916 154,732
431,804 291,785
221,508 67,494
22,487 6,070
2021 &£ 2020 £F
12831 H 12531 H
891,263 770,916
633,021

362,772 357,162
278,905 236,593
914,443 726,212
3,080,404 2,090,883

2020 £ 3 A 24 H, A5EAEIWIHEREZ 50%MN, SEABSEEARAE (LITER
"ERRERE" ) B TIREBKHXR. BRAFHERREEANFABRIIRETE. B,

BRASARERNEGERI.,
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13. WAELIAMRE (8)

EESH R EE R Rz
b1l 2021 £ 12 B 31 FUulEEETHEiRFE

EERAMSEMIE (RS BERAMTAEMEHIER R SEE MBS RRPIKEINMERIK)

WERUNT:

IERENET=

TEAT —

IEmanAR

Pkl
DERIR
RN e
SRS R LA
(RS IRRWEINE

LA LSRR
MENNEFM
MENE R (PRI FIRABRIIRR)

IERmEIERIAR FREIFIREMBRTFR)

N

SR

BT DERIRRORE
HRTEERFRE

LRE W TR
RBTFERANGE N SER
SEFAISCRNER L B

R SEERAFE GOMRATEHER)

LA ERIBEE:
FEZRMA
ST N
Fri8RiEe R

2021
12531 H
T

2,364,642
517,147
(1,059,336)
(350,929)
(103,306)
1,368,218
50.00%
891,263

139,596
(323,315)
(1,059,336)

2021 £F
5T

390,813
308,523
(99,710)
s 208,813
e 300,515
2% 202,141
50.00%
104,407

(58,724)
1,234
(101,773)
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2020 £
12531 H
T

2,241,684
162,764
(978,274)
(253,781)
(35,076)
1,137,386
50.00%

770,916

114,298
(184,577)
(978,274)

2020 £
T

150,132
97,739

(15,561)
82,178
89,098
74,743

50.00%
41,089

(41,773)
1,364
(16,153)



ERE P AR EIRZ A
B1E 2021 £ 12 5 31 HILFETIE 75

13. MWSELIAIRE (£X)
(b) Thor Fund

2021 £ 6 B, A&%H'S Grand Master Technology Limited ( “Grand Master” ) 3[FEi&37 T
Thor Fund, AEFTEART 40 {Z7tEBE T Thor Fund 50.1%B%1%, Thor Fund I3EBARIZ)
EPOSISRR TSR, S RBXEMEE. BT Thor Fund EBSKARMERRERE
BizERARIRBRBHAERR Grand Master HE#EF], EIEASEER Thor Fund Bzt
BEENETERNSEEHITZE.

HRIEAEEERN Grand Master ZIERINIY, FERELENWSZRMEE, FRBITBISEHKRE
EESEAKRRRA]. Wb, BREEELNATNSEMSISIERG, AREESH
RSB TIN.

BE 2021 F 12 B 31 B, REEEMEEROEERT, SIORENMORMERRE.

Thor Fund WS35REHEE (EMSTTBERIEMZIMFHBR R SEZEM S RET I EX
i) HEELNT .

2021 £F
12531 H
FET
| 5077 K 2,493,966
i 182,091
IER AR (627,382)
R (121,713)
SENE 1,926,964
SREASC PN S LA e o , 50.10%
SAMSREWENE . ' 633,021
DA ESF=FItiREE:
MEFMEEF N 30,541
E| ik R (GIVER =G VAR EAN) (627,382)
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13.

(c)

A R IR 2N 5
&L 2021 ££12 B 31 HUFEEERR

WEERIVAIIRET (£)

2021 £

F=5T

W 188
FSIR (31,176)
GEER R (31,176)
AR ERLE R 50.10%
M EEERWALE FNMRRKERR) (15,746)
AR EIE:
FMEERA » (19,370)
FISUMIN — 694
FRiERiE = T ey (146)

Z3 Project

TtRESBBEMFTABRNE (FR €88 ) B—REPELENEI T KRR,
AEEHIE 2019 FF 11 BETWWHSIFESBBIRANAIAR S K EILAT 100 %A% (0 S E=EH
TiEB, EPAxRBREKESFIILRIESHHEEH O (BRENK) . IEREEFHERE
Pl (BRENK) . IEREFHBIREPO @RENK) . AFREFHFREDO BREX)
PFREFERRAEPO BEREK) , HRH "Z3W|B" .

Z3 MBS ERHEE (BB T ISaEH R R SEE M S IRFHDKEMNERT
&) HEEEANT :

2021 £ 2020 £

12831 H 12 531 H

FET =7t

IR — 1,111,229 1,082,187
e i (S 5,033 2,873
RN RER C (334) (475)
i i N (46,278) (34,109)
EFNEGE 1,069,650 1,050,476
LA SCRRN R L A5l 34.00% 34.00%
GEMSIRRKENE 362,772 357,162

PA LSt ResE:

MERIMEENYD 3,775 1,780
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13. WEERIKIRE (&)

LN

FSIR

LRE R SER

BRI AL

RIS EEEWRIE GNIRETEHRER)

LA LR .

FRZERR —

FUSHIN

(d) CVAIFund

B E SR TR S
Bt1E 2021 4F 12 F 31 HULFEESRZE

2021
=0

(7,985)

(7,985)
34.00%

(2,715)

(3,465)
18

2020 £F
Tt

(7,052)

(7,052)
34.00%

(2,398)

CVA | Fund ZHAKENB—(IB=5IREET 2018 F 2 BAIRIBREKE, HRRA
AANRT 98 25T (9E 14 2355m) . ZEESEPENECT IR I E~uiiE

H,

CVA 1 BSHSHEMIE (CHSIHBERNEAENFHEER SEEVSRERTKEMME

XIMK) EEUNT

IER R \?If_;-,,_._,l_. _£8/ 3,257,933

ikl T

e[ DYbS

aNaR
DRI ER
SEHEN G

C SEER Y ALl
AN SHRBWENE

LA LSRR ess:

e RIMEFNY)

MENSRIAMR FRAIFIEMRIRR)
IEREIERIAR CRESFIRABRTRR)

2021 &£
12531 H

SN F7

213,594
(1,435,064)
(73,484)
(287,021)
1,675,958
18.37%
278,905

194,404
(16,800)
(1,435,064)
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2020 £
12531 H
T

2,681,910
303,113
(1,171,875)
(129,395)
(253,611)
1,430,142
18.37%
236,593

284,043
(5,933)
(1,171,875)



BB P E I EIR

gh1F 2021 £E 12 B 31 UL FETFERE
13. WEECIVAESE (40
2021 £ 2020 £F
s F=ET F=5T
— |

I IN e . 202,071 151,703
AFE 219,587 67,111
IFE T ERRAFE (26,181) (11,458)
3R FERERIFIE 193,406 55,653
SFEWERSER 219,587 67,111
ABFEFANGEEIERCER 193,406 55,653
SR SThMX s LL 51 18.37% 18.37%
RS EERIWFNE (GORATERZER) 35,529 10,223

PAERBEHE:
i BFNHEEE (64) (76)
FRZH (62,724) (46,381)
TR 1,670 1,552
IR 52 (93,730) (41,011)

(e) RBIFEASEIEW

RitFEXSERWSHENME CHSBRIEMEMMEH AR SEEWSRRPK
ENMERIK) IR0 :

2021 ££ 2020 ££

FET T35t
R 126,710 109,318
W IAEF O BBRRTE & ¥ (5,850) (7,115)
2B FERANFE \2) - 125,371 116,434
AT R - 126,710 109,318
3B FERLR SR S 125,371 116,434
R & ERAFIESER 42,572 24,594
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14.

(a)

ESHPEEIR IR 5]

BL1F 2021 FE 12 F 31 U FEUFRE
BRER
2021 £ 2020 £F
Wit 12531 H 12531 H
F3E5T FE5T
el (K mlEthP= Rl (BIREK)
( "rhfEL" ) (a) 220,368 216,997
iSRRI EES (BREHK)
( "Ba” ) (b) 1,252,481 963,438
ERIER (B)) RiuggEES Skl (BR
&) ( "BREE" ) (c) 365,258 114,840
Hith (d) 973,540 504,607
. / ) 2,811,647 1,799,882
2t

REEl (RiE) BBEF-RETD BRENK) CAITER el ) BiEMETERS
BREKEIL, ZEREKEWFENSE Z3 THERNIREIUS KEAREE (WHHE 13(c) .
2019 F 4 B, AERABIWIEFEEIN—BBIREHA 100%AIBRUEHEE 58.63%
ROBRMD. PEEVFEHRRHEAZRANMIAERSTISEIAMES, FERABIEER
ZEREMIRAZREHINREAS P E (I ERLEATIMN.

PEEINMSETE (EMs ﬁﬂ%ﬂ’]ﬁﬂkﬂﬂ’ﬁtﬂﬁ%& SiREMSIRETIKEIMES
) R ERA0T : /5

2021 £ 2020 £F
128319 12 531 H
TFaE5T F=T
E| 31w -y 366,004 360,289
iivmi 10,408 10,194
el R (550) (372)
BTFFBENSE" 375,862 370,111
A TR ER LA 58.63% 58.63%
eSS IRRKENE 220,368 216,997
PA LS NamaE:
MERNESEMNY 97 119
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B R RN 5]
gtif 2021 &£ 12 B 31 [ EE R

14. BXEN (48)

2021 £F 2020 £
F=r Tt
=
TN ——— : .
ESIR (2,906) (1,597)
LRABEREET (2,908) (1,597)
SN ] 58.63% 58.63%
Rz SEXERAVEIFIE FOPRFTEFEER) (1,704) (936)
LAEFBE4E:
FRWIN 165 807
(b) AL

BUEEFTFYRESRE, AEETF 2018 F 5 BXIRRLHTRAUGE, KEHE 30.76%HI%)
B, E 20215127 31 H, REUREEE 67.97% (2020 12 8 31 B: 67.97%) . Bauli*
EHRBHZRRSTIRARRSH 5 BARES, Hb 1 BRRAFEERE. ERE|WE
RHEREMRY, A=D2Z"LAEMRERRES, FAEEURAE 1 SAREIRBULEMAE

.

RS EEMTE (EMSTHBERANE A EHRE R S48 IRRPUENEXI ) 157
BT

2021 £¢ 2020 £
12831 12 531 H
FE5T T35t
E[255571 55 [ ' 1,874,210 1,098,061
Biive) A 169,864 177,178
RN RIR (112,776) (35,128)
iR (136) (29,168)
BTFE&ENEE~ 1,931,162 1,210,943
S AChN a5 67.97% 67.97%
rAEMSIRRMENE 1,252,481 963,438
FESENEEATHRE (BfiE 21) 133,779
PA LB Fth fREsE:
NS RMEFND 169,864 130,732
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14.

(c)

SR SR
BELF 2021 £ 12 B 31 FILGFEVSE

BXEfA (4E)

2021 £ 2020 £
PN 557,308 257,366
#RIE 448,019 213,447
LRE W S 448,019 213,447
SR SCFRAESEE 51 67.97% 67.97%
N SEXEEIASRE GOBRFTEHERR) 373,385 185,610
PAEREEIE:
IISUYON 478 351
ERES

ALERAT 2020 £FF 11 ANERESHTRIUGR, FKIH 49.76%MKk. BRESRETE
RRAIRSFABIRBURRTE. BRESHEBAKAIXRRAREEREBEIAEEE,
EFESH 7 BARER, HY 2 BHAERER. EREFWLRBBEARY, H=D2Z2=
A ERFREN, FEFUEAERENREIIERESIMRERRNT,

EANVSEEE EMaSitBERITEEH R R S5 SIRFRPKENEXIK) K
BT

7 2021 £ 2020 &

N 12531 H 12831 H

FE5T F=5T

ERENE= 518,275 184,893

il T 241,685 13,338

ahtafR (70) ¥

BT raENSEr 759,890 198,231

SEFISCREEEL I 49.76% 49.76%

FEVSHRENRENE 365,258 114,840
PA LB RREE:

NERNEFMND 215,543 9,949
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B SRR IR 5
Bt1F 2021 £E12 5 31 F L FEN SRS

14. BXERIV (85
2021 £ 2020 £
12831 H 12 531 H
B F5t FE
N 194,431 12,165
SRR 188,654 11,875
LRE R ISR 188,654 11,875
EEFSCRRMNESEL I 49.76% 49.76%
B HEXE (AL EFE (ORRFTEEIERF) 100,680 (14)
LA EFIBEsE:
ISt =2 4)
(d) EHEEARETE W

HittdFEAKERWNYSERE (CHSITBERIEAEIFHERER SHREM BiRERTD
MKE/MERITK) PBEEIO T :

PPN 2021 4 2020 ££
S FeE ST
Ll e 284,266 51,474
IRE W DER 284,149 51,474
M SEXERIF)ERER FOFRFTE8ZRR) 28.975 9,369
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BRI IR 2
griF 2021 £ 12 5 31 il tEETY SR

15. IBIEFIA

EEE R RIERATRIARNBLEREH (R / B iEEANER D RFRZETNT:

Aty EETFE
F1HA1H HBFLT HEFLE TN sSalmmmd FRESHGA fFEHT F12531H
(FftiE 29) (M 29) (KHE 10)
T FET F=n F=7T F=r FET F=T F=
BRERTERR
2020E 12 B 31 H
FRAURREHTINSIR 35,396 255 (9,665) 1,510 - (2,393) (557) 24,546
Hifth 4,007 . - 309 - 557 - 4,873
39,403 255 (9,665) 1,819 - (1,836) (557) 29,419
20211231 H
FAFBETIRIOSIR 24,546 11,206 (11,235) (571) . (3,609) (10,144) 10,193
Hith 4,873 5 < 112 . (94) . 4,891
29,419 11,206 (11,235) (459) - (3,703) (10144) 15,084
IREFR{SHG MR
2020F 12 A 31 H
1A= (2,299,937) (135,196) 307,504 (182,304) . (188,997) 167,690  (2,331,240)
Hthiss (48,443) - (6,513) 4.211) 367 (21,327) : (80,127)
AR {EiHERY
B84l (1,089) . = (141) (1,142) ; : (2,372)
Hifth (7.464) (297) 298 (2,805) : (39,763) . (50,031)
(2,356,933) (135,493) 301,289 (189,461) (775) (250,087) 167,690  (2,463,770)
202112 H318
i i (2,331,240) (18,590) 765,423 (59,036) s (320,137) 502,203  (1,461,377)
Rithi&ss (80,127) - : (3.435) (11,162) (62,614) = (147,338)
LASSNEH RS
=EE/N (2,372) - - (26) 2,398 : - -
Hith (50,031) = ; (1,878) (237) (81,264) = (133,410)
(2,463,770) (18,590) 765,423 (64,375) (9,001) (454,015) 502,203  (1,742,125)
e
T e
e ==
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SR ES IR GRS
£L1F 2021 ZE 12 5 31 FHULEEIYEEH

15. EBIEFIIA (£E)

SNERGFRE AR B LUS LS M RRRTER S R AR S R RAG A E N A RIB AT BT e
FERIBFE TS R T R — M SRR, NBRERT{S I a ™ MBI A8 Rt L T LANE
[ERSES R, R RRRANEEARREERSEINT

2021 £ 2020 £
12 531 H 12531 H
F=r T
T ,‘/.:.{-—,- e S
BARERT SR AT e 24,657 21,455
IRFE SRR TR (1,751,698) (2,455,806)

TR MR fHR BB RS A~ RE R/, FAEEHARAA TR
BIERTISTR AR :

2021 £F 2020 ££
(S 12 5315 12 315
() Fa5 Fi5
HESIR h 857.248 653,028

BB SIRNESTAERBE T AL ERTEERMRSTARBERFUEMER. F 2021 £ 12 B
31 B, FHARSSIRNSTAN 857,248,000 25T (2020 £ 12 B 31 H: 653,028,000 %
7o) T HSTE 1 &= 5 FRZIER,

B 2008 FF 1 B 1 HHZ/EFHA, MRIRIERS KL / ZHEFLARY, PEMSHIEREERN
TENERIFDIRERRIMELN 10%F008, T 2021 5 12 B 31 B, AEFATREAET IEHKAS
BARDIRBRDTRFPERIMERAE, EUHREIARERTIRAE 83,311,000 355t (2020 F
12 B 31 H: 89,448,000 3T) .
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16.

ESHPEEREIRA

#bLE 2021 12 F 31 HULEETSRRE
NS IS
ik, I'BRISE
PANSINE AR
AL B ITEM 3p--t:0)
Rig®E  APREEIRB EETE B Bl RS ait
FET FET FET FEmT F= FET F=0n
(BHE 11)

5% 3
F2020F181H 90,887 438 - 73,693 - 69,953 234,971
KFAE) 33,990 - . 75,471 28,325 137,786
REFIEM 59,155 - 17,048 23,995 11,706 111,904
HEFAT (98,159) (436) - (1,789) (100,384)
AELE (8,929) - - - - (8,929)
EHIEHE - " - 4,566 (2,591)
EhigE 4,566
SCERIRNRINA 3,328 2) 981 6,591 6,117 6,603 23,618
F20206£128318 80,272 = 18,029 106,254 81,588 114,798 400,941
K FLE) 40,004 - 3,030 . 50,310 93,344
AR 54,862 2 150,174 41,995 320,547 567,578
SHBFAT (6,221) - - (156,822) : (163,043)
KELE (1,365) - - - (18,977) (20,342)
AEEHHK 37,816 - (8,513) = (30,589) - (1,286)
BN : - - (827) - (827)
EfnigE - - - 6,698 - = 6,698
ICERTRIRIE 2,764 - 2,187 2,702 1,453 7,025 16,131
EREEREHERT (64) (64)
F2021%12831H 208,068 5 164,907 - 52,452 473,703 899,130
FitiFlA
F20205F12831H (27,730) 8) (4,592) (32,330)
B FAT (8,330) - - 4 (6,962) (970) (16,262)
A (9,737) 4 - (2,591) (1,117) (9,155) (22,604)
LEFAT 14,468 12 - o = 293 14,773
AELE 6,617 . - . . 6,617
BhIEY . 2 - 2,591 - - 2,591
ICERIENRM (3,625) - - - (697) (874) (5,196)
F2020&F 1285 31H (28,337) {24 A - (8,776) (15,298) (52,411)
W F 2 F] (947) \ : . . . (947)
AN (8,620) NI - (827) (1,006) (17,684) (28,137)
HEFAT 2,607 - - . - » 2697
TELE 470 - - . 6,152 6,622
EIHITH y ; s 827 . . 827
SCEAERIFND (1,524) . . . (607) (3,918) (6,049)
KEFEEHH 4 . 4 = 1,286 . 1,286
B REREFEET 64 - . - - 64
F2021F 12831 H (36,197) = - - (9,103) (30,748) (76,048)
I 351}
F2020F12831H 51,935 - 18,029 106,254 72,812 99,500 348,530
F2021512A8 318 171,871 . 164,907 - 43,349 823,082

442,955
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EBAP SRR IR

RREzEEN S EE BN S ERVREmENT:

EsHTRE (E)
s

ISay

sy, . #2021 4612 A 31 UL FRYEIRE
Il o e S
e
17. THR&E~
BHE At IFETIE &t
FET FE5T F=E5T FE5T

22,3
F2020F1H1H 276,739 23,327 913 300,979
K+ 228D 59,841 4,879 2,597 67,317
KEFIE - - 18 18
WHEFAT (25,657) (4,956) (212) (30,825)
BENEEREEEET (34,742) . - (34,742)
NS 19,698 1,699 67 21,464
F 20205128 31 H 205,879 24,949 3,383 324,211
I RIRAN 8,068 592 127 8,787
F 20215128 31H 303,947 25,541 3510 332,998
SithetH
F2020F1818 (11,230) (777) (12,007)
AR (1,300) (324) (1,624)
REFAT 212 172 384
<) =2 | 5 (1,117) (57) (1,174)
F2020F 12831 H . (13,435) (986) (14,421)
KRR 5 (1,284) (85) (1,369)
p = <Gy =) (468) (24) (492)
F20215F12H31H e (15,187) (1,095) (16,282)
R E: 2(
F 2020512831 H X2 295,879 11,514 2,397 309,790
F2021F 12831 H 303,947 10,354 2415 316,716
VTE 2705 pealhs e =V AVI AT =R i

2021 & 2020 £F
12531 H 12531 H
FErT F=T
246,275 239,526
57,672 56,353
303,947 295,879

E STETEEERRRIMRMRTEEIRGEX, BIREREARRE .
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17.

(a)

(b)

18.

EBHEER IR\ E]
—‘j:;:»/:_ - BLuF 2021 £ 12 5 31 B EE TS

ZRGE (88)

GLP China

B RSB ARNERELERRE S, T 2021 &£ 12 B 31 H, &r-HLATEPE
B ¥R, BESER, REMEETT, SHIRSKEMR., EREEARMNER, AR
FRE#ERE, MANERKNE RERIFILARIREZSESHGAESHE. BEREFIARTLY
Yilvel EaEl, AERRFBIREEIREFE SRS, EERERUARMNET IR, W
ANEREFEBERAMERERSWNES HIVE, BRERNESKAERE DS
B S IA RS AR ISR B AR TR ER ZIAMNES KT, RSMTIiENX
BERZERSEBREFIMIIER, SHFER—. FRPIZEEERIFEHF R
REBRIFETHE, T IBIYWNE, IDREERA. FRFHE, LAKEIZWLEIN
E.

£ 2021 & 12 B 31 H, EEERKEARSNERLGEZRR#ENXBRISEBEERCERS
4.00% - 7.00% (2020 12 B 31 H: 4.00% - 7.00%), IFHIZEH 7.25% - 10.50% (2020 £
12 B 31 H: 8.00% - 10.50%), iR HUZEESg 4.00% - 7.00% (2020 12 B 31 H: 4.00%

-7.00%) . BEEEHEE, LATERENEMSEER, BALEHITWEEMAERTR

F=MENME.

MBS

&AM RISMEREERNMETE. ERNEHBIRETERENENTSFRN
EENHERETRNLITIEEITE. ERRNIERER ERATFIRTRH KA GRS
E. BATREFERMITINIRRIZA AN ERRA. BTREERMIKAE
KEANEDEEENZME LR FEE A SRR T AN E RIS R ZAYTR
W, F2021F 12 8 31 B, iTREMXAEKESHN 7.5% 3% (2020512 8 31 8:

7.5% 1 3%) . EEERE DRAFERENIASERR, BA2SHYUREISHAEET
T EKEE.

BRI &7
\& 2021 £E 2020 £E
12 431 H 12 531 H
F=51 FET
X3 _EHABRIRBUEE - ARMETEBEHETINTA
HithémSWEs (ARaJ4&(E]) 510,621 418,902
X3 RSB R RESHISE - ARMETHE
BETH B S-SR (RajiE]) 230,883 -
X A ERERSEEE - ARMETEBEIENTA
HHBIRES 406,213 50,525
XIE LA ERRSEEE - AMETTERET A
HERfRES 1,189,147 1,655,919
2,336,864 2,125,346
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18.

19.

B ESRE IR
BELE 2021 £ 12 5 31 HILFREHHEH

HIBKRIRE (48)

BE 20215128 31 B, M EHARNRIUSHEEE=R (2020F 128 318: =xK) L
AR ERIERN,. BTFZFRANVFEENAEIRRE, TERABZSREBEENUAR
hMETBEERTHMT AR R SWE SR,

& 2021 £ 12 B 31 H, M LHEMISBIESHSRESIIGENAERRFENE LSS
SR LAY 302,578,000 40 (2020 FF 12 B 31 H: %) &g CiEintt At EMiHEIrE
SRFAES ( "TEERIES" ) BSHE. T 202156 B, AEARTEEBHESLHE
TEDTLE (BFMEE29) .

HfthiEiRzhE =
2021 £ 2020 £
. 125318 125314
T - F55 F57
BITCER 34,352 50,253
FRATEER 70,484 65,738
R 19,749 8,341
IR EE R AYERR 437,576 513,416
HRAHARE LS ER / 21,022 4,971
RMAE =TS HERK \ 5,249 10,411
FEFGENEMIRER | 128,201 125,269

716,633 778,399

WEEEIWRILFF, B 700,000 ETATBERMIN (F20205 12 8 31 8: k) 46, HRF
= B1& 5.70%Z 8.00%MISLFREFFIERITR (F 2020 F 12 B 31 H: 5.70%%F 8.63%) , k&
E—FRIEE.

BT AFRIETIRIHI TR 11,612,000 Ejoih, BRELBEEDWAESTIRERR
6.00%MISERRERIZRITE (F 2020 £F 12 B 31 B: 8.00%ZE 10.00%) , TEE—FREE,
BESWEFHRERXNE=ARHOEFTIERR. TR (F 2020512 B 31 B: 18.00%&
F) THRE—FRER.
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EE R ES A E IR
BEIF 2021 £ 12 F 31 H I EENTS1EF

RSt Ae B fth RS RR IR
. 2021 £F 2020 ££
g R 12531 H 12531 H
i - FET FET
T NIWISER -
- RIZRKER 52,052 53,122
- IH{ERK (1,881) (1,921)
50,171 51,201
M EE I AIFIR
-B% 10,346 16,635
-FRZ 87,744 58,056
- BB EER 100,859 29,468
198,949 104,159
R BRE Al BOFRT :
-B% 13,798 41,834
-IERB 248,242 240,780
- KE L EIER 142,223 193,722
404,263 476,336
M D EG B TRRIFRIA -
-IERB 8,611 15,301
- IDERIRIR IR 16,104 49,503
24,715 64,804
R B AR 2  BIRIFRIN :
-ERB 753,760 -
Rt B 75 AOFRIN :
- RS T 14,116 -
- BB o7 \*\ 894,301 331,452
2\ ) 908,417 331,452
E=5EER e 130,058 34,546
BT 5 103,731
(RIEE 105,657 78,283
IR EBRTIER :
- Bt RIBIER 291,720 301,527
- R{ERSK (218) (265)
291,502 301,262
FRATFRIR 22,351 27,645

2,889,843 1,573,419
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20.

(a)

— B R
_— == b1 2021 212 A 31 USRS

Rl By HLft RIUSFRIN (28)

=

KWEERW, KRERI, DHIRRNEMRBRSNIFRZRINTER. RERATEKRN

FEER, KREATRDEIRNRTD, kR 137,675,000 SETATREFIM (2020 £ 12
B 31 B: %), HREFWFTER, FIREHAXLRERIZA 5.70%F 15.20% (2020 F 12 B
31 H: 5.10%Z 10.00%), FE7E 12 MBAEIR,

FE=FHEFP, BRETFRMETRTTRHEIFRER 102,570,000 355t (2020 £ 12 A 31
H: 12,935,000 3&5T) 4, ERSKWEXNSEFISAEER. HE 12 MEREENERR,
BEFIZH 10.00%Z 18.00% (2020 £ 12 H 31 H: 8.00%Z= 10.00%) ,

(RS EIESRIERI%ER 16,313,000 55T (2020 £ 12 B 31 H: 47,341,00035T) . H
BRI KR S 15 R SRR RO R IS BT,

RIKIERM R IKER FESIHE. XTAERERBERINESEREFITHIE 30(@) .
T R R AR

AEF AR NTUBERR AT BRI SRR HMERES, ZSHERkEEME
itH. RIEAEENHEER, TRESBEFHARERANENIEREER, EMERE
SR EREEERRE—S X DRI FEHA.

TERFIHT 2020 £ 12 A 31 H& 2021 £ 12 A 31 B TASERNERRER KSR
A RITRABE R

2020 Z£12 31 H

LELIIRAEE JkETR AT B R

% FET ST

— AKX __ 0.67 44,066 (295)
1321A \ 6.67 4,198 (280)
2%31 A \4 ¢© 19.58 507 (99)
3ze61NA 18.73 1,579 (296)
78 121H 21.45 2,318 (497)
121MBiE 100.00 454 (454)
53,122 (1,921)
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20. RuMTAHRIER (42)

— T BR
182498
2ZI31A
386 MA
7E/121AR
1217RHia

R —

%

0.56
17.54
44.09
4943
66.23

100.00

SR ESR EIRE
Bt1F 2021 ££12 F 31 i EETERSE

2021 12 531

TKETER MR
FE0 F5
48,339 (272)
1,487 (261)
301 (133)
1,190 (589)
323 (214)
412 (412)
52,052 (1,881)

BRI EETITE 12 NANIIMERREERITE, FIRIED LSRR SRR
. HRINEFFIRR S AERFmARRFIHFEEANE TR =& Z ANERHITIEE,

AR A IKIE RN T -

F1818
AR
VNS
REFAT
s

F 2021512 B 31 BER

2021 £F 2020 £F
12 531 H 12 531 H
F3E5T &5t
2,186 25,484
993 12,387
189 126
(428) (35,018)
(841) (793)
2,099 2,186

ERNKERTEERL. BKERW, PHRERNB=ITHRAK.

KER, AER. MHRRENRE=SNEFEMAE 12 MEZA, WEERHAN, Rt

AEEANFTEXERNIE.
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EERPEEREIRA A

E1F 2021 £ 12 F 31 FUIHEE SRR
e
21 PREERE~ -

2021 £ 2020 £

it 12531 H 12 531 H

FE5T F3E5T

HREHER~E (a) 5,398,886 1,166,970
FRHERiRE (b) (2,476,658) (329,501)

XEXE R AR 133,779

3,056,007 837,469

F 2020 &F 12 B, AEFASIFEXBKAEARINY, LAARMY 3,800,000,000 jt (Y%HE
578,906,000 357T) AOXHNHEF A B EBIRS T SHIERMIREBEARAS. 8E 2021 &F
12831 H, EMEBER<H.

F 2021 % 6 B2 2021 4 12 B, ARFCEIHRES XD HE—HH FAH
il SEYNEETRETATOARNERRE, B 202145 125 31 B, bhtEMk
SR

5, F 2021 12 B, FAEFCEIHERRSE=SHERTE—RKKE RSN
iHl. = 20215128 31 H, BRGBERBHKRTRK.

BFEXRFARNE LRSI, BHXEFARNEMARKT 2021 F 12
R 31 B SRS EHERTITEFERIE.

(a) FFEfFERR S

2021 £ 2020 £

12 31 H 12 531 H

F==T F3&T

R MR KD 5,093,558 1,065,798
RITFE 246,508 61,310
Hitb <R~ 58,820 39,862
aTERE™ 5,398,886 1,166,970
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21

(b)

22.

(a)

HRSEET ()

FERERREES:

RERAERR
JBREFTIERI TR
Hfth

FRTERR

RERMEF N
W RSN HES:

EHITFRR
RITER

EFEENSRERTRRNE RINEF N
ELBRPNESMEFM

EFRGUERERTINE SMEFNY

SRR EIRA T

BLIF 2021 £ 12 F 31 UL FEIERE

963,449

2021 £F 2020 £F
12531 H 12531 H
FE5T FFE5T
(1,209,536) (141,127)
(673,314) (167,690)
(593,808) (20,684)
(2,476,658) (329,501)
2021 £F 2020 (£

12 531 H 128531 H
F5E5T FET

58

716,941 1,160,694
716,941 1,160,752
246,508 61,310
1,222,062

EREEH, FSEFRITERERNESFEETFIZENT 0.01%ZE 0.45%Z[A (2020 F 12 B 31

H: 0.01%Z= 0.35%) .
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22,

(b)

B ESR EIREA T
BoLF 2021 £E12 B 31 FIEFET SRS

MERMEBNY () —

22/ e Y L

AEBRRMEENT - ERSIED, SFNERIFEE, BiFFIT TR, HiEED
FrERRS, BRZESEERISKNMER, TAEENGSASRERT, SIRXNESR
AR RE.

F2020E18 18
ERISRES:
FIRIRITER
{SRFTER
EiTiRs

SRS
SRR R
{RR D EARIRAE R
ST EARIRAEER
FEAERIER
{SIRBRE R ERR
PR = EN
BEEBERIERK
EEE=SEN
FIRRERRAS
BHFEERFIR
2FIR

{EER TR

EENEREN S

HithZrah:
KaF20E] (BiE 29)
RBFAF) (BHiE 29)
MEgRERR
RSB

iChuimee

Hifth

el

F2020512831H

DR,
[EREER BELFR
HE s 2\aEs  B=rER agirgssio) it/ LHTFIER Sit
(L 25) (H1E 26) (B1E 27) (HE 27) (FRE 28) (#5#27)

FE T FET FERT T FET T
8,190,561 451,554 35,791 3,563 45,488 166,940 8,893,897
5,633,415 5,633,415
(4,292,235) (4,292,235)

599,999 599,999

(30,285) (30,285)

(451,554) (451,554)
(10,672) (10,672)
8,849 8,849
31,111 31,111
(51,090) (51,090)
(59,639) (59,639)
(3,990) : (3,990)
(4,622) (4,622)
(3,231) - (3,231)
5 = (488,279) (488,279)
(3,809) (3,809)
1,910,894 (451,554) (85,431) (3,809) (7,853) (488,279) 873,968
144,093 16,757 5,447 544 166,841
(303,886) (2,500) (1,496) (2,008) (309,980)
I 14,786 14,786
3,079 446,833 449,912
283,025 1,674 246 550 812 286,307
21,661 51,090 72,751
144,893 67,021 246 22,366 446,091 680,617
10,246,348 17,381 60,001 124,752 10,448,482
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22.

(c)

EEIES R EIRA &

Btil 2021 ££12 A 31 HILEFEEMERE
MERMESZM () T e
BB A= T 1922 -
DR, BF
25, BEAE
EEENRIE R ME=5 FHERF FHTFIR =178
(AT 25) (26 77 27) (H/E 28) (it 27)
FE5 T FET SE ST Fn
F2021E 1818 10,246,348 17,381 60,001 124,752 10,448,482
BRMEREEN:
HHBRITRE 6,713,692 - - 6,713,692
{BIERITER (6,829,248) - . (6,829,248)
EBiTikRE 2,751,731 2,751,731
EIXRE (2,633,904) (2,633,904)
RIE ARG TS B . =
R D ERIRIETR = (10,202) (10,202)
g DB IRIE R L
igaERER 5 = .
ERERE RAMETR -
FHSE= ™R 2
EEEERIAER - -
BRB=751E% (837) (637)
BEBERERS - (14,400) (14,400)
EAMEERERR (6,852) . (6,852)
EFE (500,670) (500,670)
EFRUE RN R 2,271 (10,839) (21,252) (500,670) (530,491)
Fitharzn:
BOEFAE (MHE 29) 303,465 B 2,466 305,931
LEFLT (FHE 29) (988,374) - (12,825) (502) (1,001,701)
BRI = 220,280 - 220,280
MEZEH - - 6,182 481,105 487,287
CERR 153,893 170 5,312 2,052 161,427
Hifh (1,535,309) 896 3 - (1,534,413)
Hft3Esh SR (2,066,325) 1,066 218,949 485,121 (1,361,189)
F20215£12831H 8,182,294 7,608 109,203 8,556,802

257,698
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23.

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

BRSBTS EIRANE]
&1L 2021 FE 12 5 31 HIELFEEYERSE

RATASEE —

Wt B a5 27

AR AR RERBERTT A FHGEEER, AATE MU
BT R RIS

V%
P /N iz HEES BrAas =778
F=T F35tT FET F==T

F 202041 A1 BER 6,950,825 (751,744) (544,388) 5,654,693
FEEAYEERER - 431,658 963,357 1,395,015
XATEALNERGRAARR : (430,453) (430,453)
F 2020 F 12 B 31 &R 6,950,825 (320,086) (11,484) 6,619,255
RELEEWERER : 152,844 (168,635) (15,791)
F2021512 8 31 BER 6,950,825 (167,242)  (180,119) 6,603,464
BE
RITRRA

12 31 H

Vit Y

TFig T

EERRRITER 6,950,825 6,950,825

RIEEBLTRMIE 135 &, AIEBRTESHE.

EERFFEARSEAERRE, HUEALNTAR LERE—RROIR—R. T4
NERRET, FEEERIYEERSNE.

;7

#HIE 2021 F 12 B 31 B, EESRHARESRAKRSE. 202056 8 22 H, EESRNERIKR
&ZB#LE 2020 & 12 B 31 HEEERR 430,453,000 25T,

HEEH

FERHO TR EANEREM AT TR RUARBAIRREIF S, SEIT
"B/A" M ARTEENEIN iR E E IR IRAYSR B BRI AR N SR KEXTT HIfETK.
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BB EE e EIRL &
Bb1f 2021 £E12 B 31 FHUEEEFRE

23. RRFHIESFEM (&)

FEFNARFEEFNSERNFRAEREQRANRAE., JEFTH, ERENUARSER
ERg A EZURY, BAGHSRERMIEE,

AR ERER SR RN RARERT™ (FENE) LERISERE, HOBEXHERSFHR
PRIMR GRS (R D BRI ES) MBS HIRLUS R (FEHE)

2021 £ 2020 £
12831 H 12 531 H
L FET FE5T
R ABFR 8,182,294 10,246,348
XB/DEBRRIERER 4,003 14,039
FE=T{8BR 776 513
BEAERR 2,829 2,829
ARRIER 257,698 60,001
EFRDER 8,447,600 10,323,730
. MERINSENY (716,941) (1,160,752)
FfalR 7,730,659 9,162,978
N RER 19,857,139 17,559,761
BB 34,518,956 32,755,885
R EINESEL 38.93% 52.18%
BESRT (RFEUE) L 22.87% 29.00%

BEYEBERNERNEESNRAMAMEERENRIENR e, FEANKSKEES
HOERZ BIBYS— R,

AEFERFRAF LR S EEDIENZE.

2021 SEHAE, NEIRVEERS 2020 £F 12 B 31 BIREAT, SRS MRASLAR
T 50%EE S REREEHEARIT 55%. NEEFEIREBIZILR, NEIn AR (TLEIRRNIER
S/, KiTHkmsEEbER LN DEEHTNEIREHEE=LURMRSS.

FrBNEFNESBTWEREL B E R~ REEIE—EHNKE, XEEBRRTHENRSESD
BIENNE. IREREEME, EFRBTERNEER. SAEHRRERTSERERE
ME. FHEBERFEIME 30(b) SRNMMEREAEE, &L 2021 F 12831 H, KF
RERIHITEFRER (2020F12H 31 H: F).
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BT EER EIRA T
&t1F 2021 £ 12 B 31 HIHEEHFHRE

24. B
2021 £ 2020 £F
— 12531 H 12 531 H
- FET Fn
BAGES 90,779 3,838
AN N = 36,849 36,849
SINDIRFIFTEER 174,951 (129,913)
DRNEERE (FRIEEE) 228,707 113,227
N EGIE(EES - 6,730
Hithfig % ; (1,554,630) (1,554,630)
BiriEs \ 8,301,787 6,956,745
7,278,443 5,432,846

BB EEOEFSSHEE TN N EFTR AT BRI Bkt AR A SR TE
PEFRRIZN TN EREEESENRG . RIBFEEEENAASETEEM IR TA
aNER, PEEMAZINTFABDNEEESEERFNE, HEBNNESatE. 8
2021 £ 12 B 31 H, BEUEHESTHIBSERIM SRR, ReNRESENEEHESE
£33 102,790,000 27T (2020 4F 12 B 31 H: 58,958,000 2£5T) .

BRI RAESBREREEMERTAIZ RO TR TR i BN ER RS R
{E.

Y ERRERIR, FHERARNETBIHFEBERINEMBRRANSTHBEREI TR
H,

ARNERESE (FURE) SRERSHRMREEEMSREENSE 9 5, BRAULRMNE
TFBRRETHTARMGSHEM T ANSRMBRNRITARMES FhHE 2(h) .

HitEBZ T ERIEERERATNHESAHES (FHEFIEALTTRERE INESD
MBS AN BRTHEERS XM ERWNFLERNKRRTEBEXNEAESE ZENE
) .
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25.

26.

EE PR IR A B

ELF 2021 £E12 H 31 [HIFHEETTERE
=T
2021 £ 2020 £
12 531 H 12531 H
F=5T FE5T
JERTNGA R —
e
HEPERITRYRK B 2,517,768 4,393,572
RS 320,156 746,715
ToHEHRITRIAR 532,369 461,705
FoHE RS 3,725,508 1,494,137
7,095,801 7,096,129
iRl e
HEIBSRATHYER N A 357,821 248,428
IIRERS L 2,925 2,458
ToHEIRERIT YRR 56,004 465,968
THERMRS 669,743 2,433,365
1,086,493 3,150,219

AEFLITF A TR R B ERITRFEER, BEKEMNELJ9 11,318,951,000 5T
(2020 £ 12 B 31 B: 15,445,068,000 %5T) (BEMHE 11) .

RITEFRAOSERRFFRIZRTE 1.42%% 6.77%208) (2020 FF 12 B 31 B: 1.29%E 6.77%) ,

HitEifRahti s

2021 £ 2020 £F
12531 H 12 531 5
F==T F3E5T
EWRIES 43,911 77,791
BRERE - 551
RE{T R TSR 16,111 21,483
kB DHEETRAIERR 3,046 10,388
TRERIR (BiHiE 28) 236,693 53,813
BRI EHMMIKEBEE RIS 128,201 114,396
R S/N=T) Se= Y=N=1|VE R PO 38,572 37,303
Hftb 33,834 1,612
500,368 317,337

89



B EE R EIRAE
2L1F 2021 ££12 5 31 HILEFEWEHH

27. R{IRRMR{IFRI

2021 £ 2020 £
12531 H 12531 H
F=T F=5T
IUARYLEA 8,454 2,379
TR TH25K e . 574,052 692,675
T2 - o 117,408 92,429
BR%RE 38,015 40,645
RZFFIR 102,484 116,380
FRMHERIES 98,823 87,744
RZ{
- ARG AN E) (BRS) 139,040 51,266
- HfthXEXT5 (BB %) 8,223 14,532
- Hfth>XBX75 (AERR ) 134,092 300,342
- DEBRIR (RB) 2,992 3,358
- VYRR AER ) 28,640 17,736
-8R (B23) 2,188 1,522
-BERI JERR) 4,787 495
-BRER (RR) 282 70
-BRER JERR) 35,441 32
B TS EFR R FI R 6,284 7,383
DEIBSIRIETR 957 3,651
DI BRI FIR 214 129
BB ISR 2,829 2,829
BETEFRRBIRIRIR . 644
FE=H1AERR 776 513
FE= A EFREIRTRIS 221 216
A a/NST [ VR N PR Y 79,849 143,018
HERR M ENIREREFEES 77.211 58,909
B RO RIR T XA 8,950
HAt R 7R 107,643 95,423
RrftAgF s 1,916
TREALR (fiHE 28) 21,005 6,188
1,591,910 1,751,374
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27.

28.

T
#ur 2021 512 /5 31 ELULFRMETH
{3 B Rt RI{TFRIRA (£E)

DEIREKR. BRERAELIREMXBEKANIERZARMAIER. 8. TESERE. NE=
75, DEERRRAETREETATER, THREK 12 MBRERHTIREAR 4.00%E
6.08%AYSERREERIER (2020 4F 12 H 31 H: 3.00%Z 6.08%) it&.,

HER R
AERAT A= RRA BB E RN IR0 T

2021 (£12 531 H
RITHEHE RIFHE
s = =] OV
__;;:_Ej’_r_;if;,.. e F=E5T F=ET
—&FLAA 21,005 33,270
—FEREF 21,951 33,164
MEERF 62,548 89,693
RELE 152,194 185,835
257,698 341,962
i REEARRNEZE \ % (84,264)
FHERIFRRE 257,698

2020 Z£12 A 31 A

RIFHEE RIGHEEE

e CTE =] (T8

F5=5T F=5T

—FLAA 6,188 9,313
—FERF 5,963 8,734
MEERSF 15,540 22,185
REE 32,310 40,312
. 60,001 80,544

W REANR SR (20,543)
HERFRSER 60,001
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29.

BE R E SR G IR ]
2C1F 2021 ££12 F 31 FILEEETEIRH

Gal&RERTR

YRy 72

AERWIT AR EERER KRS EN-REIR A A A IR A,
BE 2021 57 12 A 31 BULFE, WFATERNT:

FLETER WIGER RITIRR

0/0
R REEREEIRAT 202141 8 91
N EERCHERERRAS 2021£E3 B 100
KEDTRIXREIRAE] 20214F4 B 80
e REEEERAT 2021448 80
BARERAFEERERAT 20214E4 8 80
A TR CHERIRAE] 20214E4 B 80
BN TR ERRRAE] 2021448 80
TG REDTREEIRAT) 202144 A 80
AREATHTREBRAE 20214E4 8 80
TR THIRERAT 2021548 80
BT CYRERAE 202154 A 80
BRFTRXRERAE 202144 8 80
BRLTRIARAIRAS] 2021548 80
RIS THREIRAT 2021548 80
PR R EEERAR 20214E4 B 80
R TS TEWERAE 20215 4 8 80
BT R IR B IRAT] 2021548 80
BT RIEREIRAT] 202144 B 80
FrhENXBTRERCHERRAT 202154 8 80
=BT REEIRAR] 20214F4 8 80
SEAFTHTEWDIRERAS 202144 B 80
BRNBTRERERAR 202158 80
TR E R EEERIRAS 202144 B 90
IR PRR PR SR IR S 20214558 50
BOFEPYREIRAR 20216 B 100
AR HCAAIRNE) 20214E6 8 95
TMNEISEE RmBIRAR 20214588 63.9
LRI EIER RERREAT 202148 8 80
I HENEE (1) EaRmERAR 202178 100
IREEFREAERAD 2021 9H 70
B F YRR R R ERAT 202149 B 70
Beijing Logistics Pte. Ltd. 202197 100
R RNMERSR REIRAR) 20214598 100
IFBRERRRIRAERAT 2021128 100
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EBHP R EIRZ

BL1E 2021 ££12 F 31 FILEEFEE
29. SEMESHREFRTE (G
(i) BE20205F12 831 BIEFE, BN ATRBRNT:

FLETER KRIEH Ve
%
LSS EITEMR R REIRAE] 2020418 70
MMNERRHE IR AR 202051 B 100
LS THPREIRAT 20204F3 B 100
T RE M EIE AR AT 202053 B 90
Tompkins International LLC 20204 A 66

REESEFRMRERAT
(R&: KiPEFRPRSEIRERAR) 20204E5 B 75
BT R R E R EEETRAE 202056 B 70
EEEReWETEERAT 2020 7 B 100
MU X RGN IRAS 20204E 8 B 50
LB THREBRAE 20209 8 100
EEERYTERAE 202012 8 100
B|AME (FRy HARERSRAS 2020128 94
FRIERBIRAT 2020 11 B 100
ShERHIR R (3R BIRAR 2020 11 B 100
ItRERERBEE =R EIRAE 202012 8 100
LSRR IRAR 2020512 A 80
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29. FEMERBFRTE (D)
7

ES P EEEIRA T
Bp1F 2021 £ 12 F 31 HUEEHFRE

#H= 2021 F£12 B 31 HF 2020 ££ 12 B 31 BILFEERWNF AT MESRMNEE =0T :

2021 £ 2020 £F

BRI  CHEASIHITE

FE55 F£5%

MRt = ’:*:f-_-'._ﬁﬁ_“____ 1,996,368 1,050,716
Yl "B RIRE 92,397 121,524
Hitti<Hpte 5t 1,134
BREFT{ERE 11,206 255
HA<RISR 36 347
NERNEFNY 20,109 72,905
oz T Rz LAt 7 MR IR 72,562 26,310
RIS Re AR R FRIA (670,858) (138,053)
BRRAER (303,465) (144,093)
VBN Tk 70 (1,574)
EBIERTISTR AR (18,590) (135,493)
HfthdEmantafi . (5,329)
DB (100,374) (183,240)
gz SN 1,099,461 679,904
aE - 52,822
DN (19,477) (80)
i dapS iy 1,079,984 732,646
VARISEERBINERNASNE (18,774) (314,003)
RIS (188,470) (37,080)
AR E S RO RIE S (83,133)
e /NSNS (20,109) (72,905)
(T LARTSE WAy 104,859 73,975
KaFARMETHEL 957,490 299,500
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29.

(i)

S ES R IR
ZpLF 2021 £ 12 B 31 HILFEEH SRR

SFENERERTE (&)

FRF TR A ST 1,079,984,000 35T (2020 £ 12 B 31 H: 732,646,000 =
70) « WKWEZE 2021 &£ 12 B 31 H, EZEKENRIRRAR, DAKEAEEAARFI
SEVSIMSFNE 23,293,000 3556, FASRTE 2021 & 1 B 1 B, EEEMT, B
2021 1 B 1 BE 2021 & 12 A 31 B, EAKEESAERAKNFIREIEXL95 BITREA
97,283,000 =55 54,215,000 7T,

R FLE

BE 2021 5 12 F 31 HIEFELBOATE BT

FLREEH LB LAERIEAT
%
WS R BIEEERAT 202113 100
et (AEB) BT X TR AR EIRAT 2021E 18 100
R (@7 YEMEHRARAE 20214618 100
GLP GOLDEN LINCOLN B Partners, LP 2021 5 3 5 68.51
HEEIRRAKFREERAT 2021441 50
IR RRERERAT 2021468 100
FLnIREX S REFRBRAT 2021 6 5 100
Bl ECHERAT 202146 B 100
BN ERTEE S IRE R B RAT 202146 B 100
g M) R CEBIRAT 20214E6 3 100
IR ORI EIREIRAR 20214F 6 B 100
CLH 88 (HK) Limited 2021468 100
IIRE R DRI A REIRAR 2021481 100
LSS ESEMI R RRERAR 2021F 9 8 70
BN SHREERAE 2021 TR 0
LEERCHBIRAE 2021498 100
TS CAERRAT 2021491 100
et RERAT 202198 100
It S ETREIRAT 2021 98 99.80
It ERE BT A BIRAT 202198 100
LimEHeiEaiRam 20214E 10 3 100
KA (7o) MBAMAI A REIRAT 20214 10 100
R (FPE) YIERH R R BIRAE] 202110 B 100
FRF (FSRh) MIBXMRIR REIRAR) 20215 118 100
BREEOHRIERIRAT 20215118 100
TR TR LR RBIRAE) 2021118 100
TR AR REIRAT] 20215118 100
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29.

(ii)

B EHrPEIRE IR T
ZLIF 2021 £E 12 [ 31 I EEETENG#

FalSiRERTRE (5

FLETER LB LB IR

%
BN SRS RRIERIRAT 20215117 100
RERE TR RERAT) 20214 128 100
GH Investment 3 Limited 20215128 100
China Logistics Holding Xl Srl {Barbados |IBC) 2021118 100
CLH 84 (HK) Limited 2021128 100
Kong Hwa International Holding Company Limited 2021128 100
CLH 23 (HK) Limited 2021128 100
CLH 96 (HK) Limited 2021 128 100
China Logistics Holding LXII Srl 20215128 100
CLH 41 (HK) Limited 2021128 100
CLH 106 (HK) Limited 2021128 100
China Logistics Holding (19) Pte Ltd 2021 128 100
CLH (40) Pte. Ltd. 2021F 128 100
CLH (49) Pte. Ltd. 20215128 100
NS SRR EEIRAT 20214 12 100
CLH 43 (HK) Limited 20214128 100
CLH 32 (HK) Limited 20214128 100
CLH 40 (HK) Limited 20215128 100
CLH 112 (HK) Limited 2021128 100
China Logistics Holding IV Srl (Barbados IBC) 2021128 100
China Logistics Holding IX Srl (Barbados IBC) 20215128 100
China Logistics Holding XXVIi Srl (Barbados IBC) 20215128 100
China Logistics Holding (30) Pte Ltd 20215128 100
CLH (44) Pte. Ltd. 20214E 12 B 100
CLH (56) Pte. Ltd. 20216128 100
CLH (78) Pte. Ltd. 2021128 100
CLH 123 (HK) Limited 2021128 100
CLH 120 (HK) Limited 20215128 100
Be & Cheery International Limited 2021128 100

BZ 2020 5 12 A 31 HIHFEABHTFATERMT:

FLTEH REHH LEREHIREIT

%
I NEREEIRAE] 20203 8 100
TR AREREIRAE 20204E 3 H 100
BLTFE CHEIRSBIRAR 20205 8 100
REKERCHERIRAT 202045 8 100
NS RERCHEEREEAT 20205 B 80
BUEGCHERIRAT 2020558 100
AT RECHEERATE 202045 8 96
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LS ES R RN
&CIF 2021 £E 12 B 31 FIFEREIRSE

ZeNESREFRTE (B)
FLETER LEAR LEEHIRRIT
o/0
=RRER (KR) BIRAS] 202045 B 90
BB (EX) WREFRERAE 202046 B 100
BRI EH AL CERSBIRAR 202056 B 100
4l (Fam) CERSBIRAT 2020 6 B 100
HIRHR (D) CiEEAIRAR 202046 8 100
g (TEdte) CEERATE 202056 B 100
S EOIERSARAE 202046 B 100
ST SR OERSBRAT 20204F6 B 100
BNFAIRBEIRAT) 20204E6 B 100
HNEECHEERAE 202056 B 100
TR R R RBRAS 20206 B 100
BUEDRRERIRAT 202046 B 100
BUETIOHERIMEERAT 202068 100
$# (BLL) CERSBIRAT 202056 8 100
FE/RE =T OiERERIRAE 202046 B 100
BNEHXE SR CHEIEERAS 2020568 100
REEECHIRSERAT 202056 A 100
REELOHHGIEERAT] 202056 B 100
HINE BT C#EERAT 202046 B 100
BT S REERAT) 202046 B 100
K EBRGiEEIRAT 2020F6 B 100
GLP China Financing Holding Limited 20206 A 100
TR (UN) BIERIRAT 20204E7 8 100
e A R ETR AR AT 202047 B 100
REETCHEARAT 20207 B 100
IR OEERAST 2020 7B 100
REEEIREERAT 202078 100
FNE BT CEBIRAR 202078 100
B (N CHEEIRAT 202078 100
FELROERERRAT 202047 8B 100
BRI CHEREERAT 2020467 B 100
REEHPRRRERAT 2020578 100
EigH (BD) SBERIRRERERAE 202059 B 100
CLH 38 (HK) Limited &5 TV X EmH S iEiRiEERAR] 2020598 100
Tompkins International LLC 2020 128 83
CLH 12 (HK) Limited 20204E 12 B 100
GLP Golden Lincoln A Partners, LP 202012 B 100
BEEHCHEEIRAT 202012 8 100
BXE (F) CHEBIRAR 202012 B 100
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S E R AR
B1F 2021 £F12 5 31 HILFESRE

29. GEMEREFRTE ()

REERN
8 2021 £F 12 A 31 HIEFEL BN FATHER SN T

2021 £&F 2020 £
EFFALENTE B ENE
FE1 FET
B 7,097,963 2,392,203
B R AE S e 352,379
TR &= 34,730 30,441
k. T ERIRE 160,441 85,611
HithiEiGR 8 P 633,190 241,258
BRERT SRR = 11,235 9,665
Hftygr= R 4,202 15,705
RIS BLfth R 491,088 660,475
NERNEHND 369,698 416,775
R R BRI R0 (1,889,799) (775,050)
BB AETR - AEFaD (981,405) (245,912)
RIRSER - fah (6,968) (57,974)
RIAZRiE (50,987) (1,684)
JBFERT{BHR TR (765,423) (301,289)
HitAEfRahaiR (9,408) (6,644)
DRGNS # (727,036) (60,745)
N EBHYSERrT : S 4,371,521 2,755,214
WEFAENES ~
- YRFER Ty 552,697 314,400
- gAY 58,561
REEXH 4,924,218 3,128,175
RZBHA (947,085) (292,233)
IFME AT (41,892) (430,440)
FrbBF TS (369,698) (416,775)
L ERTWEIRIRKR R 360,813 -
LA EBRYERE TN 298,056 227,418
AW FARRTNSERA 4,224 412

2,216,145

B 202118 1 HEA8H, bR FAENNAERR 2021 51 5 1 HE 2021 5 12 B 31
B IE BRI NN R A L09 Bk 386,457,000.00 3E5TH] 272,521,000 35T,
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30.

(a)

(b)

BB R B IR ]
BULE 2021 £ 12 5 31 FULFRESIRE

ERTRMESHMEEEMQME

AEATHEIEREWVSIRPAZER. RaRE, FIZMEHRE. FNEFVRZERMSLR
RO IR R R A S IR BT BIRRAN KU

AEEFIHX LR LA FIBRRLAR S EIRX LR B AT SR R £ REX UG ETE BRI B U5 T
T3

1EEIRE

ERKISIER BN FENH SBAERAZMIRENNGE., FAERANERNIEEZEREHEA
ROBWRER R RABRIGR, AR ERNEFN. NMERERSRITERFHTEE
RIFMRITRERMIE, EXEXEEN.

ST RGA R R s

FiREPRAERIEMOERNETEZIESR/EFNI BN (MIFEFEER R T
FIEMER) Fifn, BEXEEETREEERTAERS MBI PERBUAZERN,
e

AR S, A ERET R — BRI EIRK Z AR E PIYRRZ N BIERITE
ffl. AEFASEPIHMEEFPEESIRRNICRERNAIEREED, HEEEFNREFE
BRFELFIMBRIIER AN, MEIKKAEEKSRBEZIH. WKEuEaH 6 AL LRESAS
WERGBEEAEERR, FILERKEE—EHEREESE

B RAE R A E R R B L b B WERFTF= £ AU E X B RO — D E BIREE A E5 BT
20,

EHER S

AL BIEELMARRAFNNSERTIF, SENSBREBIRANSHEREMIA
RTINS HR IREFMBETRLTUIEN LR, ERSRSATESIMR) . T
FHNBESRECHRERNAEHER, UREBHEENRKERNNE, RRERSTHIIEIE
EMEHAERENEMNIES, RNKEAESMIVIRERIEBNERRE, LISEGH
MK RS TEXK.
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30.

(c)

ERETPESIEIRAN
ZpiF 2021 £F 12 B 31 BLI-FEEESEE

T RNSHRLEBNLME (8)

TFRHG T AERARALNTNIFTESHARSITESHARTIRSHERORIRE LR, Z
FEMURELOTORIFUBERE (BELITAR Y (NEFR) BT REHARNAIERGE
FORIBTSR) LANASERAMAABTIATHIRF BRI,

SFLE
FeEE Mz iiE —&FA —ZHFA AEZE
F=ET F=£T FE5T F=E5T F=E5T
2021128318
RITHER 3,463,962 4,236,942 558,262 2,052,378 1,626,302
IEIRRS 323,081 524,129 18,267 73,454 432,408
Toi RS 4,395,251 4,770,558 833,615 3,935,821 1,122
RIfT 1 Eftbpr(t / EfbIEREn R 2,054,263 2,114,508 1,547,843 533,025 33,640
10,236,557 11,646,137 2,957,987 6,594,678 2,093,472
202012 H 31 H
RITEIRK 5,569,673 6,718,531 895,185 3,056,248 2,767,008
piziib sy 749,173 1,234,841 35,925 154,681 1,044,235
TR R 3,927,502 4,126,397 2,547,427 1,578,970 >
REfT 7 BftbRzft / EfthAERanta R 2,027,514 2,049,354 1,714,467 326,885 8,002
12,273,862 14,129,123 5,193,004 5,116,784 3,819,335
* FEEARRE g
i -c B -
FUSEUL =

FEFNFIRNEEEREKBER. AERAESFNIRZRES.

NERMESENFIRERSNNSTERRTEFER, F 2021 F 12 B 31 BRFFRIES
0.01% ~ 0.45% (2020 5 12 B 31 H: 0.01% ~ 2.30%) #EMRITERAR =B ERIEANE
HERAARNBENMmRE, AT REENEARNEYE, DRIREBLLRITFERESHK
.
SR T TR REFTEIGFIREHNSHONSRETNNE ., SRR EROANZRZETHE
25,

TEE SIS AR BRI EESGRANES, ISR BRI =) e .
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30.

(i)

(d)

EBHH R AR S

#41L 2021 FE 12 B 31 HILEEFRRE
M THRNSMRISEENARME (8E)
RISEAESE = T aan
TRER A RRRB SRR R ERNFEER :
2021 12 A31 4 2020 £12 531 4
BERUFE BERIFIE

% F=5T % F=T
ERFIRRMER
R R AR TR / HftbAERah iR 4.00% - 6.08% 265,306 3.00% - 8.00% 77,382
BRRAETR 2.60% - 5.65% 4,718,332 3.40% - 5.65% 4,676,675
TNFIREER
BRRAERR 1.42%-6.77% 3,463,962 1.29% - 6.77% 5,569,673
HRERRRSER 8,447,600 10,323,730
BRGNS ERSAE St 58.99% 46.05%
BRI

7£2021 512 B 31 H, SRR EF / T 50 MNER, ArEEMEERGAE, A5H
FeRIREG B RD / 1N£ 17,320,000 3555 (2020 6 12 B 31 H: 27,848,000 55T) .

BB E ST RIBBRIFIRTHTREPARCEAE, HENBTERITELERRFER
SMTE, AEFANREHRATFIEURSGSPESNEMERIBLSEILSTER), BSEE
ERTIREFRRIEARMEFRRENG. BAERTRERRFENZNFFRITETEM™
SNUESREFIRNEFENS, AEFANRESHRETIE URGEENENRMENRERD AT
2R, RETEFERFERTHNFIESSZHEM NN EL &, A EotTEig 2020
F 12 B 31 HNE—EHE#H1T.

Y7l i

AEFRTASZNETREEERFELSONDTHNARMIKIIRE. WENRESFN. S
MR, MK, IERBAERRITHERIOLRRSZ. FrigsthESXERZHRRNSSIIEE
BEHLOMIET. 5IBuXFXEAYE T EEEREST.

SHFLUONBHN MRS 0R, AERBIEVERLARMECELSEIND, MRGEHX
P R IFER IR REUKE, RIS E IR, EREARMTEDNTRS, REE
EEEIANZE LRNMAS T CERIRMAEENR,
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30.

()

B PES R ERANE
BELF 2021 £E 12 5 31 FHIEFERE SHeE

M T RSB fME (88
EEmXIBERI

TRFRF A FIRE AR LMBR SRR SR AN S I HERN B R 2 R R4
AOBSRBS IO, RUBGER iR & B HARDRR R oS Tit TH R .

2021 £ 2020 £
12 531 H 12831 H
— 4_ . FET F=
EHK RS ' 1,016,469 623 641
WERNESEND 87,035 111,751
IR Bt R WIFRIT 49,021 40,262
VAN N2 G AR (6,284) (7,383)
G EIWSA TN e (1,898,726) (3,273,691)
IR B ] A VB (752485)  (2,505,420)
AT IERRANFEECER:
SELTT HREFIHFRIE S
2021 2020 2021 2020
Er ARHICE 6.4534 6.9003 6.3757 6.5249
RS HT

TR T FREGERRAEETSARTIHE 5%0Y, AERANGRRFERGSNERMER
PRARBENER. AOFRRETE-RERE RESEATRERIINNICERES), FTREA
SERRLATZHFENSHTREDNE, BREHEMMTERER TRENER) RISFE.

2021 4 2020 Z£

12 531 H 12531 H

Tt FEr1

=TT (37,624) (125,271)

BIRFrAHEMISEREIAE, H55TE 12 B 31 BYARHRE 5%, WFLERESHE
BERIENIERISERIRE.
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30.

(e)

B SRR IR, S
Zb1F 2021 £E12 F 31 FIFEGEH RS

U T RO EEMASME (38)

LA ESRESTRRISCETIRSHREGINENHE, FENATERIERERTIRERH
KB NFEAERFBIND NGNS TE (BEAEEALBELRRARERAIIRES
BAMY S IHER M FFIRIER) - Z9 T ASEUARERRFIR EHRERIMEENT
SIREFAZENER, ZOHTRIR 2020 F 12 B 31 BHNE—E&H#T.

B

FEFEH =R EHATRBRIIRE R P EERITESHRFEENAARMETEBEREE
It NEft A WERIERET™ (RaEEE), BEEtt EhASRRIERBIFRLIARMNE
THEBRTHTASIIRENEHET (2REMNE 18) . AEFAN EHREERYINESFE2
fr, ESESREAREBIESRAM EH. FERRES BRI e IR th
W AIEIRRIASIEL R ASFNRNEERE, (FHWASIEESLSRIEBSHIRE, REFR
B EFESAKEEIKED, ERUAHEESRISRASSIUFEN EHIRE, Feks
BIEHENESHETE. RMKBRETNE—L iR AR R = ET AT
TSRS RERFIRE DR,

£ 2021 55 12 A 31 B, EiHEXERTHIER @ LHREMS) S1En 5% (2020 £ 12 3 31
H: 5%) , MFFEEMEEHEAE, SELSHAKANHNTIE FEERE) LhES
WapIE {th4E A ERD 1R INLA &8

—— < d 2021 £ 2020 £F
S 125318 12531 H
F5E5T F=T

Hh{<HIR & 57,386 23,471

RFFERMITERRFIFAE, EEXRTHIESIE 12 A 31 BT 5%, N3 LSS
BERSFT LREMEFERTSERIFM.

DI ESRESHTEY, AERNHEFIE (REBRIE) REGafEaE a5 ERRTHEEE
HtttB X XL E TR SRR CHT ML I, FENBTFEHMITEARERATREHE
A EREARERFERN KGNS TR, ZoTTMRIRAEFRNGEIR BN A RN ESR
EEXRRHIEENIGEENARIEEXATNES), BAEFANAMHHESRISERA~SE)
BRIETHESERMIERNICER TEATIHRMRARE, MATBRMTENERIAZE. ZoheE
£ 2020 £ 12 B 31 QNE—E1HEH#T,

103



30. ERITRAYERRPEEEMASMIE (52)

()

LGHE R

BRanihETBRNSRE R ARE

NIMERR

B E R EIR A
2L1F 2021 ££12 B 31 Hil GEE 5 0E%E

TREJAEBRTREPREEEEEMITBENSMTREARME. ZFEMTETIAA (&
BUSHREENE 13 5 - QAANETER) FIREN=ALANERR. FEESRIATHEE
FEFRBNBNENTMREENEEYE, NRELARNMET EEFMIABRNER.

o F—ERME: NERF—ERBNE EMEREHARTITEEBEERHRINARER
IR tEARINE

o FTERMNE: ERRESE—ERTURBANERFM, ERE_ERBNENTERE
ARATMBMNERITBRARME. FINRBNEISTEIRNDHIHE

&

o BEERGE: REEAFTUEBNERITEARMNE

AfciHEHEERG

ERAB
Hitk e
- X EHARRHE
- WE EFR AR AR A

KftETEERS

BRIA
Btk Hpieds
- X LT AR S
- MIE_E A TIMAAEE R

F12H31H
LR0MHE
2021

FET

1,147,717
1,189,147

F12H31H
LA

2020
F=T

469,427
1,655,919

104

F2021 12 A31 F13F

LUFER LR e ETE
FER EER FEER
F=T FER FET
1,147,717 5
1,189,147

F2020 F12 531 FI9E

WUFERZAHNETETE
FER EoER BE=ER
F=T FER F=T
469,427 2
1,655,919



ESHr A EE R E R S
ZL1E 2021 £ 12 F 31 HIHFEBEERE

30 TRTHNSHMRISSENARME (SE)

B 2021 % 1 B 1 BE 2021 £ 12 B 31 QIEFE, £ —SE_ERZEHTHIMETAR
hEE®. AEEAXNRIMESIRRNBIRAR., FURIRIRNBIRAE. PERFEYIRRYD
BPFRAEFN Linklogis Financial Holdings Inc. BUBRRIRE, EHENES Eh, BE=BRIFXTF
F—FR (B20205F 18 1BE20205F 12 B 31 BIEFE: %) . AEEANBERNERSH
HIRERZ A H ISR RN 3R 4.

e EAT A E #EXE
PUE (N iy s/ -1 %0 mgiE Pl (IS 0% - 50%
I EHARIRIRBURE A k2R S 17.2x
X EHABRIBRBURE A R 12x

I EFRRBUR B ARMMERBRAEZFITIRERE. (ERAANERS, R EHRBIRERY
Wio5&dE. RAMmmER, FEMRBUTERNQRMMEHEERT EHATRHERNIhLER
RNQEMEE, FARERMENRETERE, AniESHaErnETERREx.

) / 2021 £F 2020 £
,._..;;::;;‘j:;- EENE— : 12531 H 12531 H
- FET FET
O [l nly s VN [HS)3423% 70
F1H1H 1,655,919 1,026,406
KR EE TR 193,550 872,940
P,z 2n NEC ) AT ) SRy 253,494 137,631
KFELE (640,894) (434,256)
BENREXN ELTINERRURE (292,243)
iCoeiRes 19,321 53,198
F12H31H 1,189,147 1,655,919
R EFFE R A E T RS 253,494 137,631

(i) FELARRMMETBREREF SRR

T 2021 5 12 B 31 B#0 2020 & 12 A 31 H, FEASMTEERMAESMRUANETE
HIKEINESRARINMEXEXER.
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BB R EIR A B
Bi1E 2021 ££12 F 31 HILFREIISRE

31. &

BEIREHAEARNFELT:

2021 £ 2020 £

12531 5 12 531 H

T35t SR=STE

FZATHEMB G R 345,158 422,716
BRITERIBERTHAF A H 724,242 1,493,469

32. XEEEARME

SRAXRERARNRREENL. IEFNEHENNAR. FATNFEZLE GLP Pte.
Ltd. FE T BRAAEFAND S A SRR S TR SEXIGERREBEARNS. FEED
RETELRNSAERMGERNOESERISHEXOBA, FEFRARMSRKETERE
A

ENEEHERNEEEEARNASEN—BD, TEEEARFIMUT:

2021 £ 2020 &£
F&5 Fz5
TH, ReRRNERHIREER 10,570 12,802
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LB R AR
#iLE 2021 FF 12 A 31 HILEEFRE

33. E|AXEAHIER

PSSR RMBU B IRERROREX S ERh, AEAEER ST RIS AR
REEERERTRS

2021 £ 2020 £E

FEr FE1
aEtiy
RFEIEERIIN 14,218 11,238
I BETREIN —_— 5 1,235 542
YV ETEEN —— 8,963 6,484
FREETRARA T e—— 1,604 4,290
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GLP China Holdings Limited
Year ended 31 December 2021

Directors’ Report

The directors submit herewith their annual report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Principal place of business

GLP China Holdings Limited (“the Company”) is a company incorporated and domiciled in
Hong Kong and has its registered office and principal place of business at 33/F, Edinburgh
Tower, The Landmark, 15 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities of the
Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) are investment holding, provision of logistic
facilities, fund management and solar energy business and internet data center business.
Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by Schedule 5 to the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, including a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group and an indication of likely future developments in the Group’s business, can
be found in the Business Review set out on pages 4 to 9 of this Annual Report. This
discussion forms part of this directors’ report.

Financial statements

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 and the state of the
Company'’s affairs as at that date are set out in the financial statements on pages 17 to 113.

Transfers to reserves and dividends

Profits attributable to owners of US$1,414,637,000 (2020: US$952,320,000) has been
transferred to reserves. Other movements in reserves are set out in the statement of
changes in equity.

Share capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out in note 23(a) to the
financial statements.
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Year ended 31 December 2021

Directors
The directors during the financial year were:

Mei, Ming Zhi

Higashi Michihiro

Zhuge Wenijing

Fang Fenglei

MOK Chi Ming

CHAU Kwok Man

Mark Tan

CHEN Rui Wei (appointed on 19 April 2021)

The following directors resigned after the end of the financial year:

CHAU Kwok Man (resigned on 8 February 2022)
CHEN Rui Wei (resigned on 8 February 2022)

There being no provision in the Company’s articles of association in connection with the
retirement of directors, all existing directors continue in office for the following year.

Indemnity of directors

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance) for the benefit of the directors of the Company is currently in force and was in
force throughout this year. :

Directors’ interest and short positions in shares, underlying shares and
debentures

As at 31 December 2021, certain directors of the Company had 347,150 numbers of global
shares in GLP China Fund Management Holdings Limited, a subsidiary of the Company (As
at 31 December 2020: 345,106 numbers of global shares). Apart from the foregoing, none
of the directors of the Company or any of their spouses or children under eighteen years of
age has interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company, or any of its holding company, subsidiaries or other associated corporations.

Directors’ interests in transactions, arrangements or contracts

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which the Company, or any of its
holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a director of
the Company had a material interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.
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Auditors
KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the

re-appointment of KPMG as audilors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeling.

By order of the board
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Date: 15 April 2022



GLP China Holdings Limited
Year ended 31 December 2021

Business Review

GLP China Holdings Limited (“GLP China”) is a leading global investment manager and
business builder in logistics, data infrastructure, renewable energy and related technologies.
Our combined investing and operating expertise allow us to create value for our customers
and investors.

GLP China is the investor, developer and operator of approximately 400 infrastructure
facilities in logistics and supply chain, manufacturing and research, data infrastructure and
renewable energy, across 70 cities in China. As a leading alternative asset manager, we
have US$72 billion in assets under management in China, including several real estate and
private equity funds with domestics and international investors and GLP C-REIT, one of the
first public offering of infrastructure REITs in China.

GLP China is an early mover in investing in technology and innovation to enhance its assets
and has built a highly competitive business ecosystem that enables our customers and
partners’ growth. Through private equity, fin-tech and business incubation platforms, GLP
China is leading the way in adopting and supporting the latest innovations that increase
operational efficiency and create value for our customers and investors.

Market overview

The domestic growing logistics markets provides us attractive opportunities for growth and
strengthening of market position, allows us to derive positive and stable cash flows and
recurring sources of capital for expansion.

- Stable development in logistics and warehousing industry: With a large and growing
middle-income population, China is becoming one of the world’s largest consumer
markets. Our portfolio comprises logistics, manufacturing and business park facilities
across 70 major cities in China. From expertly investing capital to efficiently operating
assets and building business, we take a bold and innovative approach to growth and
value creation for our customers and investors.

- Limited supply of logistics and warehousing facilities, in particular modern logistics and
warehousing facilities in China: We believe that China’s logistics and warehousing
industry, driven by changes in consumer behavior, population structure and technological
progress, is still in the early stage of long-term development period. We revolutionized the
modern logistics industry by taking an innovative and entrepreneurial approach.

- Growth of e-commerce in China: Online order sales have grown significantly as more and
more consumers shop online. The e-commerce industry, a portion of which we serve, has
grown significantly since year 2010. Covid-19 has accelerated the popularization of e-
commerce in China. We expect that the e-commerce business will continuously grow in
China, which drive the demand for the expansion of modern logistics and warehousing
facilities and increase the focus on the development of the facilities for last-mile deliveries.
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Market overview {continued)

Operations

GLP China owns and manages a portfolio of 49 million sgm site area across China with
completed GFA of 37 million sqm in total, valued at US$33 billion as at 31 December
2021. Our portfolio contains completed and stabilised properties valued at US$29 billion,
representing over 89% of total portfolio, shows a high lease rate of 84% and a high
occupancy ratio for of 81% as at 31 December 2021. Rental and related income has
reached US$1,011 million for the year ended 31 December 2021, compared to US$904
million for the year ended 31 December 2020 (hereinafter referred to as the “prior year”),
shown a slight increase despite the adverse impact driven from the decreased portfolio
relating to transfer of project companies into funds during the year. Besides, our net
increase in leased area reached 4.7 million sqm and we are keeping steady rental rate
increase over the whole period.

Being a leading provider of modern logistics and warehousing facilities in China offers us
cost efficiencies in terms of negotiating contraction contracts and facility management
contracts, and optimizing personal resources and information systems. Besides, we are
pioneering the creation of a comprehensive logistics ecosystem for the future by utilising
the latest technology and big data to provide solutions to its customers through the use of
automation and robotics, data analytics, software solutions and site selection tools, this
approach leverages technology and data, takes into account critical details of the supply
chain and offers both space and technology-led solutions that drive value for our
customers.

Development

The development of modern logistics facilities is one of our key engines of growth with
development profit a regular and recurring part of our earnings stream. In the current year
we completed US$1,649 million developments or 2.8 million GFA constructions (including
all the properties held by the funds under our management), showing an overall 19%
development margin, and achieved an overall stabilisation margin of 27%.

In China, land supply in key markets has continued to tighten. In recent years, it has been
extremely difficult to acquire logistics land from the government but we have been well-
placed given our local strategic relationships. Our strategy is to pursue scarce land
resources in cities through strategic partnerships with SOEs and private sellers.

Fund management

Our fund management business offers a fund management platform based on our
longstanding relationships with numerous global and domestics institutional investors and
our senior management’s extensive years of experience in private capital management.
As at 31 December 2021, we managed several third-party pooled investment vehicles,
comprised of: CLF Fund I, LP (“CLF I"), CLF Fund Il, LP (“CLF II”), GLP China Value-
Added Venture | (“CVA I’) and GLP China Value-Added Venture | (“CVA 1I”), Zhuhai
Hidden Hill Logistic Equity Investment Fund (“Hidden Hill Fund”), GLP China Income Fund
| (“CIF I"), GLP China Value-Add Venture Il ("CVA IlII"), GLP China Income Fund Il (“CIF
II”), GLP China Income Fund Il (“CIF 1lI"), CLF Fund Ill, LP (“CLF Ili") and GLP China
Income Fund IV (“CIF IV"), etc. These eleven funds represent in aggregate US$26 billion
assets under management (“AUM”) when fully leveraged and invested.
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Market overview (continued)

CIF Il was established in April 2021 and has RMB 5.8 billion (equivalent to US$0.9 billion)
AUM. CIF Il is seeded with a portfolio of 13 modern logistics assets in prime locations
across Yangtze River Delta, southern China and mid-western China.

CIF 1l was established in July 2021 and has RMB 4.5 billion (equivalent to US$0.7 billion)
AUM. CIF lll invest in stabilised, income-generating industrial and logistics park assets
catering to growing high-tech and innovation based manufacturing industries aligned with
China’s economic growth initiatives.

CLF Il was established in September 2021 and has US$5 billion AUM to develop the next
generation of modern and environmentally-friendly logistics facilities in China, including
smart warehouses with integrated technologies to meet evolving customer requirements.

CIF IV was established in November 2021 and has RMB 5.4 billion (equivalent to US$0.8
billion) AUM. CIF IV invests in logistics infrastructures in 10 important logistics nodes, all
of which are modern logistics assets with high standards that have been completed and
are in stable operation.

Financial review

Rental and related income increased by 15% to US$1,011 million (2020: US$879 miillion),
which was primarily attributable to the rental rate growth and lease-up following the
completion and stabilization of development projects, but partially offset by the transfer of
project companies to non-consolidated fund during the current year.

Property-related and other business expenses increased by 37% to US$381.5 million (2020:
US$279.0 million), which was mainly due to the higher property maintenance costs with the
increased property portfolio and the development of freezer services and the internet data
center business. Other expenses increased by 47% to US$299.8 million (2020: US$203.4
million), primarily due to the increase in staff related expenses.

Changes in fair value of investment properties increased by 83% to US$973.4 million (2020:
US$532.8 million), primarily attributable to more completion of developments with higher
development margin and the cap rate compression in certain locations under the prevailing
market environment.

Share of results of associates increased to US$501.3 million (2020: US$194.1 million),
primarily contributed by our investment on Hidden Hill Fund and GLP Jianfa (Xiamen)
Investment Fund.

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries increased to US$552.7 million (2020: US$314.5 million),
primarily attributable to gains on seed assets transferred to GLP C-REIT and certain GLP
managed funds in 2021,

The net profit for the year increased by 50% to US$1,885.5 miillion (2020: US$1,253.5
million). The increase is mainly contributed by the new business exploration and investments
while our core business on development and management of logistic facilities keeps strong
and growing. With sticking to our business strategy and our intelligent and experienced team,
we believe we can continue to provide customers with high quality and best-in-class new
infrastructure facilities, together with integrated technical solutions in China, which will
consistently drive our AUM growth in China.
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Financial review (continued)

We have implemented prudential financial management policies that have enabled us to
maintain a good credit profile, disciplined investment approach and strong balance sheet with
sustainable growth. We benefit from accessing to diversified and multi-channel financing
solutions including but not limited to bilateral loans, syndicated loans, capital markets, funds
and other borrowings and equity. As at 31 December 2021, we have a total debt of US$8.4
billion (2020: US$10.3 billion) representing a decrease of 18%, net debt of US$7.7 billion
(2020: US$9.1 billion) representing a decrease of 15%, and net debt to asset (excluding
cash) ratio of 22.87% (2020: 29.00%), respectively.

Risk management

We place an extremely high importance on risk management. We believe that risk
management is not just about minimizing downside risk, but also enabling us to take on the
necessary risks to grow and create value. We are committed to fostering a strong risk-centric
culture which encourages identification and proactive management of these risks.

The process of risk management is incorporated into day-to-day operations and forms an
integral part of all decision-making processes with GLP China.

For example, our operation in China is naturally exposed to foreign exchange rate
fluctuations, and our pre-tax profit is exposed to currency risks through sales and purchases
which give rise to receivables, payables and cash balances denominated in foreign
currencies, primarily United States dollars. In respect of the monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies, we ensure that the net exposures to this risk is kept to an
acceptable level by monitoring the currency gap and keep reducing our exposure by holding
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies in short-term period.

We are also exposed to interest rate risk arising primarily from variable-rate borrowings and
cash balances. We manage the net exposure to interest rate risks by maintaining sufficient
lines of credit to obtain acceptable lending costs and by monitoring the exposure to such
risks on an ongoing basis.

Individual operating entities within GLP China are responsible for their own cash
management, including the short-term investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans
to cover expected cash demands. Our policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements
and its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash and adequate committed lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.
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Environmental social and governance

We are deeply invested in fuelling the businesses that make the modern world run more
efficiently. From expertly investing capital to efficiently operating our businesses, we take a
thoughtful, innovative and sustainable approach to growth and value creation for our
customers and investors. We focus on investing and building businesses in logistics, data
infrastructure, renewable energy and related technologies.

Our ESG Policy is designed to support our progress in developing ESG commitments, better
integrate ESG into our overall business and investment decisions and monitor and report on
our commitments. We are committed to making sustainability a core component of our
business in order to build a more sustainable and resilient future.

Building business and investing responsibility means embedding ESG into our investment
and decision-making process. This helps us to identify and avoid ESG risks. We understand
and identify how our activities can impact material ESG factors and how these can affect our
reputation, capital value and stakeholders. We focus on how we can best manage our
workforce, whether it is our employees or contractors and suppliers. We recognize how we
can work with the communities where we invest and operate business and how we can
enhance our presence through economic development, limiting our environmental impact
and seeking a community’s license to operate.

ESG also is considered after the development, acquisition or investment decision. Our teams
across investment management, asset management and corporate management are
empowered to prioritise, act, track and monitor the sustainability performance of our assets
and in certain instances collaborate with our workforce, partners and communities.
Consistent ESG performance across an asset’s lifestyle helps us to actively manage the
sustainability of assets.

As a leading global investment manager and business builder, our mission is to build
sustainable businesses and generate attractive risk-adjusted returns to shareholders and
investors over the long term, while providing exceptional investment and operational services
that enhance value. Our asset management teams are responsible for enhancing the value
of our assets through effective operations.

Additionally, we develop and invests in technologies and innovations that enhance the
efficiency of our assets including data analytics, robotics, automated clearance systems,
digital loading docks, smart sorting, telematics, energy-efficient fleet management systems,
Internet of Things, resource conservation and our transition to renewable energy.

To provide our global customers with increased opportunities to enhance their sustainability
endeavours, we focus on sustainability initiatives that increase resource conservation,
leverage climate action, improve health and well-being and support local communities in
corporate governance, we have established a series of well-defined policies and processes
to protect its stakeholders’ interests. Our leadership team recognizes the importance of
strong corporate governance and the maintenance of high standards of accountability to our
shareholders and remains firmly committed to seeing that those standards are satisfied
through an evolving suite of governance practices that are woven into the fabric of the our
business.



GLP China Holdings Limited
Year ended 31 December 2021

Environmental social and governance (continued)

We continually review and refine its processes in light of best practice, consistent with the
needs and circumstances of the group. We maintain a zero-tolerance approach to bribery
and corruption and require all management and employees to comply with our Code of
Business Conduct at all times and provide annual certification.

We aim to incorporate health and well-being throughout its organization and assets in
support of its employees, customers and the communities in which we work. By focusing on
promoting well-being we can enhance an individual’s livelihood, increase motivation and
productivity as well as bring communities together. We focus on introducing well-being
concepts such as creating spaces that encourage physical activity, integrating natural
lighting, improving access to nature and providing areas for healthy eating and socializing.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of

GLP China Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of GLP China Holdings Limited (“the
Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 17 to 113, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated cash flow statement for the year ended 31 December 2021 and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2021 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2021
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”)
issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements
as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of

GLP China Holdings Limited (continued)
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Key audit matters (continued)

Valuation of investment properties

Refer to note 11 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on note 2(j).

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had
a significant portfolio of investment
properties with respect to logistics and
warehousing facilities located in
Mainland China with a carrying amount
of US$ 15,269 million, representing 44%
of the Group’s total assets.

These investment properties are stated
at their fair values with reference to the
valuation performed by external property
valuers, with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss. The
valuation results are sensitive to key
assumptions and parameters such as
terminal yield rate, capitalisation rate and
discount rate.

We identified valuation of investment
properties as a key audit matter because
the valuation involves significant
judgment in determining the appropriate
valuation methodologies to be used, and
in estimating the underlying assumptions
and parameters to be applied.

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of
investment properties included the following:

obtaining an understanding of the Group’s process of,
and assessing the design and implementation of the
key internal controls over determining the fair value of
investment properties;

obtaining and inspecting the valuation reports
prepared by the external property valuers engaged by
management on which the directors’ assessment of
the fair values of investment properties was based,

assessing the external property valuers’ qualifications,
experience and expertise in the properties being
valued and considering their objectivity;

with the assistance of our internal valuation specialist,
assessing the appropriateness of the valuation
methodologies with reference to the prevailing
accounting standards and the appropriateness of the
key assumptions and parameters adopted by the
external valuers by comparing these assumptions
against historical rates and available industry and
market data, taking into consideration comparability
and other factors;

comparing significant input data used in the valuation
to supporting documentation, on a sample basis, and

assessing the appropriateness of the disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements in respect of
valuation of investment properties with reference to
the requirements of prevailing accounting standards.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of

GLP China Holdings Limited (continued)
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Key audit matters (continued)

Accounting for interests in limited liability partnerships

Refer to notes 12, 13 and 14 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on

note 2(d) and 2(f).

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Group holds interests in limited
liability partnerships and acts as the
general partner of these partnerships as
part of its business model. These
partnerships are formed to invest in and
operate various types of assets and
businesses. Based on management
analysis of the respective partnership’s
governance structure and decision-
making mechanism, the Group’s ability
to control or influence the significant
decisions of the partnership, and the
level and variability of the Group’s
returns, the Group determines whether it
should account for interests in these
partnerships as subsidiaries, associates
or joint ventures.

We identified accounting for interests in
limited liability partnerships as a key
audit matter because the governance
structure and decision-making
mechanism of these partnerships vary
and significant judgement is involved in
assessing Group’s ability to control or
exerclse signlficant influence over the
significant decisions of these
partnerships and the degree of linkage
between the Group’s decision-making
abilities and returns, which could lead to
different accounting treatment and
different financial statement
presentation.

Our audit procedures to assess the appropriateness of
accounting for interests in limited liability partnerships
included the following:

obtaining an understanding of the Group’s process of
classifying and accounting for equity interest in each
limited liability partnership, understanding the
purpose and design of each limited liability
partnership and its relevant activities;

assessing management’s analysis of the relevant
activities of limited liability partnerships that affect the
financial returns, as well as the Group’s ability to
control or exercise significant influence over the
relevant activities that significantly affect the Group’s
financial returns;

inspecting legal and contractual documents and
evaluating whether the decision-making mechanism
as well as the scope of decisions where general
partner and limited partners of these limited liability
partnerships are empowered to make are consistent
with the Group’s analysis;

assessing whether the Group’s classification and
accounting for interests in limited liability partnerships
are appropriate with reference to the prevailing
accounting standards; and

assessing the appropriateness of disclosures and
presentation in the consolidated financial statements
in respect of the interests in limited liability
partnerships with reference to requirements of
prevailing accounting standards.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of

GLP China Holdings Limited (continued)
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Key audit matters (continued)

Valuation of unquoted equity investments

policies on note 2(h).

Refer to notes 18 and 30(f) to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting

The key audit matter
At 31 December 2021, the Group
held a portfolio of unquoted equity
instruments of US$1,189 million. The
fair value of these unquoted equity
investments is measured at Level 3
of the fair value hierarchy.

The fair value of the Group’s
unquoted equity investments is
derived from valuation models with
unobservable inputs and estimates,
which involve significant
management judgement and
estimation.

We identified valuation of unquoted
equity investments as a key audit
matter because of the degree of
complexity involved in valuing these
unquoted equity investments and
because of the significant degree of
judgment exercised by management
in determining the valuation models
to be used and the inputs and
assumptions used in the valuation
models.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of
unquoted equity investments included the following:

obtaining an understanding of the Group’s
process of, and assessing the design and
implementation of the key internal controls over
determining the valuation of unquoted equity
investments;

with the assistance of our internal valuation
specialists, on a sample basis, assessing the
appropriateness of the valuation models with
reference to the prevailing accounting standards
and the key inputs and assumptions adopted in
the valuation models by comparing these inputs
and assumptions with market data derived from
comparative companies or comparative
transactions, or other publicly available
information;

comparing, on a sample basis, investees’
financial data adopted in the valuation models to
their respective financial statements; and

assessing the appropriateness of the disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements in
respect of the valuation of unquoted equity
investments with reference to the requirements
of prevailing accounting standards.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of

GLP China Holdings Limited (continued)
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Information other than the consolidated financial statements and auditor’s
report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all
the information included in the annual report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for
assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of

GLP China Holdings Limited (continued)
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
(continued)

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material f,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of

GLP China Holdings Limited (continued)
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
(continued)

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Alex M
K Shum.

< m 6—

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

Date: 15 April 2022
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GLP China Holdings Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2021

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
Notes 2021 2020
Us$000 US$’000
Revenue 4 1,273,512 1,149,124
Other income 5] 341,380 195,512
Cost of goods sold and other financial services
costs (3,881) (125,743)
Property-related and other business expenses (381,534) (279,087)
Other expenses (299,807) (203,414)
Changes in fair value of investment properties 973,433 532,835
Share of results (net of tax expense) of joint
ventures 164,047 73,508
Share of results (net of tax expense) of
associates 501,336 194,043
Profit from operations 2,568,486 1,536,778
Finance costs =N 6 (501,954) (457,018)
Finance income \ 6 98,519 304,365
Net finance costs 6 (403,435) (152,653)
Gain on acquisition of subsidiaries 29 19,477 80
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 29 552,697 314,400
Gain on disposal of investment properties 13,642 -
Gain on disposal of assets held for sale - 92,320
Profit before taxation 7 2,750,867 1,790,925
Tax expense 8 (865,333) (537,469)
Profit for the year 1,885,534 1,253,456
Profit attributable to:
Owners of the Company 1,414,637 952,320
Non-controlling interests 470,897 301,136
Profit for the year 1,885,534 1,253,456
. -
e

The notes on pages 26 to 113 form part of these financial statements.
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GLP China Holdings Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
Note 2021 2020
UsS$'000 UsS$’000
Profit for the year 1,885,534 1,253,456
Other comprehensive income for the year 10
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or
loss:
Surplus on revaluation of buildings held for
own use carried at fair value 5,024 3,425
Change in fair value of other investments 115,480 27,074
Disposal of other investments - 53,299
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising from
consolidation of foreign operations 429,019 1,023,341
Share of other comprehensive income of joint
ventures and associates 4,565 (3,718)
Other comprehensive income for the year 554,088 1,103,421
Total comprehensive income for the year 2,439,622 2,356,877
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the Company 1,844,570 1,750,169
Non-controlling interests 595,052 606,708
Total comprehensive income for the year 2,439,622 2,356,877

The notes on pages 26 to 113 form part of these financial statements.
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GLP China Holdings Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

as at 31 December 2021

Non-current assets

Investment properties

Joint ventures

Associates

Deferred tax assets

Propenrty, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Other investments

Other non-current assets

Current assets
Trade and other receivables

Assets classified as held for sale
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Share capital

Reserves

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

31 December

31 December

Notes 2021 2020
US$'000 US$'000

11 15,269,504 21,380,459
13 3,080,404 2,090,883
14 2,811,647 1,799,882
15 24,657 21,455
16 823,082 348,530
17 316,716 309,790
18 2,336,864 2,125,346
19 716,633 778,399
25,379,507 28,854,744

20 2,889,843 1,573,419
21 5,532,665 1,166,970
22 716,941 1,160,752
9,139,449 3,901,141
34,518,956 32,755,885

23 6,950,825 6,950,825
24 7,278,443 5,432,846
14,229,268 12,383,671

5,627,871 5,176,090

19,857,139 17,559,761

The notes on pages 26 to 113 form part of these financial statements,
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GLP Ching Holdings Limited
Financial statemants for the year ended 31 December 2021

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2021 (continued)

31 December 31 December

Notes 2021 2020
US$'000 Us$'000

Non-current liabllities
Loans and borrowings 25 7,095,801 7,096,129
Deferred tax liabilities 15 1,751,698 2,455,806
Other non-current liabilities 26 500,368 o 317,337
9,347,867 9.869,272

Current liabilities

Loans and borrowings 25 1,086,493 3,150,219
Trade and other payables 27 1,591,910 1,761,374
Current tax payable 158,889 95,758
Liabilities classified as held for sale 21 2.476,658 329,501
5,313,950 5,326,852_
Total liabllitles ' \E: 14,661,817 15,196,124
Total equity and liabilities : 34,518,956 32,755,885

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 15 April 2022.
0

A

Direcior Director

The notes on pages 26 to 113 form part of these financial statements.

20



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 31 December 2021

GLP China Holdings Limited
Financlal statements for the year ended 31 December 2021

Falr valua Total
Capital and Equfty Curmency Property reserve aftributable Non-
Share  PRC stalulory (non- Other Relained to awners of controling Tolal
capital reserve reserve r8S6rve Bserve e86rVe eamings the Compeny Interests equily
uUs$'oo0 us$'000 uss$'o00 us$'o00 Us$'000 US$'000 us$'go0 Us$'000 Us$'000 uss'o00 Us$'000
Al1 January 2020 8,850,826 {8,331) 36,849 (847,682) 3,305 32,854 (1,554,630} 6,452,085 11,085275 3,762,461 14,827,738
Total comprehensive Income for the year
Profil tor the year 852,320 852,320 301,138 1,253,456
Other comprehensive Income
Exchangs differences ariaing from consolidation of
foreign operallons 717,769 - 717,768 305,572 1,023,341
Changas In falr valua of other Invastmente 27,074 27,074 27,074
Disposal of other Investments = 63,208 53,200 53 200
Share of other comprahensive Income of oint vantures - (3,718) - (3,718) (3718)
Surplus on revaluation of bulldinga heid for own use
carnrled et falr value 3,425 3,426 3425
Tolal other comprehenaive income . {3,718) 717,768 3425 BU,373 707,849 308,872 1,103,421
Total comprehensive Income for the ysar 3,718) 717,768 3,425 80,373 . 852,320 1,750,188 608,708 2,350,877
Transactions with owners, recorded directly In equily
Capltal conlribution from non-controlliing Interasta 715,084 716,084
Acqulsition of Interests In subsidiaries from
non-controlling Inferests - {1,320} (1,320) (18,131) (17 451)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 29) 183 240 163 240
Disposal of subskdlary (note 26) - (80 745) (80.745)
Tax-axempl dividends pald (Extemal) {430,453) (430,453) - 1430 453)
Dividends pald lo non-controlling Interests. . {14,527) {14.627)
Transfer {0 reserves 17,207 {17,207) .
Total contrisutionn by ane distribiutions 1o cwnemns 16,887 (447,860) (431,773) 808,021 375,148
Al 31 Dacember 2020 8,850,626 3,838 38,840 (120,613) 8,730 113,227 {1,654,630) 8,858,745 12,383,671 5,176,080 17,550,761

The notes on pages 26 to 113 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 31 December 2021

At 1 January 2021

Total comprehensive Income for tha year
Profil for Lhe year

Other comprehenalve income

Exchange differences arising from consofidation of
foreign operations

Changas In falr value of other investments

Surplue on revalualion of bulidings held for awn use
canied a falr value

Share of other comprehensive Income of jolnl venlures
Shere of other comprehensive Incoms of assoclates
Total other comprehensive Income

Total comprehensive Income for Lhe year

Transacilons with owners, recorded diractly In equity

Capital contribution from non-controlling Interests

Capita! reduction from non-controlfing Intereats

Other adjustment

Transfer to reserves

Acquisltion of Inlereats In subsidlaries trom
non-conltrolling Interests

Acquiellion of subsidiaries (nole 28)

Disposal of subsldlarles (nols 26)

Disposal of Inleresl In subsldlaries 10 minorily Interests.

Dividends pald (o non-controlling Interests
Total contributhans by and distributions 1o ewnemn

Al 31 December 2021

GLP China Holdings Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021

The notes on pages 26 to 113 form part of these financial statements.

22

Fair value Tolal
Capital and Equity Currency Propeity RS attributable Non-
Shere  PRC stalutory y (non- Other Relained to owners of conlroling Tolat
capital eserve oo reserve res6/ve recyciing) eserve eamir the Company interesis equity
Us$'o00 us$'a00 USED00 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us§'000 Us$'000 us$'000 Us$'ooo Uss'o00
8,050,825 3,838 36,840 (128,813) 8,730 113,227 {1,554,830) 8,850,745 12,383,671 5,176,000 17,559,761
1,414,637 1,414,637 470,887 1,885,534
304,884 . 1 124,155 420019
- 115,480 115480 - 115.480
6,024 5,024 5,024
13.238) = (3,238) o (3,238)
7,601 = - 7.801 8 7,801
4,585 304,864 5,024 115,480 429,833 124,155 554,088
4,565 304,864 5,024 115,480 1,414,637 1,844,570 585,052 2,439,822
467,544 457,544
(244,580) (244,589)
. (85,033) (85,033)
69,595 (89,505) .
(1,188) (1,186) (223,858) (225,044)
- - . 100,374 100,374
{11,754) - (11,754) {727,036) (738,780)
13,967 \ 638,517
- (35,223) (35,223)
82,370 (11,754) - (69,585) 1.027 (143,271) (142,244)
9,850,825 60,779 38,849 174,051 228707 (1,554,630) 8,201,787 14,229,208 5,627,671 19,857,138




Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 31 December 2021

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before taxation

Adjustments for:

Amortisation of intangible assets

Amortisation of deferred management costs

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Gain on acquisition/disposal of subsidiaries

Gain on disposal of associates

Gain on disposal of investment properties

Share of results (net of tax expense) of joint ventures

Share of results (net of tax expense) of associates

Changes in fair value of investment properties

Changes in fair value of financial assets

Impairment loss on trade and other receivables

Other expense

Net finance costs

Dividend income

Other income from disposal of investments in
associates and financial assets

Changes in working capital:
Trade and other receivables
Trade and other payables

Cash generated from operations
Tax paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

GLP China Holdings Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
US$'000 US$'000
2,750,867 1,790,925
1,369 1,624
133 124
28,137 22,604
(138) 1,030
(572,174) (406,800)
(7,360) -
(13,642) -
(164,047) (73,508)
(501,336) (194,043)
(973,433) (5632,835)
(288,301) (155,069)
993 12,387
44 587 -
403,435 152,653
(14,199) -
- (8,647)
694,891 610,445
(669,592) (1,106,929)
740,490 1,078,532
765,789 582,048
(150,973) (94,582)
614,816 487,466

The notes on pages 26 to 113 form part of these financial statements.
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GLP China Holdings Limited

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

for the year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisitions of subsidiaries, net of cash
acquired

Disposals of subsidiaries, net of cash disposed

Capital contribution to joint ventures

Acquisition of associates

Capital contribution to associates

Dividends received from joint ventures

Dividends received from associates

Payment for purchase of property, plant and
equipment

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and
equipment

Proceeds from disposal of other investments

Payment for purchase of other investments

Proceeds from disposal of associates and joint
ventures

Withholding tax paid on disposal gain, dividend
and interest income from subsidiaries

Acquisition of intangible assets

Proceeds from sale of investment properties

Development expenditure on investment
properties

Deposit paid for acquisition of investment
properties

Refund of deposits placed for other investments

Loans to joint ventures

Loans to associates

Loans to non-controlling interests

Loans to third parties

Loan to intermediate holding company

Loan to fellow subsidiaries

Loan repayment from jointly ventures

Loan repayment from associates

Loan repayment from non-controlling interests

Loan repayment from third parties

Loan repayment from fellow subsidiaries

Interest income received

Net cash used in investing activities

Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
Note 2021 2020
Us$'000 US$'000
29 (957,490) (299,500)
29 4,224,412 2,432,012
(756,503) (773,393)
- (926,810)
(785,650) (929,301)
10,850 -
55,306 2,968
(205,036) (87,910)
1,033 1,282
7,704 422,325
(393,210) (225,302)
110,117 5,576
(219,850) (148,059)
s (18)
8,644 -
(1,279,504) (1,082,681)
(116,929) (20,174)
- 11,522
(43,592) (528,759)
(48,313) (23,058)
(7,243) (49,503)
(349,419) (60,315)
(753,760) -
(68,135) -
72,136 136,228
94,453 305,997
41,293 7,350
275,595 146,359
68,135 -
61,470 34,092
(953,486) (1,649,072)

The notes on pages 26 to 113 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

for the year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)
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Note
Cash flows from financing activities

Capital contribution from non-controlling interests
Capital reduction from non-controlling interests
Deposits received from issue of co-invest

shares
Repayment of loans from intermediate holding

company 22(b)
Proceeds of loans from non-controlling interests  22(b)
Repayment of loans from non-controlling

interests 22(b)
Proceeds of loans from joint ventures 22(b)
Repayment of loans from joint ventures 22(b)
Repayment of loans from associates 22(b)
Repayment of loans from third parties 22(b)
Proceeds from bank loans 22(b)
Repayment of bank loans 22(b)
Proceeds from issue of bonds 22(b)
Repayment of bonds 22(b)
Interest paid ~22(b)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests i .
Acquisition of interests in subsidiaries from

non-controlling interests
Proceeds from disposal of interests in

subsidiaries to non-controlling interests
Cash payments for principal portion of lease

liabilities 22(b)
Cash payments for interest portion of lease

liabilities 22(b)
Net cash generated from financing activities
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash

equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash

balances held in foreign currencies
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 22

GLP China Holdings Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
UsS$'000 Us$’000
457.544 626,175
(244,589) =
4,398 -
- (451,554)
- 8,849
(10,202) (10,672)
- 31,111
B (59,639)
- (51,090)
(637) (3,990)
6,713,692 5,633,415
(6,829,248) (4,292,235)
2,751,731 599,999
(2,633,904) (30,285)
(500,670) (488,279)
(35,223) (14,527)
(220,286) (17,451)
638,517 -
(14,400) (4,622)
(6,852) (3,231)
69,871 1,471,974
(268,799) 310,368
1,222,062 859,715
10,186 51,979
963,449 1,222,062

The notes on pages 26 to 113 form part of these financial statements.
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Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021

Notes to the Financial Statements

General information

The Company was set up in Hong Kong on 15 October 2013 by CLH Limited, a subsidiary of
GLP Pte. Ltd. which was incorporated in the Republic of Singapore (“Singapore”).

CLH Limited and Global Logistic Properties Holding Limited (“GLPH Limited”), two Cayman
incorporated companies, are intermediate holding vehicles 100% owned by GLP Limited.
CLH Limited holds its shares in project companies incorporated in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC") through various intermediate offshore holding companies incorporated in
Barbados, Singapore and Hong Kong. GLPH Limited holds its shares in GLP Investment
(Shanghai) Co. Ltd. (“CMC”), a management company incorporated in the PRC, through two
intermediate holding companies, China Management Holding Srl, incorporated in Barbados,
and China Management Holdings (Hong Kong) Limited, incorporated in Hong Kong.

In October 2013, subsequent to the establishment of the Company, GLP China Asset
Holdings Limited (former name “lowa China Asset Holdings (Hong Kong) Limited”) (“China
Asset Holdco”) was then established as a direct subsidiary of the Company. GLP HK
Holdings Limited (“HK Holding Platform”) and GLP SG Holdings Pte. Ltd. (“SG Holding
Platform”) were then established as subsidiaries of China Asset Holdco.

On 20 May 2014, certain intermediate offshore holding companies incorporated in
Singapore, together with their subsidiaries and joint ventures were transferred to SG Holding
Platform, and the rest of the intermediate offshore holding companies incorporated in
Barbados, Singapore and Hong Kong, together with their subsidiaries and joint ventures
were then transferred to HK Holding Platform. On the same date, GLPH Limited transferred
its shares in China Management Holding Srl to the Company.

Subsequent to the reorganisation mentioned above (the “Reorganisation”), the Company
owns subsidiaries and joint ventures indirectly through offshore immediate holding
companies. As part of the Reorganisation, the Company introduced new investors Khangai
Company Limited, Khangai Il Company Limited, GLP Associate (I) Limited and GLP
Associate (I1) LLC. CLH Limited’s percentage of interest in the Company was reduced to
66.2%.

Significant accounting policies
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRSs), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(HKASSs) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (HKICPA) and accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed below.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first effective or available
for early adoption for the current accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note
2(c) provides information on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the
current and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 comprise the
Group and the Group’s interests in associates and joint ventures.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is the historical
cost basis except that the following assets and liabilities are stated at their fair value as
explained in the accounting policies set out below:

- equity investments (see note 2(h)); and
- investment properties (see note 2(j)).

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale are stated at the lower of carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell (see note 2(z)).

The functional currency of the Company is Chinese Renminbi Yuan (“RMB”). These financial
statements are presented in United States dollars (“USD”) and rounded to the nearest
thousand. All financial information presented in USD has been translated based on the
accounting policy set out in note 2(x).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs that have significant effect

on the financial statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in
note 3.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Changes in accounting policies

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA to
these financial statements for the current accounting period:

o Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16, Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform-Phase 2
¢ Amendment to HKFRS 16, Covid-19-related rent concessions beyond 30 June 2021

Other than the amendment to HKFRS 16, the Group has not applied any new
standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current accounting period. There is
no significant impact after adopting these amendments.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated financial statements from
the date that control commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances,
transactions and cash flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not attributable directly or
indirectly to the Company, and in respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result in the Group as a whole having a
contractual obligation in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability. For each business combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-controlling
interests either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement of financial position
within equity, separately from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are presented on the face of the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as an allocation of the total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling interests and the equity shareholders of the
Company. Loans from holders of non-controlling interests and other contractual obligations
towards these holders are presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position in accordance with notes 2(r) or 2(s) depending on the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of
controlling and non-controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect the change in
relative interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair
value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset
(see note 2(h)) or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or joint venture (see note 2(f)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment in a subsidiary is stated at
cost less impairment losses (see note 2(m)), unless the investment is classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale) (see note 2(z)).

Business combination for entities under common control

Business combinations arising from transfers of interests in entities that are under the control
of the shareholder that controls the Group are accounted for as if the acquisition had
occurred at the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented or, if later, at the date
that common control was established. The assets and liabilities acquired are recognised at
the carrying amounts recognised previously in the Group’s controlling shareholder’s
consolidated financial statements. The components of equity of the acquired entities are
added to the same components within Group’s equity except that any share capital of the
acquired entities is recognised as part of merger reserves in other reserves.

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group or the Company has significant influence, but
not control or joint control, over its management, including participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or the Company and other parties
contractually agree to share control of the arrangement, and have rights to the net assets of
the arrangement.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements under the equity method, unless it is classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale) (see note 2(z)). Under the equity method,
the investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’s share of
the acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the post acquisition change in
the Group’s share of the investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to the
investment (see notes 2(g) and 2(m)). Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and any impairment losses for
the year are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, whereas
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’ other
comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and other comprehensive income.

29



(9)

GLP China Holdings Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021

Significant accounting policies (continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the associate or the joint venture,
the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued except
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the
investment under the equity method together with the Group’s long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate or the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its
associates and joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investee, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred, in which case they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or vice versa,
retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for
under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant influence over an associate or
joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
investee, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained
in that former investee at the date when significant influence or joint control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of
a financial asset (see note 2(h)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in associates and joint venture
are stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(m)), unless classified as held for sale
(or included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale) (see note 2(z)).

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s previously held

equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities measured as at the
acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a
business combination is allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash generating
units, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination and is tested annually
for impairment (see note 2(m)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any attributable amount of purchased
goodwill is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Other investments in debt and equily securities

The Group’s policies for investments in debt and equity securities, other than investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, are set out below.

Investments in debt and equity securities are recognised/derecognised on the date the
Group commits to purchase/sell the investment. The investments are initially stated at fair
value plus directly attributable transaction costs, except for those investments measured at
fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) for which transaction costs are recognised directly in
profit or loss. For an explanation of how the Group determines fair value of financial
instruments, see note 30(f). These investments are subsequently accounted for as follows,
depending on their classification.

Investments other than equity investments

Non-equity investments held by the Group are classified into one of the following
measurement categories:

- amortised cost, if the investment is held for the collection of contractual cash flows which
represent solely payments of principal and interest. Interest income from the investment
is calculated using the effective interest method (see note 2(w)(v)).

- fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) - recycling, if the contractual
cash flows of the investment comprise solely payments of principal and interest and the
investment is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both the
collection of contractual cash flows and sale. Changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income, except for the recognition in profit or loss of expected credit
losses, interest income (calculated using the effective interest method) and foreign
exchange gains and losses. When the investment is derecognised, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive income is recycled from equity to profit or loss.

- fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) if the investment does not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling). Changes in the fair value of the
investment (including interest) are recognised in profit or loss.

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVTPL unless the equity investment is not
held for trading purposes and on initial recognition of the investment the Group makes an
irrevocable election to designate the investment at FVOCI (non-recycling) such that
subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income. Such
elections are made on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only be made if the
investment meets the definition of equity from the issuer’s perspective. Where such an
election is made, the amount accumulated in other comprehensive income remains in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) until the investment is disposed of. At the time of disposal, the
amount accumulated in the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to retained
earnings. It is not recycled through profit or loss.

Dividends from an investment in equity securities, irrespective of whether classified as at

FVTPL or FVOCI, are recognised in profit or loss as other income in accordance with the
policy set out in note 2(w)(iv).
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment

The following properties held for own use are stated at their revalued amount, being their fair
value at the date of the revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation:

- Buildings held for own use

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount of
these assets does not differ materially from that which would be determined using fair values
at the end of reporting period.

The other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses:

Changes arising on the revaluation of properties held for own use are generally dealt with in
other comprehensive income and are accumulated separately in equity in the property
revaluation reserve. The only exceptions are as follows:

- when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be charged to profit or loss to the extent that it
exceeds the amount held in the reserve in respect of that same asset immediately prior to
the revaluation; and

- when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be credited to profit or loss to the extent that a
deficit on revaluation in respect of that same asset had previously been charged to profit
or loss.

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and equipment includes the cost of
materials, direct labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling and
removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads and borrowing costs (see note 2(y)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal. Any related revaluation surplus is transferred from the revaluation reserve to
retained profits and is not reclassified to profit or loss.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation of items of property, plant and
equipment, less their estimated residual value, if any, using the straight line method over
their estimated useful lives ranging from 2 to 20 years.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, the cost
or valuation of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are
reviewed annually.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held either to earn rental income or for capital
appreciation or both, but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, used in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes. Investment
properties comprise completed investment properties, investment properties under re-
development, properties under development and land held for development.

Land held for development represents lease prepayments for acquiring rights to use land in
the PRC with periods ranging from 40 to 50 years. Such rights granted with consideration
are recognised initially at acquisition cost.

Completed investment properties and investment properties under re-development

Completed investment properties and investment properties under re-development are
measured at fair value with any changes therein recognised in profit or loss. Rental income
from investment properties is accounted for in the manner described in note 2(w).

Properties under development and land held for development

Property that is being constructed or developed for future use as investment property is
initially recognised at cost, including transaction costs, and subsequently at fair value with
any change therein recognised in profit or loss.

The cost of properties under development comprises specifically identified cost, including the
acquisition cost of land use rights for properties under development, aggregate cost of
development, materials and supplies, wages and other direct expenses, an appropriate
proportion of overheads and borrowing costs capitalised (see note 2(y)).

When an investment property is disposed of, the resulting gain or loss recognised in profit or
loss is the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
property.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group and have finite useful lives are
measured at costs less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (see

note 2(m)). Expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives. The following intangible assets
with finite useful lives are amortised from the date they are available for use and their
estimated useful lives are as follows:

Trademarks 20 years
Non-competition agreement over the term of relevant agreement
License rights over the term of the license period

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed annually.
Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the contract is, or contains, a lease.
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed
where the customer has both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and non-lease component(s), the Group
has elected not to separate non-lease components and accounts for each lease component
and any associated non-lease components as a single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability, except for short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases
of low-value assets which, for the Group, are motor vehicles and office furniture. When the
Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides whether to
capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments associated with those
leases which are not capitalised are recognised as an expense on a systematic basis over
the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially recognised at the present value of
the lease payments payable over the lease term, discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing
rate. After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and interest
expense is calculated using the effective interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement of the lease liability and
hence are charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are incurred.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is capitalised is initially measured at cost,
which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, and any initial direct costs incurred. Where applicable, the
cost of the right-of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove
the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located,
discounted to their present value, less any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset
is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
notes 2(m)), except for the following types of right-of-use asset:

- right-of-use assets that meet the definition of investment property are carried at fair value
in accordance with note 2(j);

- right-of-use assets related to interests in leasehold land where the interest in the land is
held as inventory are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value in accordance
with note 2(n).

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising
from a change in an index or rate, or there is a change in the Group’s estimate of the amount
expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or there is a change arising from
the reassessment of whether the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase,
extension or termination option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to
zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a change in the scope of a lease or the
consideration for a lease that is not originally provided for in the lease contract (“lease
modification”) that is not accounted for as a separate lease. In this case the lease liability is
remeasured based on the revised lease payments and lease term using a revised discount
rate at the effective date of the modification. The only exceptions are any rent concessions
which arose as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and which satisfied the
conditions set out in paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16 Leases. In such cases, the Group took
advantage of the practical expedient not to assess whether the rent concessions are lease
modifications, and recognised the change in consideration as negative variable lease
payments in profit or loss in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the rent
concessions occurred.

In the statement of financial position, the current portion of long-term lease liabilities is
determined as the principal portion of contractual payments that are due to be settled within
twelve months after the reporting period.

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is a
finance lease or an operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an underlying assets to
the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is classified as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease components, the Group allocates the

consideration in the contract to each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.
The rental income from operating leases is recognised in accordance with note 2(v)(i).
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the sub-leases are classified as a finance lease or
as an operating lease with reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease. If
the head lease is a short-term lease to which the Group applies the exemption described in
note 2(l)(i), then the Group classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease.

Credit losses and impairment of assets

Credit losses from financial instruments, contract assets and lease receivables

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) on the following
items:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost (including cash and cash equivalents, trade
and other receivables and loans to associates);

- contract assets as defined in HKFRS 15 (see note 2(0));

- debt securities measured at FVOCI (recycling);

- lease receivables; and

- loan commitments issued, which are not measured at FVTPL

Other financial assets measured at fair value, including units in bond funds, equity securities
measured at FVTPL, equity securities designated at FVOCI (non-recycling) and derivative
financial assets, are not subject to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the present value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows
due to the Group in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive).

For undrawn loan commitments, expected cash shortfalls are measured as the difference
between (i) the contractual cash flows that would be due to the Group if the holder of the loan
commitment draws down on the loan and (i) the cash flows that the Group expects to

receive if the loan is drawn down.

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the following discount rates where the
effect of discounting is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets, trade and other receivables and contract assets: effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition or an approximation thereof;

- variable-rate financial assets: current effective interest rate;
- lease receivables: discount rate used in the measurement of the lease receivable;

- loan commitments: current risk-free rate adjusted for risks specific to the cash flows.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period
over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort. This includes information about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result from possible default events
within the 12 months after the reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result from all possible default events
over the expected lives of the items to which the ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables, lease receivables and contract assets are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial assets are
estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors and an assessment of both the current
and forecast general economic conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments (including loan commitments issued), the Group
recognises a loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk of the financial instrument since initial recognition, in which case the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial instrument (including a loan commitment)
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at the reporting date with that assessed at the
date of initial recognition. In making this reassessment, the Group considers that a default
event occurs when (i) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or (ii) the
financial asset is 90 days past due. The Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly since initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of principal or interest on their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in a financial instrument’s external or
internal credit rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results of the debtor; and
- existing or forecast changes in the technological, market, economic or legal environment

that have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its obligation to the
Group.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

For loan commitments, the date of initial recognition for the purpose of assessing ECLs is
considered to be the date that the Group becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment. In
assessing whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition
of a loan commitment, the Group considers changes in the risk of default occurring on the
loan to which the loan commitment relates.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an individual basis or a collective basis. When
the assessment is performed on a collective basis, the financial instruments are grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect changes in the financial instrument’s
credit risk since initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is recognised as an
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
for all financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through
a loss allowance account, except for investments in debt securities that are measured at
FVOCI (recycling), for which the loss allowance is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the fair value reserve (recycling).

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with note 2(w)(v) is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which
case interest income is calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying
amount less loss allowance) of the financial asset. At each reporting date, the Group
assesses whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired
when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable events:
- significant financial difficulties of the debtor;
- abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market, economic or legal environment that have
an adverse effect on the debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties of the
issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset, lease receivable or contract asset is written
off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This
is generally the case when the Group determines that the debtor does not have assets or
sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to
the write-off.
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Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.

Credit losses from financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make
specified payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the
holder incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with
the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantees issued are initially recognised within “trade and other payables at fair
value, which is determined by reference to fees charged in an arm’s length transaction for
similar services, when such information is obtainable, or to interest rate differentials, by
comparing the actual rates charged by lenders when the guarantee is made available with
the estimated rates that lenders would have charged, had the guarantees not been available,
where reliable estimates of such information can be made. Where consideration is received
or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the amount initially recognised as deferred income is
amortised in profit or loss over the term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued (see note 2(w)(viii)).

The Group monitors the risk that the specified debtor will default on the contract and
recognises a provision when ECLs on the financial guarantees are determined to be higher
than the amount carried in “trade and other payables” in respect of the guarantees (i.e. the
amount initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation).

To determine ECLs, the Group considers changes in the risk of default of the specified
debtor since the issuance of the guarantee. A 12-month ECL is measured unless the risk
that the specified debtor will default has increased significantly since the guarantee is issued,
in which case a lifetime ECL is measured. The same definition of default and the same
assessment of significant increase in credit risk as described in note 2(m)(i) apply.

As the Group is required to make payments only in the event of a default by the specified
debtor in accordance with the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed, an ECL is
estimated based on the expected payments to reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it
incurs less any amount that the Group expects to receive from the holder of the guarantee,
the specified debtor or any other party. The amount is then discounted using the current
risk-free rate adjusted for risks specific to the cash flows.
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Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at the end of each reporting period
to identify indications that the following assets may be impaired or, except in the case of
goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

property, plant and equipment, including right-of-use assets (other than properties carried
at revalued amounts),

pre-paid interests in leasehold land classified as being held under an operating lease;
intangible assets;
goodwill; and

investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures in the Company’s and the
Group’s statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. In addition, for
goodwill, intangible assets that are not yet available for use and intangible assets that have
indefinite useful lives, the recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or not there is
any indication of impairment.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group of units)
and then, to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (or group of units)
on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the individual valuation method and comprises all costs of purchase,
costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as an
expense in the period in which the related revenue is recognised.

The amount of any writedown of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any writedown of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises revenue (see note 2(w)) before
being unconditionally entitled to the consideration under the payment terms set out in the
contract. Contract assets are assessed for expected credit losses (ECL) in accordance with
the policy set out in note 2(m)(i) and are reclassified to receivables when the right to the
consideration has become unconditional (see note 2(n)).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays non-refundable consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue (see note 2(w)). A contract liability would
also be recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to receive non-refundable
consideration before the Group recognises the related revenue. In such cases, a
corresponding receivable would also be recognised (see note 2(p)).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract asset or a net contract liability is
presented. For multiple contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated
contracts are not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing component, the contract balance includes
interest accrued under the effective interest method (see note 2(w)).

Trade and other recelvables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration. A right to receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration is due. If revenue has been recognised before
the Group has an unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount is presented as a
contract asset (see note 2(m)).

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method less allowance
for credit losses (see note 2(m)(i)).
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Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the
purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value. Except for financial guarantee
liabilities, trade and other payables are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at fair value less transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. Interest expense is recognised in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy for borrowing costs (see note 2(y)).

Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits and contributions to defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred and the
effect would be material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

Share-based payments

For equity-settled share-based payment arrangements, the fair value of share awards and
share options granted to employees is recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value is measured at grant date using the
option pricing model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the options
were granted. Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the total estimated fair value of the options is spread
over the vesting period, taking into account the probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share awards and share options that is expected to
vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior
years is charged/credited to the profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of options that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to
the market price of the Group’s shares. The equity amount is recognised in the capital
reserve until either the option is exercised (when it is included in the amount recognised in
share capital for the shares issued) or the option expires (when it is released directly to
retained profits). If the equity instruments granted to employees vest immediately, the fair
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value of the equity instruments granted is fully recognised as costs or expenses on the grant
date, with a corresponding increase in capital reserve.

For cash-settled share-based payment arrangements, the fair value of the amount payable to
employees which is settled in cash, is recognised as an expense with a corresponding
increase in liabilities, over the period during which the employees become unconditionally
entitled to payment. The liability is remeasured at each reporting date and at settlement date
based on the fair value of the cash-settled share-base payment arrangement. Any changes
in the liability are recognised in profit or loss.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits and when it recognises restructuring costs involving the payment
of termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in
profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to
tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused
tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the
asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences include those that will
arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse either in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
unused tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into account if they relate
to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities are those
temporary differences arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination), and temporary differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in accordance with the accounting
policy set out in note 2(j), the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using the tax
rates that would apply on sale of those assets at their carrying value at the reporting date
unless the property is depreciable and is held within a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the property over time, rather
than through sale. In all other cases, the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the
assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period

and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements therein, are presented
separately from each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against current
tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or
- different taxable entities, which, in each future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered, intend to

realise the current tax assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.
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Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.

Onerous contracts

An onerous contract exists when the Group has a contract under which the unavoidable
costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected
to be received from the contract. Provisions for onerous contracts are measured at the
present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the net cost of
continuing with the contract.

Contingent liabilities assumed in business combinations

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination which are present obligations at the
date of acquisition are initially recognised at fair value, provided the fair value can be reliably
measured. After their initial recognition at fair value, such contingent liabilities are
recognised at the higher of the amount initially recognised, less accumulated amortization
where appropriate, and the amount that would be determined in accordance with note 2(v)(i).
Contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination that cannot be reliably fair valued or
were not present obligations at the date of acquisition are disclosed in accordance with note

2(v)(i).
Revenue recognition and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises from the sale of goods, the
provision of services or the use by others of the Group’s assets under leases in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service is transferred to the customer,
or the lessee has the right to use the asset, at the amount of promised consideration to which
the Group is expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third
parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction of
any trade discounts.
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Where the contract contains a financing component which provides a significant financing
benefit to the customer for more than 12 months, revenue is measured at the present value
of the amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction with the customer, and interest income is accrued separately
under the effective interest method. Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to the Group, revenue recognised under that
contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract liability under the effective
interest method. The Group takes advantage of the practical expedient in paragraph 63 of
HKFRS 15 and does not adjust the consideration for any effects of a significant financing
component if the period of financing is 12 months or less.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Rental income from operating leases
Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals are
recognised as income in the accounting period in which they are earned.

(i) Sales of goods
Revenue is recognised when the customer takes possession of and accepts the
products. If the products are a partial fulfilment of a contract covering other goods
and/or services, then the amount of revenue recognised is an appropriate proportion of
the total transaction price under the contract, allocated between all the goods and
services promised under the contract on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.

(i) Management fee income

Management fee income is recognised in profit or loss as and when services are
rendered.

(iv) Dividends

- Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when the shareholder’s
right to receive payment is established.

- Dividend income from listed investments is recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

(v) Interestincome

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest method.
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(vi) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement of financial position initially when
there is reasonable assurance that they will be received and that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same
periods in which the expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate the Group for the
cost of an asset are deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and consequently
are effectively recognised in profit or loss over the useful life of the asset by way of
reduced depreciation expense.

(vii) Finance income under finance lease

Where the Group provides finance leasing of its warehouses and machines to
customers, the Group recognises profit or loss equivalent to the profit or loss resulting
from an outright sale of the warehouses and machines products being leased at normal
selling prices and finance income over the period of the lease. Finance income implicit
in finance lease is recognised over the period of the lease so as to produce an
approximately constant periodic rate of return on the outstanding net investment in the
lease for each accounting period. Commission paid to dealers for acquisition of
finance lease contract is included in the carrying value of the assets and amortised to
the profit or loss over the expected life of the lease as an adjustment to finance income.

(viii) Income from financial guarantees issued

Income from financial guarantees issued is recognised over the term of the guarantees
(see note 2(m)(ii)).

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss, except those arising from
foreign currency borrowings used to hedge a net investment in a foreign operation which are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Nonmonetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair
value are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.
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The results of foreign operations are translated into USD at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement
of financial position items, including goodwill arising on consolidation of foreign operations
acquired on or after 1 January 2005, are translated into USD at the closing foreign exchange
rates at the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve. Goodwill arising on consolidation of a foreign operation acquired before 1 January
2005 is translated at the foreign exchange rate that applied at the date of acquisition of the
foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the exchange differences
relating to that foreign operation is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or
loss on disposal is recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed
in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying asset commences
when expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and
activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or
complete.

Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations
Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified as held for sale if it is highly probable
that its carrying amount will be recovered through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use and the asset (or disposal group) is available for sale in its present condition.
A disposal group is a group of assets to be disposed of together as a group in a single
transaction, and liabilities directly associated with those assets that will be transferred in the
transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of control of a subsidiary, all the
assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the above criteria
for classification as held for sale are met, regardless of whether the Group will retain a non-
controlling interest in the subsidiary after the sale.
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Immediately before classification as held for sale, the measurement of the non-current assets
(and all individual assets and liabilities in a disposal group) is brought up-to-date in
accordance with the accounting policies before the classification. Then, on initial
classification as held for sale and until disposal, the non-current assets (except for certain
assets as explained below), or disposal groups, are recognised at the lower of their carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell. The principal exceptions to this measurement policy
so far as the financial statements of the Group and the Company are concerned are deferred
tax assets, assets arising from employee benefits, financial assets (other than investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures) and investment properties. These assets, even if
held for sale, would continue to be measured in accordance with the policies set out
elsewhere in note 2.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale, and on subsequent
remeasurement while held for sale, are recognised in profit or loss. As long as a non-current
asset is classified as held for sale, or is included in a disposal group that is classified as held
for sale, the non-current asset is not depreciated or amortised.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s business, the operations and cash
flows of which can be clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and which represents a
separate major line of business or geographical area of operations, or is part of a single
co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical area of
operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon disposal or when the operation meets
the criteria to be classified as held for sale (see (i) above), if earlier. It also occurs if the
operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as discontinued, a single amount is presented on the face of
the statement of profit or loss, which comprises:

- the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation; and

- the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or
on the disposal, of the assets or disposal group(s) constituting the discontinued operation.

Related parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the Group if that
person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent.
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(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions applies:

(iy  The entity and the Group are members of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of
the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(ii) has significant influence over the entity or is a
member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the
entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Accounting estimates and judgements

The following critical accounting policies involve the most significant judgements and
estimates used in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

Valuation of investment properties

An external independent valuation company, has appropriate recognised professional
qualifications and recent experience in the locations and categories of property being valued,
values the Group’s investment property portfolio every three months. The fair values are
based on market values, being the estimated amount for which a property could be
exchanged on the date of the valuation between a willing buyer and a willing seller in arms’
length transaction after proper marketing wherein the parties had each acted knowledgeably,
prudently and without compulsion.

In the absence of current prices in an active market, the valuations are prepared by
considering the aggregate of the estimated cash flows expected to be received from renting
out the property. A yield that reflects the specific risks inherent in the net cash flows then is
applied to the net annual cash flows to arrive at the property valuation.
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Valuations reflect, where appropriate: the type of tenants actually in occupation or
responsible for meeting lease commitments or likely to be in occupation after letting vacant
accommodation, and the market’s general perception of their creditworthiness; the allocation
of maintenance and insurance responsibilities between the Group and the lessee; and the
remaining economic life of the property. When rent reviews or lease renewals are pending
with anticipated reversionary increases, it is assumed that all notices and where appropriate
counter-notices have been served validly and within the appropriate time.

Investment property under construction or development is valued by estimating the fair value
of the completed investment property and then deducting from that amount the estimated
costs to complete construction or development, financing costs and a reasonable profit
margin.

Impairment of non-financial assets

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts of non-financial assets (other than
investment properties and deferred tax assets) may not be recoverable, the assets may be
considered impaired and are tested for impairment. An impairment loss is recognised when
the asset’s recoverable amount has declined below its carrying amount. The recoverable
amount is the greater of the fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In determining the
recoverable amount which requires significant judgements, the Group estimates the future
cash flows to be derived from continuing use and ultimate disposal of the asset and applies
an appropriate discount rate to these future cash flows.

Recognition of deferred tax assets

The Group has recognised deferred tax assets in relation to the unused tax losses as set out
in note 15. The ability to realise the deferred tax assets mainly depends on whether it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which related tax benefits under
the deferred tax assets can be utilised. In cases where the actual future taxable profits
generated are less than expected, a reversal of deferred tax assets may arise, which will be
recognised in profit or loss for the period in which such a reversal takes place.

Valuation of unlisted financial instruments

For financial instruments without an active market, the Group adopts valuation techniques
that are applicable in the current circumstances and sufficiently supported by available data
and other information, and selects inputs that are consistent with the characteristics of the
assets or liabilities considered by the market participants in the transactions of the relevant
assets or liabilities, and prioritizes the use of relevant observable inputs. Unobservable
inputs are used only if the relevant observable inputs are unavailable or not reasonably
available.
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4. Revenue

2021 2020
US$’'000 US$’'000
Revenue from contracts with customers within the
scope of HKFRS 15
Disaggregated by major products or service lines
Sales of goods 4,309 110,407
Financial services income - 14,103
Management fee income 184,405 125,998
Freezer services income 60,059 17,227
Dividend income 14,199 2,341
262,972 270,076
Disaggregated by timing of revenue recognition
Point in time 18,508 113,244
Over time 244,464 156,832
262,972 270,076
Revenue from other sources
Rental and related income 1,010,540 879,048

1,273,512 1,149,124

The Group’s customer base is diversified and no customer with whom transactions have
exceeded 10% of the Group’s revenue.

5. Other income

2021 2020

US$'000 US$’000

Government grant 40,443 29,351
Utility income 756 371
Changes in fair value of financial assets 288,301 155,069

Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant and
equipment 138 (1,030)
Disposal gain on interests in associates 7,360 2,051
Disposal gain on financial assets - 8,947
Disposal loss on financial assets - (2,351)
Others 4,382 3,104
341,380 195,512
- Yo
- _.a——-_:_-,'.'_—..r;'___*________‘_-
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6. Net finance costs

2021 2020
US$'000 US$'000
Interest income on:
- Fixed deposits and cash at bank 5,239 3,660
- Loans to joint ventures 33,172 18,456
- Loans to associates 5,268 12,160
- Loans to non-controlling interests - 531
- Loans to employees - 441
- Loans to fellow subsidiaries 435 -
- Loans to third parties 15,902 6,207
Interest income 60,016 41,455
Amortisation of transaction costs of bank loans (29,739) (16,211)
Amortisation of transaction costs of bonds (6,060) (5,450)
Interest expenses on:
- Bank loans (251,075) (221,982)
- Bonds (229,089) (207,373)
- Loans from intermediate holding company (260) (13,950)
- Loans from non-controlling interests (400) (1,122)
- Loans from joint ventures (3) (988)
- loans from associates (56) (43)
- loans from related corporations - (1,354)
- Loans from third parties (223) (22)
- Lease liabilities (6,182) (3,079)
Total borrowing costs (523,087) (471,574)
Less: borrowing costs capitalised in investment
properties 21,133 14,556
Net borrowing costs n ( (501,954) (457,018)
Foreign exchange gain & 38,503 262,910
Net finance costs recognised in profit or loss (403,435) (152,653)
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7. Profit before taxation

The following items have been included in arriving at profit before taxation:

2021 2020
US$'000 UsS$'000
(a) Staff costs
Wages and salaries (106,919) (91,665)
Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans,
included in wages and salaries (14,179) (4,324)
(b) Other expenses
Amortisation of intangible assets (1,369) (1,624)
Depreciation charge of property, plant and equipment (28,137) (22,604)
Impairment loss on trade and other receivables (993) (12,387)
Auditors’ remuneration (3,558) (2,953)
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8.

Tax expense —_—

Current tax
Withholding tax on foreign-sourced income

Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary differences

Reconciliation of expected to actual tax:

Profit before taxation

Less: share of results (net of tax expense) of joint
ventures

Less: share of results (net of tax expense) of
associates

Profit before share of results of joint ventures and
associates (net of tax expense)

Tax expense using PRC tax rate of 25%

Effect of different tax from subsidiaries

Net income not subject to tax

Non-deductible expenses

Deferred tax assets not recognised

Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses
Withholding tax on foreign-sourced income

-\
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2021 2020
US$'000 US$'000
124,684 136,556
282,931 148,990
407,615 285,546
457,718 251,923
865,333 537,469

2,750,867 1,790,925
(164,047) (73,508)
(501,336) (194,043)

2,085,484 1,523,374
521,371 380,844

(31,942) (26,140)
(69,414) (60,902)
90,889 38,841
79,353 64,006

(7,855) (8,170)
282,931 148,990
865,333 537,469

Directors’ remuneration

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation is as follows:

2021 2020
US$'000 UsS$°000

Executive Directors
Director fee # =
Salaries allowance and benefits in kind (3,407) (3,510)
Discretionary bonuses (1,708) (2,521)
Long-term incentive plan (1,841) (4,585)
Total (6,956) (10,616)
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10. Other comprehensive income

(a) Tax effects relating to other comprehensive income
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2021 2020
Before- Net-of- Before- Net-of-
Tax Tax Tax Tax Tax Tax
amount expense amount amount expense amount
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
Exchange differences arising
from consolidation of foreign
operations 429,019 - 429,019 1,023,341 - 1,023,341
Changes in fair value of
properties 6,698 (1,674) 5,024 4,567 (1,142) 3,425
Change in fair value of other
investments 126,642 (11,162) 115,480 26,707 367 27,074
Disposal of other investments - - - 58,561 (5,262) 53,299
Share of other comprehensive
income of jointly ventures
and associates 4,565 - 4,565 (3,718) - (3,718)
Total other comprehensive
income 566,924 (12,836) 554,088 1,109,458 (6,037) 1,103,421

(b) Components of other comprehensive income, including reclassification adjustments

Exchange differences arising from consolidation of

foreign operations

Surplus on revaluation of buildings held for own use

carried at fair value

Change in fair value of other investments

Disposal of other investments

Share of other comprehensive income of jointly

ventures and associates

Net movement during the year recognised in other

comprehensive income
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US$'000 US$'000
429,019 1,023,341
5,024 3,425
115,480 27,074
L 53,299

4,565 (3,718)
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11.

(@

Investment properties

At 1 January
Additions
Disposals

e — e — I —

Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 29)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 29)
Borrowing cost capitalised (note 6)

Changes in fair value

Reclassification to assets held for sale (note 21)
Effect of movements in exchange rates

At 31 December

Comprising:

Completed investment properties
Investment properties under re-development
Properties under development

Land held for development

Falr value measurement of properties

Fair value hierarchy

GLP China Holdings Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021

31 December

31 December

2021 2020
US$'000 US$'000
21,380,459 20,656,664
1,486,058 1,257,960
(8,645) -
1,996,368 1,050,716
(4,867,634) (2,392,203)
21,133 14,556
973,433 532,835
(6,258,089) (1,065,798)
546,421 1,325,729
15,269,504 21,380,459
11,730,934 17,679,556
10,424 19,249
2,013,479 1,813,162
1,514,667 1,868,492
21,380,459

15,269,504

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s properties measured at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into which a fair value

measurement is classified is determined with reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

e Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the

Level 2 valuations:

measurement date

Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data are not

available

* Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant unobservable input
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(b)
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Investment properties (continued)

31 December 2021
The Group
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
US$'000 US$'000 uS$'000 US$'000
Investment properties - - 15,269,504 15,269,504
Buildings held for own use E - - -
31 December 2020
The Group
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
_ US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$’000
Investment properties ) - - 21,380,459 21,380,459
Buildings held for own use - - 106,254 106,254

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there were no transfers between Level 1 and
Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3 (year ended 31 December 2020: nil). The Group’s
policy is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.

As at 31 December 2021, the valuations were carried out by independent firm of surveyors,
Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited, who has among their staff
fellows of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in the locations and
categories of property being valued.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

In determining fair value, a combination of approaches were used, including the income
capitalization method, discounted cash flow analysis, residual method and direct comparison
method. The direct comparison method involves the analysis of comparable sales of similar
properties and adjusting the sale prices to that reflective of the investment properties. The
income capitalization method capitalizes an income stream into a present value using single-
year capitalization rates, and the income stream used is adjusted to market rentals currently
being achieved within comparable investment properties and recent leasing transactions
achieved within the investment property. The discounted cash flow analysis requires the
valuer to assume a rental growth rate indicative of market and the selection of a target
internal rate of return consistent with current market requirements. The residual method
values properties under development and land held for development by reference to its
development potential and deducting development costs to be incurred, together with
developers’ profit margin, assuming it was completed as at the date of valuation.

In relying on the valuation reports of Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory

Limited, management has exercised its judgement and is satisfied that the valuation methods
and estimates are reflective of the current market conditions.
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Investment properties (continued)

Unobservable
Valuation Techniques input Range
Investment properties:
Mainland China Capitalisation approach  Capitalisation rate 4.00% - 7.00%
Discounted cash flow and Discount rate 7.25% - 10.50%
Residual value  Terminal yield rate 4.00% - 7.00%

Descriptions of the sensitivity in unobservable inputs and inter-relationship:

The fair value measurement is negatively correlated to the unobservable input that the lower
the factor will result in a higher fair value.

Fair value adjustment of investment properties is recognised in the line item “changes in fair
value of investment properties” on the face of the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Surplus on revaluation of buildings held for own use is recognised in the line item “surplus on
revaluation of buildings held for own use carried at fair value” on the face of the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

Investment properties are held mainly for leasing to external customers under operating
leases. Generally, the leases contain an initial non-cancellable period of one to twenty
years. Subsequent renewals are negotiated with the lessees. There are no contingent rents
arising from the lease of investment properties.

Interest capitalised as costs of investment properties amounted to approximately
US$21,133,000 (31 December 2020: US$14,556,000) during the year. The capitalisation
rates of borrowings range from 3.80% to 6.77% for the year ended 31 December 2021 (31
December 2020: 4.31% to 6.00%).

Investment properties with carrying value totalling approximately US$11,318,951,000 as at
31 December 2021 (31 December 2020: US$15,445,068,000) were mortgaged to secure
credit facilities for the Group (note 25).

Operating lease rental receivables

Future minimum rental receivables of the Group on non-cancellable operating leases from
investment properties are as follows: -

31 December 31 December
2021 2020
US$'000 US$'000

Lease payments receivable;
- Within 1 year 437,647 788,935
- After 1 year but within 5 years 843,309 1,408,705
- After 5 years 385,738 503,994
1,666,694 2,701,634
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Investments in subsidiaries
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The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which principally affected the

results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless

otherwise stated.

Name of subsidiaries

GLP Investment (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
GLP Capital Investment 4 (HK) Limited
Hidden Hili Fund I, L.P

CLF Fund |, LP (“CLF 1")

CLF Fund Il, LP (“CLF II")

GLP Shanghai Chapu Logistics
Facilities Co,, Ltd.

GLP Shanghai Minhang Logistics
Facilities Co., Ltd

GLP Xujing Logistics Co. Ltd.

GLP Shanghai Shenjiang Logistics
Facilities Co,, Ltd.

Beijing City Power Warehousing
Co.Ltd.

Foshan Pufeng Logistics Facilities Co.,
Ltd

Beijing Lihao Science & Technology
Co,, Ltd.

Airport City Development Co., Lid.
("ACL")

Zhejiang Transfar Logistics Base
Co,, Ltd.

Zhuhai Puxing Logistic Industry Equity
Investment Partnership (LP)

Zhuhai Puyin Logistic Investment
Partnership (LP)

Beijing Sifang Tianlong Medicine
Logistic Co., Ltd.

Dexin Telecommunications Technology
(Hangzhou) Co., Ltd.

Shenzhen Lingxian Technology
Co., Ltd.

Guofu Huijin (Tianjin) Investment
Management LLP

Zhuhai Puwen Logistic Industrial
Investment LLP

Shanghai Fuhe Industrial Development
Co., Ltd.

Xiamen Mingsi Junju Investment Fund
LLP

GLP Thor LP Limited
GLP Capital Investment 5 (HK) Limited

Beijing Kirin Property Management
Development Co I td

Proportion of ownership interest

Place of
incorporation
and business

PRC

Hong Kong
Cayman
Islands
Singapore/PRC
Cayman
Islands/PRC
PRC

PRC

PRC

PRC

PRC

PRC

PRC

PRC

PRC

PRC

PRC

PRC

PRC

PRC

PRC

PRC

PRC

PRC
Cayman
Islands

Hong Kong

PRC

Group’s
Effective
interest

100.00%
100.00%
80.76%
30.12%
39.50%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
60.00%
60.00%
88.00%
53.14%
60.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
70.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

80.00%

60

Held by the Held by a
Company subsidiary

100.00%

- 100,00%
- 80.76%
30.12%

- 32.50%
100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

60.00%

60.00%

88.00%

53.14%

- 60.00%
100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

- 100.00%
- 70.,00%
- 100.00%
- 100.00%
100.00%

- 80.00%

Registered
capital

US$'000
1,700,000
US§'000
119,088
Us$'000
519,862
Us$'000
1,630,000
US§$'000
3,725,000
Us$'000
14,000
Us$'000
26,000
Us§'000
20,200
Us$'000
20,000
RMB'000
174,497
RMB'000
422,813
RMB'000
650,944
RMB'000
1,800,000
RMB'000
185,500
RMB'000
3,535,354
RMB'000
6,590,000
RMB'000
185,000
Us$'000
67,000
RMB'000
40,000
RMB'000
3,000,000
RMB'000
1,662,889
RMB'000
2,000,000
RMB'000
2,500,000
US$'000
0.001
US$'000
18,823
RMB'000
100,000

Principal
activities

Property
management
Investment
holding
Investment
holding
Property
investment
Property
investment
Property
investment
Property
investment
Property
investment
Property
investment
Property
investment
Property
investment
Property
investment
Property
investment
Property
investment
Property
investment
Investment
holding
Property
investment
Property
investment
Property
investment
Property
investment
Property
investment
Property
investment
Investment
holding
Investment
holding
Investment
holding
Property
investment
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Investments in subsidiaries (continued)
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The following table lists out the information relating to changes in non-controlling interests
(“NCI"), and the subsidiaries of the Group which have material NCI.

Balance at 1 January 2020

Profit for the year

Exchange differences arising from
consolidation of foreign operations

Capital contribution from NCI

Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 29)

Acquisition of interests in subsidiaries
from NCIi

Disposal of subsidiaries (note 29)

Dividends paid to non-controlling
interests

Balance at 31 December 2020 and
1 January 2021

Profit for the year

Exchange differences arising from
consolidation of foreign operations

Capital contribution from NCI

Capital reduction from NCI

Other adjustment

Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 29)

Disposal of subsidiaries (note29)

Acquisition of interests in subsidiaries
from NCI

Disposal of interest in a subsidiary to
NCI

Dividends paid to non-controlling
interests

Balance at 31 December 2021

Changes in NCI

Subsidiaries
without
CLF 1 ACL CLF I material NCI Total
uUs$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
1,434,412 491,697 757,002 1,079,350 3,762,461
133,620 10,935 67,494 89,087 301,136
106,472 34,638 36,037 128,425 305,572
- - 391,280 323,804 715,084
- - 27,887 155,353 183,240
: - (16,131) (16,131)
- - (12,676) (48,069) (60,745)
B = - (14,527) (14,527)
1,674,504 537,270 1,267,024 1,697,292 5,176,090
169,970 24,814 194,655 81,458 470,897
48,810 12,875 22,175 40,295 124,155
- - 308,327 149,217 457,544
(244,589) - - - (244,589)
- - - (95,033) (95,033)
- B 2,944 97,430 100,374
- - - (727,036) (727,036)
- - (44,774) (179,084) (223,858)
- - 537,075 87,475 624,550
- - - (35,223) (35,223)
1,648,695 574,959 2,287,426 1,116,791 5,627,871
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Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

The following tables list out the information relating to CLF I, ACL and CLF I, the
subsidiaries of the Group which have material non-controlling interest (‘NCI”). The
summarised financial information presented below represent the amounts before any inter-

company elimination.

CLF I (Note)

NCI percentage
Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Net assets

Carrying amount of NCI

Revenue

Profit for the year

Total comprehensive income
Profit allocated to NCI

Net cash (decrease)/increase

31 December 31 December

2021 2020
US$'000 US$'000

69.88% 69.88%

4,467,499 181,617

: 3,843,506

(2,117,227) (164,882)

X (1,473,037)

2,350,272 2,387,204

1,648,695 1,674,504

2021 2020
% . . US$000 US$000
228,292 187,007

243223 191,207

313,068 343,566

169,970 133,620

85,510 41,952

Note: The assets/liabilities of CLF | are classified as held for sale at 31 December 2021

(note 21).

ACL

NCI percentage
Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Net assets

Carrying amount of NCI

Revenue

Profit for the year

Total comprehensive income
Profit allocated to NCI

Net cash increase

31 December 31 December

2021 2020
US$'000 US$'000
46.86% 46.86%
83,964 77,804
2,013,303 1,919,171
(148,011) (143,715)
(711,109) (695,796)
1,238,147 1,157,464
574,959 537,270
2021 2020
US$'000 US$'000
91,217 78,104
52,952 23,335
80,427 97,250
24,814 10,935
10,272 15,450
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12. Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

31 December 31 December
2021 2020
Us$'000 US$'000
CLF 1l
NCI percentage 60.5% 43.62%
Current assets 276,061 252,335
Non-current assets 5,643,476 3,939,812
Current liabilities (1,537,630) (677,553)
Non-current liabilities (689,248) (761,066)
Non-controlling interests (106,053) (117,280)
Net assets 3,586,606 2,636,248
Carrying amount of NCI 2,287,426 1,267,024
2021 2020
USs$'000 US$’000
Revenue 102,234 44 475
Profit for the year 351,916 154,732
Total comprehensive income 431,804 291,785
Profit allocated to NCI [ 221,508 67,494
Net cash increase = 22,487 6,070
13. Joint ventures
31 December 31 December

Notes 2021 2020
China Merchants Capital Investment Co., Ltd.

(“"CMCI™) (a) 891,263 770,916
GLP Thor Fund I, L.P (“Thor Fund”) (b) 633,021 -
Beijing Jintonggang Real Estate Development

Co., Ltd. (“Z3 project”) (c) 362,772 357,162
GLP Guoyi (Zhuhai) Acquisition Fund (LP)

("CVA | Fund”) (d) 278,905 236,593
Others (e) 914,443 726,212

3,080,404 2,090,883

All the joint ventures are unlisted corporate entities whose quoted market prices are not
available.
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13. Joint ventures (continued)

(a) CMCI

GLP China Holdings Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021

On 24 March 2020, the Group entered into an investment partnership with China Merchants
Group (“CMG”) by acquiring 50% equity interest in China Merchants Capital Investment Co.,
Ltd. (“CMCI"), CMG’s private equity investment vehicle incorporated in the PRC. Thereafter

CMCI becomes a joint venture of the Group.

Summarised financial information of CMCI, adjusted for any differences in accounting
policies, and a reconciliation to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements,

are disclosed below:

= "::-k{‘
=

Non-current assets

Current assets

Non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Non-controlling interests

Equity attributed to equity shareholders

Group’s effective interest

Carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements

Included in the above assets and liabilities:

Cash and cash equivalents

Current financial liabilities (excluding trade and other
payables)

Non-current financial liabilities (excluding trade and
other payables)

Revenue

Profit for the year from continuing operation

Profit attributable to NCI

Profit attributable to equity shareholders

Total comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income attributable to equity
shareholders

Group’s effective interest

Share of results (net of tax expense) of joint ventures

Included in the above profit:
Interest expense

Interest income

Income tax expense
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31 December

2021
Us$000

2,364,642
517,147
(1,059,336)
(350,929)
(103,308)
1,368,218
50.00%

891,263

139,596
(323,315)
(1,059,336)

Year ended
31 December
2021
Us$’000

390,813
308,523
(99,710)
208,813
300,515
202,141

50.00%
104,407

(58,724)
1,234
(101,773)

31 December

2020
Us$000

2,241,684
162,764
(978,274)
(253,781)
(35,076)
1,137,386
50.00%

770,916

114,298
(184,577)
(978,274)

Year ended
31 December
2020
Us$’000

150,132
97,739
(15,561)
82,178
89,098
74,743

50.00%
41,089

(41,773)
1,364
(16,153)
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(b)
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Joint ventures (continued)
Thor Fund

In June 2021, the Group completed the formation of Thor Fund with Grand Master
Technology Limited (“Grand Master”), in which the Group injects capital of
RMB4,000,000,000 for 50.1% equity interest of the Thor Fund. The Thor Fund invests in a
portfolio of internet data centers, including properties and related infrastructure. As the
general partner and the key decision making of Thor Fund’s underlying operating entities are
jointly controlled by the Group and Grand Master, Thor Fund is accounted for as a joint
venture of the Group upon its formation.

According to the agreement between the Group and Grand Master, after the defined
business conditions are met, the Group may obtain the power to control key decision-making
of the underlying operating entities. Further, the Group may be required to pay contingent
consideration when certain financial performance is achieved by the underlying operating
entities.

As at 31 December 2021, these underlying internet data centers are still under construction,
and the conditions for paying contingent consideration are not met.

Summarised financial information of Thor Fund, adjusted for any differences in accounting
policies, and a reconciliation to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements,
are disclosed below:

31 December

2021
US$'000
Non-current assets 2,493,966
Current assets 182,091
Non-current liabilities (627,382)
Current liabilities (121,713)
Equity attributed to equity shareholders 1,926,964
Group’s effective interest 50.10%
Carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements 633,021
Included in the above assets and liabilities:
Cash and cash equivalents 30,541
Non-current financial liabilities (excluding trade and
other payables) (627,382)
——
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13. Joint ventures (continued)

(c)

Year ended

31 December

2021

US$'000

Revenue 188
Loss for the year from continuing operation (31,176)
Total comprehensive income (31,176)
Group’s effective interest 50.10%
Share of results (net of tax expense) of joint ventures (15,746)

Included in the above profit:

Interest expense —— A (19,370)
Interest income ——— T = — 694
Income tax expense (146)

Z3 Project

Beijing Jintonggang Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (referred to as “Jintonggang”) is a
property developer and constructor incorporated in the PRC. The Group obtained joint
control of Jintonggang through acquiring 100% shares of five limited partnerships which hold
equity interests in Jintonggang, namely Beijing Zhengqgi Shangcheng Investment Center LLP,
Beijing Zhengqi Shangxin Investment Center LLP, Beijing Zhengqi Shangde Investment
Center LLP, Beijing Zhenggi Shangyu Investment Center LLP and Beijing Zhengqi Shanghui
Investment Center LLP, jointly referred to as “Z3 Project”, in November 2019.

Summarised financial information of Z3 Project, adjusted for any differences in accounting
policies, and a reconciliation to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements,
are disclosed below:

31 December 31 December
2021 2020
US$'000 US$’000
Non-current assets 1,111,229 1,082,187
Current assets 5,033 2,873
Non-current liabilities (334) (475)
Current liabilities (46,278) (34,109)
Equity attributed to equity shareholders 1,069,650 1,050,476
Group’s effective interest 34.00% 34.00%
Carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements 362,772 357,162

Included in the above assets and liabilities:

Cash and cash equivalents 3,775 1,780
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13. Joint ventures (continued)

(d)

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

Us$'000 US$’000

Revenue - -
Loss for the year from continuing operation (7,985) (7,052)
Total comprehensive income (7,985) (7,052)
Group’s effective interest 34.00% 34.00%
Share of results (net of tax expense) of joint venture (2,715) (2,398)

Included in the above profit:

Interest expense (3,465) -
Interest income 18 7

CVA | Fund

CVA | Fund is a limited partnership established in the PRC in February 2018 by the Group
and another third party investor with total equity commitments of RMB9.8 billion (equivalent
to approximately US$1.4 billion). The Fund engages in acquisition and management of
completed logistics and industrial estate assets in China.

Summarised financial information of CVA | Fund, adjusted for any differences in accounting
policies, and a reconciliation to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements,
are disclosed below:

31 December 31 December

2021 2020
US$’000 Us$’000
Non-current assets 3,257,933 2,681,910
Current assets 213,594 303,113
Non-current liabilities (1,435,064) (1,171,875)
Current liabilities (73,484) (129,395)
Non-controlling interests (287,021) (253,611)
Equity attributed to equity shareholders 1,675,958 1,430,142
Group'’s effective interest 18.37% 18.37%
Carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements 278,905 236,593
Included in the above assets and liabilities:
Cash and cash equivalents 194,404 284,043
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade and other
payables) (16,800) (5,933)
Non-current financial liabilities (excluding trade and
other payables) (1,435,064) (1,171,875)
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(e)

Joint ventures (continued)

Revenue

Profit for the year from continuing operations

Less: Profit attributable to NCI

Profit attributable to equity shareholders

Total comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income attributable to equity
shareholders

Group’s effective interest

Share of results (net of tax expense) of joint venture

Included in the above profit:
Depreciation and amortisation
Interest expense

Interest income

Income tax expense

Other individually immaterial joint ventures

GLP China Holdings Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021

Year ended
31 December
2021
Us$'000

202,071
219,587
(26,181)
193,406
219,587

193,406
18.37%
35,529

(64)

(62,724)
1,670

(93,730)

Year ended
31 December
2020
US$'000

151,703
67,111
(11,458)
55,653
67,111

55,653
18.37%
10,223

(76)

(46,381)
1,552

(41,011)

Summarised financial information of other individually immaterial joint ventures, adjusted for
any differences in accounting policies, and a reconciliation to the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed below:

Profit for the year from continuing operation

Less: Profit attributable to NCI

Profit attributable to equity shareholders Y

Total comprehensive income {

Total comprehensive income attributable to equ1ty
shareholders

Aggregate amount of the share of results of joint
ventures
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Year ended
31 December
2021
US$'000

126,710
(5,850)
125,371
126,710
125,371

42,572

Year ended
31 December
2020
UsS$'000

109,318
(7,115)
116,434
109,318
116,434
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14. Associates

31 December 31 December
Notes 2021 2020
USs$'000 US$'000
Zhongjin Jiaye (Tianjin) Commercial Real Estate
Investment Center LLP (“Zhongjin Jiaye”) (a) 220,368 216,997
Zhuhai Hidden Hill Logistic Equity Investment
Fund (LP) (“Hidden Hill Fund”) (b) 1,252,481 963,438
GLP Jianfa (Xiamen) Investment Fund LLP
(“Jian Fa Fund”) (c) 365,258 114,840
Others (d) 973,540 504,607

2,811,647 1,799,882

(a) Zhongjin Jiaye

Zhongjin Jiaye (Tianjin) Commercial Real Estate Investment Center LLP (referred to as
“Zhongjin Jiaye”) is limited partnership established in the PRC. The purpose of the limited
partnership is to seek capital appreciation by investing in the Z3 project (see note 13(c)). In
April 2019, the Group acquired 58.63% equity interest of Zhongijin Jiaye through acquiring
100% equity interest of one limited partner of Zhongjin Jiaye. Zhongijin Jiaye is primarily
controlled by its consulting committee board and investing committee board and the Group
has significant influence in it through its membership in these boards.

Summarised financial information of Zhongjin Jiaye, adjusted for any differences in
accounting policies, and a reconciliation to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed below:

31 December 31 December
2021 2020
US$'000 US$’000
Non-current assets 366,004 360,289
Current assets 10,408 10,194
Current liabilities (550) (372)
Net assets attributed to equity shareholders 375,862 370,111
Group'’s interest in associate 58.63% 58.63%
Carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements 220,368 216,997
Included in the above assets and liabilities:
Cash and cash equivalents 97 119
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14. Associates (continued)

(b)

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

Us$’000 US$’000

Revenue - -
Loss for the year from continuing operation (2,906) (1,597)
Total comprehensive income (2,906) (1,597)
Group’s effective interest 58.63% 58.63%
Share of results (net of tax expense) of associate (1,704) (936)

Included in the above profit:;

Interest income 165 807

Hidden Hill Fund

In May 2018, the Group invested in 30.76% equity interest of Hidden Hill Fund, which is
focusing on logistics ecology. The Group increased its equity interest in Hidden Hill Fund to
67.97% as at 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020: 67.97%). The Hidden Hill Fund is
primarily controlled by its consulting committee board and investing committee board
consisting of five members with one of them appointed by the Group. Resolutions at any
meeting of these committees shall be decided by two-thirds of the voting members and the
Group has significant influence in it by virtue of its one membership in these boards.

Summarised financial information of the Hidden Hill Fund, adjusted for any differences in
accounting policies, and a reconciliation to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed below:

31 December 31 December

2021 2020
uS$'000 UsS$'000
Non-current assets 1,874,210 1,098,061
Current assets 169,864 177,178
Non-current liabilities (112,776) (35,128)
Current liabilities (136) (29,168)
Net assets attributable to equity shareholders 1,931,162 1,210,943
Group’s interest in associate 67.97% 67.97%
Carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements 1,252,481 963,438
Interest in associate held for sale (note 21) 133,779 -
Included in the above assets and liabilities:
Cash and cash equivalents 169,864 130,732
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Associates (continued)

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

Us$'000 US$'000

Revenue 557,308 257,366

Profit for the year from continuing operation 448,019 213,447

Total comprehensive income 448,019 213,447

Group’s effective interest 67.97% 67.97%

Share of results (net of tax expense) of associate 373,385 185,610
Included in the above profit:

Interest income 478 351

Jian Fa Fund

In November 2020, the Group invested in 49.76% equity interest of Jian Fa Fund, which is a
private equity investment vehicle formed in the PRC. The general partner and the key
decision making of Jian Fa Fund is primarily controlled by its general partner’s board of
directors, which consists of seven members with two of them appointed by the Group.
Resolutions at any meeting of these committees shall be decided by two-thirds of the voting
members and the Group has significant influence in it by virtue of its two members in these
boards.

Summarised financial information of the Jian Fa Fund, adjusted for any differences in
accounting policies, and a reconciliation to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed below:

31 December 31 December
2021 2020
US$000 US$’'000
Non-current assets 518,275 184,893
Current assets 241,685 13,338
Current liabilities (70) -
Net assets attributable to equity shareholders 759,890 198,231
Group’s interest in associate 49.76% 49.76%

Carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements 365,258 114,840

Included in the above assets and liabilities:
Cash and cash equivalents 215,543 9,949
T w2 e
el e
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14. Associates (continued)

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

US$'000 UsS$’000

Revenue 194,431 12,165
Profit for the year from continuing operation 188,654 11,875
Total comprehensive income 188,654 11,875
Group’s effective interest 49.76% 49.76%
Share of results (net of tax expense) of associate 100,680 (14)

Included in the above profit:

Interest expense 4) -

(d) Other individually immaterial associates

Summarised financial information of other individually immaterial associates, adjusted for any
differences in accounting policies, and a reconciliation to the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed below:

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

US$’000 US$'000

Profit for the year from continuing operation 284,266 51,474
Total comprehensive income 284,149 51,474
Aggregate amount of the results of associates 28,975 9,369
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15. Deferred tax

Movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year are as follows:

Effect of Recognised

movement in other Recognised Reclassified to
At Acquisition of Disposal of in exchange comprehensive in profit assels held At
1 January subsidiaries subsidiaties rates income or loss forsele 31 December
(note 29) (note 29) {note 10)
US§'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US§$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
Deferred tax assets
31 December 2020
Unutilised tax losses 35,396 255 (9,665) 1,510 - (2,393) (567} 24,546
Others 4,007 - - 309 - 557 - 4,873
39,403 255 (9,665) 1,819 - (1,836) (557) 29419
31 December 2021
Unutilised tax losses 24,546 11,206 (11,235) (571) . (3,609) (10,144) 10,193
Others 4873 - - 112 - (94) - 4,891
29,419 11,206 (11,235) (459) - (3,703) (10,144) 15,084
Deferred tax
llabllitles
31 Decomber 2020
Investment properties  (2,299,937) (135,196) 307,504 (182,304) - (188,997) 167,690 (2,331,240)
Other investments (48,443) - (6,513) (4,211) 367 (21,327) - (80,127)
Buildings held for
own use carried at
fair value (1,089) - . (141) (1,142) - - (2,372)
Others (7,464) (297) 298 (2,805) - (39,763) - (50,031)
(2,356,933) (135,493) 301,289 (189,461) (775) (250,087) 167,690 (2,463,770)
31 December 2021
Investment properties (2,331,240) (18,590) 765,423 (59,036) - (320,137) 502,203 (1,461,377)
Other investments (80,127) - - (3,435) (11,162) (52,614) - (147,338)
Buildings held for
own use carried at
fair value (2,372) - - (26) 2,398 - - .
Others (50,031) - . (1,878) (237) (81,264) . (133,410)
(2,463,770) (18,590) 765,423 (64,375) (8,001) (454,015) 502,203 (1,742,125)
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Deferred tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes relate to the same tax authority. The
amounts determined after appropriate offsetting are included in the statement of financial
position as follows:

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

US$'000 UsS$'000

Deferred tax assets 24,657 21,455
Deferred tax liabilities (1,751,698) (2,455,806)

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items because it is
not probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the Group can utilise the
benefits there from:

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

Us$'000 US$’000

Tax losses 857,248 653,028

Tax losses are subject to agreement by the tax authorities and compliance with tax
regulations in the respective countries in which the subsidiaries operate. As at 31 December
2021, unrecognised tax losses amounting to approximately US$ 857,248,000 (31 December
2020: US$653,028,000) will expire within 1 to 5 years.

The PRC income tax law and its relevant regulations impose a withholding tax at 10%,
unless reduced by a tax treaty/arrangement, for dividend distributions out of earnings
accumulated beginning on or after 1 January 2008. As at 31 December 2021, the Group has
not recognised a deferred tax liability amounting to US$ 83,311,000 (31 December 2020:
US$89,448,000) in respect of undistributed earnings of PRC subsidiaries because the Group
can control the timing of the distribution and it is probable that the dividend will not be
distributed to the holding company outside the PRC in the foreseeable future.

. —
el N
e ——
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16. Property, plant and equipment

Buildings
Buildings  held for own
Furniture, Assets held for own use carried
fittings and under use carried  af amortised  Right-of-use
equipment Solar plants construction at fair value cost assets Total
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
(note 11)
Cost
At 1 January 2020 90,887 438 - 73,693 - 69,953 234,971
Acquisition of subsidiaries 33,990 - - - 75,471 28,325 137,786
Additions 59,155 - 17,048 23,995 - 11,706 111,904
Disposal of subsidiaries (98,159) (436) - - - (1,789) (100,384)
Disposals (8,929) - - - - - (8,929)
Elimination on revaluation - - - (2,591) - - (2,591)
Changes in fair value
recognised in OCI - - - 4,566 - - 4,566
Effect of movements in
exchange rates 3,328 (2) 981 6,591 6,117 6,603 23,618
At 31 December 2020 80,272 - 18,029 106,254 81,588 114,798 400,941
Acquisition of subsidiaries 40,004 - 3,030 - - 50,310 93,344
Additions 54,862 - 150,174 41,995 - 320,547 567,578
Disposal of subsidiaries (6,221) - - (156,822) - - (163,043)
Disposals (1,365) - - - - (18,977) (20,342)
Transfers 37,816 - (8,513) - (30,589) - (1,286)
Elimination on revaluation - - - (827) . " (827)
Changes in fair value
recognised in OCI - - - 6,698 - - 6,698
Effect of movements in
exchange rates 2,764 - 2,187 2,702 1,453 7,025 16,131
Reclassification to assets held
for sale (64) - - - - - (64)
At 31 December 2021 208,068 - 164,907 - 52,452 473,703 899,130
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2020 (27,730) (8) - g - (4,592) (32,330)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (8,330) - - - (6,962) (970) (16,262)
Charge for the year (9,737) 4) = (2,591) (1,117) (9,155) (22,604)
Disposal of subsidiaries 14,468 12 - - - 293 14,773
Disposals 6,617 - - - - - 6,617
Elimination on revaluation - - - 2,591 - - 2,591
Effect of movements in
exchange rates (3,625) - - - (697) (874) (5,196)
At 31 December 2020 (28,337) -~ = = (8,776) (15,298) (52,411)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (947) - - . - . (947)
Charge for the year (8,620) = 2 (827) (1,008) (17,684) (28,137)
Disposal of subsidiaries 2,697 - = - = = 2,697
Disposals 470 - - 6,152 6,622
Elimination on revaluation - 827 - - 827
Effect of movements in
exchange rates (1,524) - - - (607) (3.918) (6,049)
Transfers - - - - 1,286 - 1,286
Reclassification to assets held
for sale 64 < = = - = 64
At 31 December 2021 (36,197) - . - (9,103) (30,748) (76,048)
Carrying amounts
At 31 December 2020 51,935 - 18,029 106,254 72,812 99,500 348,530

At 31 December 2021 171,871 - 164,907 - 43,349 442,955 823,082

—————— ==_ T
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Intangible assets

Cost

At 1 January 2020

Acquisition of subsidiaries

Additions

Disposal of subsidiaries

Reclassified to assets held for sale
Effect of movements in exchange rates

At 31 December 2020
Effect of movements in exchange rates

At 31 December 2021
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2020

Charge for the year

Disposal of subsidiaries
Effect of movements in exchange rates

At 31 December 2020

Charge for the year

Effect of movements in exchange rates
At 31 December 2021

Carrying amounts:

At 31 December 2020

At 31 December 2021

GLP China Holdings Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021

Goodwill Trademark License rights Total
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
276,739 23,327 913 300,979
59,841 4,879 2,597 67,317
- - 18 18
(25,657) (4,956) (212) (30,825)
(34,742) - B (34,742)
19,698 1,699 67 21,464
295,879 24,949 3,383 324,211
8,068 592 127 8,787
303,947 25,541 3510 33_2,998
- (11,230) 777) (12,007)
- (1,300) (324) (1,624)
- 212 172 384
- 1,117) (57) (1,174)
- (13,435) (986) (14,421)
- (1,284) (85) (1,369)
n (468) (24) (492)
(15,187) (1,095) (16,282)
295,879 11,514 2,397 309,790

303,947 10,354 2,415 316,716

Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (CGU) identified according to
country of operation and operating segment, carrying amount of each CGU as follows:

GLP China (Note)
ACL Group

Total

31 December 31 December
2021 2020
US$’000 UsS$'000
246,275 239,526
57,672 56,353
303,947 295,879

Note: Relates to the leasing of logistic facilities and provision of asset management services
in China and excludes the ACL Group.

—— L
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(a)

(b)
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Intangible assets (continued)
GLP China

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on fair value less costs of disposal.
The CGU comprises following categories: development business, fund management,
investment properties and other investments as at 31 December 2021. In determining fair
value, a combination of approaches were used, including the direct comparison, income
capitalisation, discounted cash flow and residual approaches. The direct comparison
approach involves the analysis of comparable properties or public companies, the Group
invests in companies listed in active markets, and these equity securities are stated at their
fair values at the reporting date. The income capitalisation approach capitalises an income
stream into a present value using single-year capitalisation rates, and the income stream
used is adjusted to market rentals currently being achieved within comparable investment
properties and recent leasing transactions achieved within the investment property. The
discounted cash flow approach requires the valuer to assume a rental growth rate indicative
of market and the selection of a target internal rate of return consistent with current market
requirements. The residual approach values properties under development and land held for
development by reference to its development potential and deducting development costs to
be incurred, together with developers’ profit margin, assuming it was completed as at the
date of valuation.

As at 31 December 2021, key assumptions on which management has based its
determination of fair value less costs to sell or disposal are capitalisation rate 4.00% - 7.00%
(31 December 2020: 4.00% - 7.00%), discount rate 7.25% - 10.50% (31 December 2020:
8.00% - 10.50%), terminal yield rate 4.00% - 7.00% (31 December 2020: 4.00% - 7.00%).
The Group believes that any reasonably possible changes in the above key assumptions
applied are not likely to cause the recoverable amount to be materially lower than its carrying
amount.

ACL Group

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on value in use calculation. The
value in use calculation is a discounted cash flow model using cash flow projections based
on the most recent budgets and forecasts approved by management covering ten years.
Cash flows beyond these periods are extrapolated using the estimated terminal growth rate.
The discount rate applied is the weighted average cost of capital from the relevant business
segment. The terminal growth rate used does not exceed management’s expectation of the
long-term average growth rate of the respective industry and country in which the CGU
operates. The discount rate and terminal growth rate used as at 31 December 2021 are
7.5% and 3% respectively (31 December 2020: 7.5% and 3%). The Group believes that any
reasonably possible changes in the above key assumptions applied are not likely to
materially cause the recoverable amount to be lower than its carrying amount.
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Other investments

31 December

31 December

2021 2020

Us$'000 US$'000

Listed equity securities - at FVOCI (non-recycling) 510,621 418,902
Listed REIT securities - at FVOCI (non-recycling) 230,883 -
Listed equity securities - at FVTPL 406,213 50,525
Unlisted equity securities - at FVTPL 1,189,147 1,655,919
2,336,864 2,125,346

As at 31 December 2021, listed equity securities included equity interests in three (31
December 2020: three) listed companies which the Group has designated as investments at
FVOCI (non-recycling), because these investments are held for strategic purposes.

As at 31 December 2021, listed REIT securities included 302,578,000 Units (31 December

2020: Nil) of FEE BT ORI AN EBRIRMIESIERES ( "CICC GLP REIT”), which
is listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. In June 2021, the Group disposed of certain

subsidiaries to CICC GLP REIT (note 29).

Other non-current assets

/, 31 December 31 December
e , 2021 2020
T e e i US$'000 US$’000
Trade receivables 34,352 50,253
Prepayments 9 70,484 65,738
Deferred management costs 19,749 8,341
Loans to joint ventures 437,576 513,416
Loans to associates 21,022 4,971
Loans to third parties 5,249 10,411
Other investments held for disposal 128,201 125,269

716,633 778,399

The loans to joint ventures are repayable after one year, and bear interest rate ranging from
5.70% to 8.00% (31 December 2020: 5.70% to 8.63%) per annum, except for a loan of

US$700,000 (31 December 2020: nil) which is interest-free at the reporting date.

The loans to associates are repayable after one year, and bear interest rate at 6.00% (31
December 2020: 8.00% to 10.00%) per annum, except for approximately US$11,612,000

which is interest-free upon completion of the acquisition.

The loans to third parties in relation to new strategic investments are unsecured, repayable
after one year. The balance of 2021 is interest-free upon completion of the acquisition (31

December 2020: 18.00% per annum).
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20. Trade and other receivables

31 December 31 December
2021 2020
US$'000 US$’000
Net trade receivables:
- Trade receivables 52,052 53,122
- Impairment losses (1,881) (1,921)
50,171 51,201
Amounts due from joint ventures:
- Trade 10,346 16,635
- Non-trade 87,744 58,056
- Loans to joint ventures 100,859 29,468
198,949 104,159
Amounts due from associates:
- Trade 13,798 41,834
- Non-trade 248,242 240,780
- Loans to associates 142,223 193,722
404,263 476,336
Amounts due from non-controlling interests:
- Non-trade 8,611 15,301
- Loans to non-controlling interests 16,104 49,503
24,715 64,804
Amount due from an intermediate holding company:
- Non-trade 753,760 -
Amounts due from other related parties:
- Trade 14,116 -
- Non-trade 894,301 331,452
908,417 331,452
Loans to third parties . 130,058 34,546
Loans to employees - 103,731
Deposits 105,657 78,283
Net other receivables:
- Other receivables 291,720 301,527
- Impairment losses (218) (265)
291,502 301,262
Prepayments . #T 22,351 27,645
e R
8 2,889,843 1,573,419

The non-trade amounts due from joint ventures, associates, non-controlling interests and
other related parties are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

The loans to joint ventures, associates and non-controlling interests are unsecured, bear
effective interests ranging from 5.70% to 15.20% (31 December 2020: 5.10%% to 10.00%)
per annum, except for approximately US$137,675,000 (21 December 2020: nil) which is
interest-free at the reporting date and are repayable within the next 12 months.
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Trade and other receivables (continued)

The loans to third parties in relation to acquisition of new investments are secured, repayable
within the next 12 months, and bear effective interest ranging from 10.00% to 18.00% (31
December 2020: 8.00% to 10.00%) per annum, except for approximately US$102,570,000
which is interest-free upon completion of the acquisition (31 December 2020: US$12,935,000
which is interest-free upon completion of the acquisition).

Deposits include an amount of approximately US$16,313,000 (31 December 2020:
US$47,341,000) in relation to the acquisition of new investments. Other receivables
comprise principally interest receivable and VAT recoverable.

Trade receivables are due on the date of billing. Further details on the Group’s credit policy
are set out in note 30(a).

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables and contract assets at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a provision matrix. As the Group’s historical
credit loss experience does not indicate significantly different loss patterns for different
customer segments, the loss allowance based on past due status is not further distinguished
between the Group’s different customer bases.

The following table provides information about the Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs
for trade receivables and contract assets as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2021:

31 December 2020

Expected  Gross carrying Loss

loss rate amount allowance

% UsS$'000 $°000
Within 1 month 0.67 44,066 (295)
1 to 2 months 6.67 4,198 (280)
2 to 3 months 19.58 507 (99)
3 to 6 months 18.73 1,579 (296)
7 to 12 months \ 21.45 2,318 (497)
Over 12 months e 100.00 454 (454)
53,122 (1,921)

80



GLP China Holdings Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021

20. Trade and other receivables (continued)

31 December 2021

Expected  Gross carrying Loss

loss rate amount allowance

% UsS$'000 $°000

Within 1 month 0.56 48,339 (272)
1 to 2 months 17.54 1,487 (261)
2 to 3 months 44.09 301 (133)
3 to 6 months 49.43 1,190 (589)
7 to 12 months 66.23 323 (214)
Over 12 months 100.00 412 (412)
52,052 (1,881)

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience over the past 12 months. These
rates are adjusted to reflect differences between economic conditions during the period over
which the historic data has been collected, current conditions and the Group’s view of
economic conditions over the expected lives of the receivables.

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade receivables during the year is as

follows:

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

US$'000 US$’000

Balance at 1 January 2,186 25,484
Impairment loss recognised 993 12,387
Acquisition of subsidiaries 189 126
Disposal of subsidiaries (428) (35,018)
Exchange differences (841) (793)
Balance at 31 December 2,099 2,186

Credit risk arising from loans to joint ventures, loans to associates, loans to non-controlling
interests and loans to third parties.

The loans to joint ventures, the loans to associates, the loans to non-controlling interests and
the loans to third parties are repayable within the next 12 months. The Group considers that
the credit risk arising from these loans are insignificant as the loans are within the credit
period.
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21. Assets classified as held for sale and disposal group held for sale

31 December 31 December

Note 2021 2020

UsS$’000 US$'000

Assets of disposal group held for sale (a) 5,398,886 1,166,970
Liabilities of disposal group held for sale (b) (2,476,658) (329,501)
Interest in an associate 133,779 -
3,056,007 837,469

In December 2020, the Group entered into an agreement with a related party to dispose of a
subsidiary, Shanghai Lingang GLP International Logistics Development Co., Ltd., at a
consideration of RMB3,800,000,000 (equivalent to approximately US$ 578,906,000). As at
31 December 2021, such disposals were completed.

During the period from June to December 2021, the Group has initiated and committed to
several plans to dispose of a group of subsidiaries to the respective related parties. The
disposal consideration will be based on the fair value of the subsidiaries. As at 31 December
2021, such disposals have not been completed yet.

Furthermore, in December 2021, the Group has initiated and committed to a plan to dispose
of certain interest in an associate to third parties. As at 31 December 2021, such disposal
has not been completed yet.

The transfer procedures are expected to be completed in the near future. As a result, the
assets and liabilities of those subsidiaries are presented as assets held for sale and liabilities
held for sale respectively as at 31 December 2021.

(a) Assets of disposal group held for sale comprise:

31 December 31 December
2021 2020
uUs$'000 US$'000
Investment properties 5,093,558 1,065,798
Cash at bank \ 246,508 61,310
Other assets 58,820 39,862
Assets held for sale 5,398,886 1,166,970
——
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21. Assets classified as held for sale and disposal group held for sale (continued)

(b) Liabilities of disposal group held for sale comprise:

Loans and borrowings
Deferred tax liabilities
Others

Liabilities held for sale

22. Cash and cash equivalents

(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

Fixed deposits
Cash at bank

Cash and cash equivalents in consolidated statement
of financial position

Cash and cash equivalents in disposal group

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated
cashflow statement

31 December

31 December

2021 2020
US$'000 US$'000
(1,209,536) (141,127)
(673,314) (167,690)
(593,808) (20,684)
(2,476,658) (329,501)

31 December

31 December

2021 2020
US$'000 Us$'000
- 58
716,941 1,160,694
716,941 1,160,752
246,508 61,310
963,449 1,222,062

The effective interest rates relating to certain cash at bank balances at reporting date for the
Group ranged from 0.01% to 0.45% (31 December 2020: 0.01% to 0.35%) per annum

respectively.
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22. Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

GLP China Holdings Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from financing activities, including
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the cash flow statement as
cash flows from financing activities.

At 1 January 2020

Changes from financing
cash flows:

Proceeds from bank
loans

Repayment of bank
loans

Proceeds from issue of
bonds

Repayment of bonds

Repayment of loans
from intermediate
holding company

Repayment of loans
from non-controlling
interests

Proceeds of loans from
non-controlling
interests

Proceeds of loans from
joint ventures

Repayment of loans
from associate

Proceeds of loans from
third parties

Repayment of loans
from joint ventures

Repayment of loans
from third parties

Cash payments for
principal portion of
lease liabilities

Cash payments for
interest portion of
lease liabilities

Interest paid

Repayment of notes
payable

Total changes from
financing cash flows

Other changes:

Acquisition of
subsidiaries (note 29)

Disposal of subsidiaries
(note 29)

Additions

Interest expense

Effect of movements in
exchange rates

Others

Total other changes

At 31 December 2020

Loans from
non-controlling

Loans from  interests, joint
intermediate venlures,
Loans and holding  associate and Lease interest
borrowings company third parties  Notes payable liabilities payable Total

(note 25) (note 26) (note 27) (note 27) (note 28) (note 27)

Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
8,190,561 451,554 35,791 3,563 45,488 166,940 8,893,897
5,633,415 - - 5,633,415
(4,292,235) — g - (4,292,235)

= 599,999

599,999 e e 5 = !

(30,285) - - - (30,285)
. (451,554) - (451,554)
(10,672) - (10,672)
8,849 8,849
31,111 - 31,111
(51,090) - (51,090)
(59,639) - (59,639)
(3,990) (3,990)
(4,622) (4,622)
5 = (3,231) - (3,231)
- . (488,279) (488,279)
= = (3,809) (3,809)
1,910,894 (451,554) (85,431) (3,809) (7,853) (488,279) 873,968
144,093 16,757 5,447 544 166,841
(303,866) - (2,500) - (1,496) (2,098) (309,980)
- - - - 14,786 - 14,786
- - - - 3,079 446,833 449,912
283,025 - 1,674 246 550 812 286,307
21,661 - 51,090 - - 72,751
144,893 67,021 246 22,366 446,091 680,617
17,381 - 60,001 124,752 10,448,482

10,246,348
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22. Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

Loans from

non-controlling

interests, joint

Loans and  ventures, associate

borrowings and third parties Lease liabilities Interest payable Total

(note 25) (notes 26 and 27) (note 28) (note 27)

Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
At 1 January 2021 10,246,348 17,381 60,001 124,752 10,448,482
Changes from financing cash

flows:

Proceeds from bank loans 6,713,692 - - - 6,713,692
Repayment of bank loans (6,829,248) - . - (6,829,248)
Proceeds from issue of bonds 2,751,731 - - - 2,751,731
Repayment of bonds (2,633,904) - - - (2,633,904)

Repayment of loans from

intermediate holding company - - - - -
Repayment of loans from non-

controlling interests - (10,202) - - (10,202)
Proceeds of loans from non-

controlling interests . . - -
Proceeds of loans from joint

ventures - . - - -
Repayment of loans from

associate - . - - -
Proceeds of loans from third

parties
Repayment of loans from joint

ventures -
Repayment of loans from third

parties - (637) - - (637)
Cash payments for principal

portion of lease liabilities - - (14,400) - (14,400)
Cash payments for interest

portion of lease liabilities - - (6,852) - (6,852)
Interest paid - - - (500,670) (500,670)
Total changes from financing

cash flows 2,271 (10,839) (21,252) (500,670) (530,491)
Other changes:
Acquisition of subsidiaries

(note 29) 303,465 - - 2,466 305,931
Disposal of subsidiaries

(note 29) (988,374) - (12,825) (502) (1,001,701)
Additions - - 220,280 - 220,280
Interest expense - - 6,182 481,105 487,287
Effect of movements in exchange

rates 153,893 170 5312 2,052 161,427
Others (1,535,309) 896 - = (1,5634,413)
Total other changes (2,066,325) 1,066 218,949 485,121 (1,361,189)

At 31 December 2021 8,182,294 7,608 257,698 109,203 8,556,802
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23.

(a)

(b)

Share capital and capital management

Movements in components of equity
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The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of each component of the
Group's consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Details of the changes in the Company’s individual components of equity between the

beginning and the end of the year are set out below:

Company

Balance at 1 January 2020

Total comprehensive income for the year
Tax-exempt dividends paid (External)

Balance at 31 December 2020

Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance at 31 December 2021

Share capital

Issued share capital

Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid:

Currency
Share translation Retained
capital reserve earnings Total
uS$'000 usS$'000 US$000 US$'000
6,950,825 (751,744) (544,388) 5,654,693
B 431,658 963,357 1,395,015
= - (430,453) (430,453)
6,950,825 (320,086) (11,484) 6,619,255
152,844 (168,635) (15,791)
6,950,825 (167,242) (180,119) 6,603,464
31 December
No. of shares
000 US$’000
6,950,825 6,950,825

In accordance with section 135 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, the ordinary shares

of the Company do not have a par value.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time
and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank

equally with regarding to the Company’s residual assets.
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23.

(c)

(d)

GLP China Holdings Limited
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Share capital and capital management (continued)
Dividends

The Board of Directors has not declared any dividend in respect of the year ended 31
December 2021. On 22 June 2020, the Board of Directors resolved to pay dividend of
US$ 430,453,000 in respect of the year ended 31 December 2020.

Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to build a strong capital base so as to
sustain the future developments of its business and to maintain an optimal capital structure
to maximise shareholder’s value. The Group defines “capital” as including all components of
equity plus loans from its holding companies and related corporations with no fixed terms of
repayment.

The Group’s capital structure is regularly reviewed and managed with due regard to the
capital management practices of the larger group to which the Company belongs.
Adjustments are made to the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions,
regulatory requirements and business strategies affecting the Group.

The Group also monitors capital using a net debt to equity ratio and net debt to asset
(excluding cash) ratio, which is defined as net borrowings divided by total equity (including
non-controlling interests) or asset (excluding cash), respectively.

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

US$’000 UsS$’000

Loans and borrowings 8,182,294 10,246,348
Loans from non-controlling interests 4,003 14,039
Loans from third parties 776 513
Loans from joint ventures 2,829 2,829
Lease liabilities 257,698 60,001
Total debt 8,447,600 10,323,730
Less: cash and cash equivalents (716,941) (1,160,752)
Net debt 7,730,659 9,162,978
Total equity —_— L ) 19,857,139 17,559,761
Total assets 34,518,956 32,755,885
Net debt to equity ratio 38.93% 52.18%
Net debt to asset (excluding cash) ratio 22.87% 29.00%

The Group seeks to strike a balance between the higher returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the liquidity and security afforded by a sound capital position.

There were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital management during the year.
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Share capital and capital management (continued)

During year 2021, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged from the year ended 31
December 2020, was to maintain net debt-to-asset ratio of no more than 50% or net debt-to-
equity ratio of no more than 55%. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares or request new loans
from other group companies or sell assets to reduce debt.

All of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment of covenants relating to
certain of the Group’s balance sheet ratios, as are commonly found in lending arrangements
with financial institutions. If the Group were to breach the covenants the drawn down
facilities would become payable on demand. The Group regularly monitors its compliance
with these covenants. Further details of the Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out
in note 30(b). As at and during the year ended 31 December 2021, none of the covenants
relating to drawn down facilities had been breached (31 December 2020: none).

Reserves
— e A 31 December 31 December
A S 2021 2020
i . Us$’000 US$’'000
Capital reserve 90,779 3,838
Equity compensation reserve 36,849 36,849
Currency translation reserve 174,951 (129,913)
Fair value reserve (non-recycling) 228,707 113,227
Property revaluation reserve - 6,730
Other reserve (1,554,630) (1,554,630)
Retained earnings 8,301,787 6,956,745
7,278,443 5,432,846

The capital reserve comprises mainly equity transactions gain or loss from the changes in
the Group’s interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control and the Group’s
share of the statutory reserve of its PRC-incorporated subsidiaries. Statutory reserve of its
PRC-incorporated subsidiaries was transferred from retained earnings in accordance with
the relevant PRC rules and regulations and the articles of association of the Company’s
subsidiaries incorporated in PRC, and were approved by the respective board of directors.
As at 31 December 2021, retained earnings includes approximately US$102,790,000(31
December 2020: US$58,958,000) to be transferred to statutory reserve before distribution of
any dividends to shareholders in the future.

The equity compensation reserve comprises the cumulative value of employee services
received for the issue of the shares under the GLP Performance Share Plan and Restricted
Share Plan.

The property revaluation reserve has been set up and is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies adopted for buildings held for own use carried at fair value.

The fair value reserve (non-recycling) comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value
of equity investments designated at FVOCI under HKFRS 9 that are held at the end of the
reporting period (see note 2(h)).

Other reserve mainly represents capital contributions from the immediate holding company
and the merger reserve which was the difference between the Company’s share of the
nominal value of the paid-up capital and capital reserve related to shareholders’ injection of
the subsidiaries acquired over the nominal value of the ordinary shares issued by the
Company.

88



25. Loans and borrowings

26.

Non-current liabilities

Secured bank loans
Secured bonds
Unsecured bank loans
Unsecured bonds

Current liabilities S

Secured bank loans
Secured bonds
Unsecured bank loans
Unsecured bonds

GLP China Holdings Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021

31 December

31 December

2021 2020
US$'000 US$’000
2,517,768 4,393,572
320,156 746,715
532,369 461,705
3,725,508 1,494,137
7,095,801 7,096,129
357,821 248,428
2,925 2,458
56,004 465,968
669,743 2,433,365
1,086,493 3,150,219

The secured bank loans and secured bonds are secured by mortgages on the borrowing

subsidiaries’ investment properties with a carrying amount of approximately

US$11,318,951,000(31 December 2020: US$15,445,068,000) (note 11).

The effective interest rates for bank borrowings ranged from 1.42% to 6.77% (31 December

2020: 1.29% to 6.77%) per annum.

Other non-current liabilities

31 December

31 December

2021 2020
us$'000 Us$’000
Security deposits received 43,911 77,791
Contract liabilities - 551
Employee bonus and incentive payable 16,111 21,483
Loans from non-controlling interests 3,046 10,388
Lease liabilities (note 28) 236,693 53,813
Deposits received for disposal of other investments 128,201 114,396
Consideration payable for acquisition of subsidiaries
and joint ventures 38,572 37,303
Others 33,834 1,612
500,368 317,337
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27. Trade and other payables

31 December 31 December
2021 2020
US$'000 UsS$'000
Trade payables 8,454 2,379
Accrued construction costs 574,052 692,675
Accrued operating expenses 117,408 92,429
Contract liabilities 38,015 40,645
Interest payable 102,484 116,380
Security deposits received 98,823 87,744
Amounts due to:
- Intermediate holding company (trade) 139,040 51,266
- Other related parties (trade) 8,223 14,532
- Other related parties (non-trade) 134,092 300,342
- Non-controlling interests (trade) 2,992 3,358
- Non-controlling interests (non-trade) 28,640 17,736
- Joint ventures (trade) 2,188 1,622
- Joint ventures (non-trade) 4,787 495
- Associates (trade) 282 70
- Associates (non-trade) 35,441 32
Interest payable on loans from intermediate holding
company 6,284 7,383
Loans from non-controlling interests 957 3,651
Interest payable on loans from non-controlling interests 214 129
Loan from joint ventures 2,829 2,829
Interest payable on loans from joint ventures - 644
Loans from third parties 776 513
Interest payable on loans from third parties 221 216
Consideration payable for acquisition of subsidiaries 79,849 143,018
Deposits received and accrued expenses for disposal
of investment properties 77,211 58,909
Consideration payable for acquisition of investment
properties - 8,950
Other payables ' y 107,643 95,423
Dividends payable - 1,916
Lease liabilities (note 28) 21,005 6,188
1,591,910 1,751,374

The non-trade amounts due to non-controlling interests, joint ventures, associates and other
related parties are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed repayment terms. The loans
from non-controlling interests, joint ventures and third parties are unsecured and repayable
on demand. The interest-bearing loans from non-controlling interests, joint ventures and
third parties bear effective interests ranging from 4.00% to 6.08% (31 December 2020:
3.00% to 6.08%) per annum as at the reporting date.
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28. Lease liabilities

The remaining contractual maturities of the Group’s lease liabilities at the end of the reporting

year are as follows:

At 31 December 2021

Present value

of the minimum Total minimum

lease payments  lease payments

US$’000 US$'000

Within 1 year 21,005 33,270
After 1 year but within 2 years 21,951 33,164
After 2 years but within 5 years 62,548 89,693
After 5 years 152,194 185,835
257,698 341,962
Less: total future interest expenses (84,264)
Present value of lease liabilities 257,698

At 31 December 2020

Present value

of the minimum Total minimum

lease payments  lease payments

usS$000 US$'000

Within 1 year 6,188 9,313
After 1 year but within 2 years 5,963 8,734
After 2 years but within 5 years 15,540 22,185
After 5 years 32,310 40,312
60,001 80,544
Less: total future interest expenses (20,543)
Present value of lease liabilities 60,001
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29.

(i)

Notes to cash flow statement

Acquisitions of subsidiaries
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The primary reason for the Group’s acquisitions of subsidiaries is to expand its portfolio of
investment properties held in the PRC and possession of qualification for architecture

designing.

The list of subsidiaries acquired during the year ended 31 December 2021 is as follows:

Name of subsidiaries

Anhui Nuohan Intelligent Equipment Co., Ltd.

GLP Yiwu Pujie Logistics Facilities Co., Ltd. (“Yiwu Pujie")

Changchun Suning Yida Logistics Co., Ltd.

Jiangsu Zhichen Asset Management Co., Lid.

Nanjing Jingfu Asset Management Co., Ltd.

Chengdu Suning Yida Warehousing Co., Ltd.

Fuzhou Suning Tesco Trading Co., Ltd.

Harbin Suning Purchasing Co., Ltd.

Shijiazhuang Shining Suning Trading Co., Ltd.

Yunnan Suning Logistics Co., Ltd.

Shaoxing Suning Yuncang Logistics Co., Ltd.

Hefei Luning Yida Logistics Co., Ltd.

Hainan Suning Yida Logistics Co., Ltd.

Guiyang Suning Logistics Co., Ltd.

Nanjing Yuyue Asset Management Co., Ltd.

Yancheng Yanning Suning Tesco Co., Ltd.

Ezhou Suning Yida Logistics Investment Co., Ltd.

Wuhu Suning Yida Logistics Co., Ltd.

Jining Yanzhou Suning Yida Logistics Warehousing
Co,, Ltd.

Lanzhou Suning Purchasing Co., Ltd.

Urumgi Suning Tesco Trading Co., Ltd.

Xuzhou Suning Yida Logistics Co., Ltd.

Nanning Xinbao Zhihui Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd.

Wenzhou Chengya Supply Chain Co., Ltd.

Haikou Xinjia Logistics Co., Ltd.

Zhengzhou Donggong Wanchi Industrial Co., Ltd.

Hangzhou Oujixing Food Co., Ltd.

Beijing Kirin Property Management Development Co., Ltd.

Guangde International Investment (Zhejiang) Sports
Co,, Ltd.

Beijing Aidixi Technology Co., Ltd.

Beijing Addison Data Technology Development Co., Ltd.

Beijing Logistics Pte. Ltd.

Beijing Yongle Jiadi Technology Development Co., Ltd.

Beijing Bishengyuan Food and Beverage Co., Ltd.
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acquired

January 2021
March 2021
April 2021
April 2021
April 2021
April 2021
April 2021
April 2021
April 2021
April 2021
April 2021
April 2021
April 2021
April 2021
April 2021
April 2021
April 2021
April 2021

April 2021
April 2021
April 2021
May 2021
April 2021
May 2021
June 2021
June 2021
August 2021
August 2021

July 2021
September 2021
September 2021
September 2021
September 2021

December 2021

Equity interest
acquired
%

91
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80
80

100
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29. Notes to cash flow statement (continued)
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Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021

The list of subsidiaries acquired during the year ended 31 December 2020 is as follows:

Name of subsidiaries

Shanghai Lingang GLP International Logistics Development

Co., Ltd.
Hangzhou Yunchu Technology Co., Ltd.
Shanghai Jiangao Logistics Co., Ltd.
Jiangsu Kangbo Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd.
Tompkins International LLC.
Dalian Zhangzidao Central Freezer Logistics Co., Ltd.
Suzhou Industrial Park Chuangpu Asset Management
Co., Ltd
Shanghai Tongjiang Management Co., Ltd.

Suzhou Industrial Zone Pushuo Logistics Facilities Co., Ltd.

Shanghai Jiangkai Technology Co., Ltd.

HK Daily Products Limited

Meiriyouxian (Changshu) Supply Chain Management
Co., Ltd

Green Peak Tech Co., Ltd.

Hongyun Technology Development (Changshu)
Co., Ltd

Beijing Huayuan Yingdu Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

Shanghai G2link Internet Technology Co., Ltd.
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Date

acquired

Jan 2020
Jan 2020
March 2020
March 2020
April 2020
May 2020

June 2020

July 2020
August 2020
September 2020
December 2020

December 2020
November 2020

November 2020
December 2020
December 2020

Equity interest
acquired
%

70
100
100

920

66

75

70
100
50
100
100
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29. Notes to cash flow statement (continued)

Effect of the acquisitions

GLP China Holdings Limited
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The cash flow and the net assets of the subsidiaries acquired during the year ended 31

December 2021 and 2020 are provided below:

Investment properties
Property, plant and equipment
Other investments

Deferred tax assets

Other assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Trade and other payables
Loans and borrowings
Current tax payable
Deferred tax liabilities

Other non-current liabilities
Non-controlling interests

Net assets acquired
Goodwill
Gain on acquisition of a subsidiary

Purchase consideration

Fair value of previous held equity interest

Consideration payable

Satisfied by acquisition deposits paid in prior year

Cash of subsidiaries acquired

Payment of consideration in relation to prior years’
acquisitions

Cash outflow on acquisitions of subsidiaries

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
Recognised Recognised
values on values on
acquisition acquisition
Us$’000 US$’'000
1,996,368 1,050,716
92,397 121,524
- 1,134
11,206 255
36 347
20,109 72,905
72,562 26,310
(670,858) (138,053)
(303,465) (144,093)
70 (1,574)
(18,590) (135,493)
= (5,329)
(100,374) (183,240)
1,099,461 679,904
2 52,822
(19,477) (80)
1,079,984 732,646
(18,774) (314,003)
(188,470) (37,080)
= (83,133)
(20,109) (72,905)
104,859 73,975
957,490

299,500

The total related acquisition costs for the above-mentioned subsidiaries amounted to
approximately US$1,079,984,000 (year ended 31 December 2020: US$732,646,000). From
the respective dates of acquisitions to 31 December 2021, the above-mentioned acquisitions
contributed net profit of approximately US$23,293,000 to the Group’s results for the year,
before accounting for financing costs attributable to the acquisitions. Had the acquisitions
occurred on 1 January 2021, management estimates that the above-mentioned acquisitions
would have contributed approximately US$97,283,000 and US$54,215,000 to the Group’s
revenue and net profit respectively for year ended 31 December 2021.
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29. Notes to cash flow statement (continued)

Disposals of subsidiaries

GLP China Holdings Limited

Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021

(i)  The list of subsidiaries disposed during the year ended 31 December 2021 is as follows:

Name of subsidiaries

GLP Tongxiang Logistics Facilities Co., Ltd.

GLP (Chengdu) Hi-Tech Industrial Park Development
Co., Ltd.

Minshang (Nanning) Internet of Things Technology
Development Co., Ltd.

GLP GOLDEN LINCOLN B Partners, LP

Shanghai Zhongji Yangshan Container Services Co., Ltd.

GLP Beijing Airport Logistics Development Co., Ltd. (*)

Pushun Logistics Park Development Co., Ltd. (*)

Kunshan GLP Dianshanhu Logistics Co., Ltd. (*)

Suzhou GLP Wangting Development Co., Ltd. (*)

GLP Guangzhou Bonded Development Co., Ltd. (*)

GLP Guangzhou Warehousing Co., Ltd. (*)

CLH 88 (HK) Limited

GLP Beijing Jinma Technology Development Co., Ltd.

Shanghai Lingang GLP international Logistics Development
Co., Ltd.

GLP Suzhou Hi-Tech Logistics Facilities Co., Ltd.

GLP Shanghai Fengijia Logistics Facilities Co., Ltd.

GLP Shanghai Songjiang Logistics Facilities Co., Ltd.

Shanghai Zhuorui Packing Co., Ltd.

Beijing Chongjing Management Co., Ltd.

Beijing Huayuan Yingdu Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

GLP Luoxin Logistics Co.Ltd.

Uni-top Aviation Logistics (Wuxi) Co., Ltd.

Uni-top Aviation Logistics (XianYang) Co., Ltd.

Minshang(Changshu) Internet of Things Technology

GLP Chongging Bishan Logistics Facilities Co., Ltd.

Wuxi Pucheng Technology Industrial Development Co., Ltd.

GLP Wuxi Puxin Technology & Industrial Development
Co., Ltd.

Changzhou Puxin Intelligent Manufacturing Co., Ltd.
Tianjin GIP Industry Development Co., Ltd.

GH Investment 3 Limited

China Logistics Holding XlII Srl (Barbados 1BC)
CLH 84 (HK) Limited

Kong Hwa International Holding Company Limited
CLH 23 (HK) Limited

CLH 96 (HK) Limited

China Logistics Holding LXII Srl

CLH 41 (HK) Limited

CLH 106 (HK) Limited

China Logistics Holding (19) Pte Ltd
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Date
disposed

January 2021
January 2021

January 2021
March 2021
April 2021
June 2021
June 2021
June 2021
June 2021
June 2021
June 2021
June 2021
August 2021

September 2021
July 2021
September 2021
September 2021
September 2021
September 2021
September 2021
October 2021
October 2021
October 2021
November 2021
November 2021
November 2021

November 2021
November 2021
December 2021
December 2021
November 2021
December 2021
December 2021
December 2021
December 2021
December 2021
December 2021
December 2021
December 2021

Equity interest
disposed
%

100
100

100
68.51
50
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100

70
90
100
100
100
99.80
100
100
100
100
100
100
100

100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100



29. Notes to cash flow statement (continued)

Name of subsidiaries

CLH (40) Pte. Ltd.

CLH (49) Pte. Ltd.

Hangzhou Puxin Logistics Facilities Co., Ltd.
CLH 43 (HK) Limited

CLH 32 (HK) Limited

CLH 40 (HK) Limited

CLH 112 (HK) Limited

China Logistics Holding IV Srl (Barbados IBC)
China Logistics Holding IX Srl (Barbados IBC)
China Logistics Holding XXVII Srl (Barbados IBC)
China Logistics Holding (30) Pte Ltd

CLH (44) Pte. Ltd.

CLH (56) Pte. Ltd.

CLH (78) Pte. Ltd.

CLH 123 (HK) Limited

CLH 120 (HK) Limited

Be & Cheery International Limited

GLP China Holdings Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021

Date Equity interest

disposed disposed

%

December 2021 100
December 2021 100
December 2021 100
December 2021 100
December 2021 100
December 2021 100
December 2021 100
December 2021 100
December 2021 100
December 2021 100
December 2021 100
December 2021 100
December 2021 100
December 2021 100
December 2021 100
December 2021 100
December 2021 100

The list of subsidiaries disposed during the year ended 31 December 2020 is as follows:

Name of subsidiaries

Jiangsu Beisheng Technology Co., Ltd.

Wuxi Pulanfeng New Energy Co., Ltd.

Foshan Pudan Warehousing Services Co., Ltd.

Dongguan Ever Profit Logistics Co., Ltd.

Guangzhou Pufu Warehousing Service Co., Ltd.

GLP Kunshan Shipu Logistics Facilities Co., Ltd.

Xi'an Kapu Logistics Facilities Co., Ltd.

Sanhui Food Logistic (Tianjin) Co., Ltd.

GLP Chongqing Development Co., Ltd.

GLP Pukai Xi'an Warehousing Service Co., Ltd.

Vailog (Nanjing) Storage Services Co., Ltd.

Global Logistic Properties (ChengDu) Warehousing
Facilities Co., Ltd.

GLP (Ningbo Beilun) Warehousing Co., Ltd.

Shenyang Puling Warehousing Services Co., Ltd.

GLP Puxin Xi'an Warehousing Service Co., Ltd.

Suzhou Yuhang Logistics Co., Ltd.

GLP Wuhan Puxia Logistics Facilities Co., Ltd.

Wuxi GLP Logistics Development Co., Ltd.

GLP Kunshan Puxing Logistics Development Co., Ltd.

GLP Kunshan Pujiang Logistics Facilities Co., Ltd

Vailog (Kunshan) Storage Co., Ltd.

GLP Feidong Logistics Facilities Co., Ltd.

GLP Changzhou High-tech District Logistics Facilities
Co., Ltd.

Tianjin Puling Warehousing Service Co., Ltd.

Tianjin Pushi Logistics Facilities Co., Ltd.

GLP Wuhan Huangpi Logistics Facilities Co., Ltd.

GLP Hefei Hi-Tech Logistics Facilities Co., Ltd.
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Date Equity interest
disposed disposed
%

March 2020 100
March 2020 100
May 2020 100
May 2020 100
May 2020 80
May 2020 100
May 2020 96
May 2020 90
June 2020 100
June 2020 100
June 2020 100
June 2020 100
June 2020 100
June 2020 100
June 2020 100
June 2020 100
June 2020 100
June 2020 100
June 2020 100
June 2020 100
June 2020 100
June 2020 100
June 2020 100
June 2020 100
June 2020 100
June 2020 100
June 2020 100
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29. Notes to cash flow statement (continued)

Date Equity interest
Name of subsidiaries disposed disposed
%
GLP Changsha Puxia Logistics Facilities Co., Ltd. June 2020 100
GLP China Financing Holding Limited June 2020 100
GLP (Hangzhou) Warehousing Co., Ltd. July 2020 100
Hangzhou Linpu Logistics Facilities Co., Ltd. July 2020 100
GLP Tianjin Puya Logistics Facilities Co., Ltd. July 2020 100
GLP Langfang Logistics Facilities Co., Ltd. July 2020 100
Tianjin Puqing Logistics Co., Ltd. July 2020 100
GLP Zhuozhou Logistics Facilities Co., Ltd. July 2020 100
GLP Hangzhou Logistics Development Co., Ltd. July 2020 100
GLP Jiashan Pujia Logistics Co., Ltd. July 2020 100
GLP Haining Logistics Facilities Co., Ltd. July 2020 100
GLP Tianjin Pujia Logistics Facilities Co., Ltd. July 2020 100
GLP (Qingdao) Airport International Logistics Development
Co., Ltd. September 2020 100
CLH 38 (HK) Limited & Suzhou Industrial Park Pushang
Logistics Facilities Co., Ltd. September 2020 100
Tompkins International LLC December 2020 83
CLH 12 (HK) Limited December 2020 100
GLP Golden Lincoln A Partners, LP December 2020 100
GLP Nantong NSIP Logistics Facilities Co., Ltd. December 2020 100
Buffalo (Jinan) Warehousing Co., Ltd December 2020 100
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29. Notes to cash flow statement (continued)
Effect of the disposals

The cash flow and the net assets of the subsidiaries disposed during the year ended 31
December 2021 are provided below:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
—— /_/ 2021 2020
—— T e Recognised Recognised
values on values on
disposal disposal
US$'000 UsS$’000
Investment properties 7,097,963 2,392,203
Interests in associates - 352,379
Intangible assets 34,730 30,441
Property, plant and equipment 160,441 85,611
Other investments 633,190 241,258
Deferred tax assets 11,235 9,665
Other assets 4,202 15,705
Trade and other receivables 491,088 660,475
Cash and cash equivalents 369,698 416,775
Trade and other payables (1,889,799) (775,050)
Loans and borrowings - non-current (981,405) (245,912)
Loans and borrowings - current (6,968) (67,974)
Current tax payable (50,987) (1,684)
Deferred tax liabilities (765,423) (301,289)
Other non-current liabilities (9,408) (6,644)
Non-controlling interests (727,036) (60,745)
Net assets disposed ' 4,371,521 2,755,214
Gain on dcisposal of subsidiaries recognised:,
- In profit and loss : 552,697 314,400
- In reserve - 58,561
Disposal consideration 4,924,218 3,128,175
Consideration receivable (947,085) (292,233)
Satisfied through non-cash settlement (41,892) (430,440)
Cash of subsidiaries disposed (369,698) (416,775)
Cash received in relation to dividend receivable prior
to disposal 360,813 -
Receipt of consideration in relation to prior years’
disposals 298,056 227,418
Cash inflow from disposals of subsidiaries 4,224,412 2,216,145

From 1 January 2021 to respective dates of disposals, the above-mentioned subsidiaries
contributed approximately US$386,457,000 and US$272,521,000 to the Group’s revenue
and net profit respectively for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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Financial risk management and fair values of financial instruments

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in the normal course of the
Group’s business. The Group is also exposed to equity price risk arising from its equity
investments in other entities.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk management policies and
practices used by the Group to manage these risks are described below.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations
resulting in a financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade and other receivables. The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from cash and cash
equivalents, bills receivable and derivative financial assets is limited because the
counterparties are banks and financial for which the Group considers to have low credit risk.

Trade and other receivables

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of
each customer rather than the industry or country in which the customers operate and
therefore significant concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when the Group has
significant exposure to individual customers.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain
amount. These evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and take into account information specific to the customer as
well as pertaining to the economic environment in which the customer operates. Trade
receivables are due from the date of billing. Debtors with balances that are more than 6
months past due are requested to settle all outstanding balances before any further credit is
granted.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from
trade and other receivables are set out in note 20.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible for their own cash
management, including the short-term investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans
to cover expected cash demands, subject to approval by the parent company’s board when
the borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels of authority. The Group’s policy is to
regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending covenants, to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and readily realisable marketable
securities and adequate committed lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet
its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.
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30. Financial risk management and fair values of financial instruments (continued)

(c)

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities at the end of the reporting
period of the Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities and derivative financial liabilities,
which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of the
reporting period) and the earliest date Group can be required to pay:

Cash flows
Carrying Contractual Within From After
amount cash flows 1 year 1 to 5 years 5 years
US$000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
31 December 2021
Bank loans 3,463,962 4,236,942 558,262 2,052,378 1,626,302
Secured bonds 323,081 524,129 18,267 73,454 432,408
Unsecured bonds 4,395,251 4,770,558 833,615 3,935,821 1,122
Trade and other payables/other
non-current liabilities * 2,054,263 2,114,508 1,547,843 533,025 33,640
10,236,557 11,646,137 2,957,987 6,594,678 2,093,472
31 December 2020
Bank loans 5,569,673 6,718,531 895,185 3,056,248 2,767,098
Secured bonds 749,173 1,234,841 35,925 154,681 1,044,235
Unsecured bonds 3,927,502 4,126,397 2,547,427 1,578,970 -
Trade and other payables/other
non-current liabilities * 2,027,514 2,049,354 1,714,467 326,885 8,002
12,273,862 14,129,123 5,193,004 5,116,784 3,819,335

*

Excludes contract liabilities.
Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from loans and borrowings and cash and cash
equivalents and restricted cash.

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash comprise mainly cash at bank, with an
interest rate ranged from 0.01% to 0.45% per annum as at 31 December 2021 (31 December
2020: 0.01% to 2.30% per annum). Pledged bank deposits and time deposits maturing after
three months are not held for speculative purposes but are placed to satisfy conditions for
borrowing facilities granted to the Group and for higher yield returns than cash at bank.

The Group’s variable rate loans and borrowings are exposed to a risk of change in cash
flows due to changes in interest rates. The interest rates of the loans and borrowings are
disclosed in note 25.

When appropriate and at times of interest rate uncertainty or volatility, interest rate swaps
may be used to assist in the Group’s management of interest rate exposure.
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Financial risk management and fair values of financial instruments (continued)
Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile of the Group’s loans and borrowings at the
balance sheet date:

31 December 2021 31 December 2020
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
% US$'000 % US$'000
Fixed rate borrowings
Trade and other payables/other non-
current liabilities 4.00% - 6.08% 265,306 3.00% - 8.00% 77,382
Loans and borrowings 2.60% - 5.65% 4,718,332 3.40% - 5.65% 4,676,675
Variable rate borrowings
Loans and borrowings 1.42% -6.77% 3,463,962 1.29% -6.77% 5,569,673
Total interest-bearing financial liabilities 8,447,600 10,323,730
Fixed rate borrowings as a percentage
of total borrowings - 58.99% 46.05%

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2021, it is estimated that a general increase/decrease of 50 basis points in
interest rates, with all other variables held constant, would have decreased/increased the
Group’s profit before taxation by approximately US$17,320,000 (31 December 2020:
US$27,848,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous change in the Group’s profit
before taxation and other components of consolidated equity that would arise assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred at the end of the reporting period and had been
applied to re-measure those financial instruments held by the Group which expose the Group
to fair value interest rate risk at the end of the reporting period. In respect of the exposure to
cash flow interest rate risk arising from floating rate non-derivative instruments held by the
Group at the end of the reporting period, the impact on the Group’s profit before taxation and
other components of consolidated equity is estimated as an annualised impact on interest
expense or income of such a change in interest rates. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 31 December 2020.

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales and purchases which give rise
to other investments, cash balances, receivables, payables, non-current liabilities, loans and
borrowings that are denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a currency other than the
functional currency of the operations to which the transactions relate. The currencies giving
rise to this risk are primarily USD.

In respect of the monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, the Group
ensures that the net exposures to this risk is kept to an acceptable level by buying or selling
foreign currencies at spot rates where necessary to address short-term imbalances.
Management does not enter into currency hedging transactions since it considers that the
cost of such instruments outweighs the potential risk of exchange rate fluctuations.
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Financial risk management and fair values of financial instruments (continued)
Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s exposure at the end of the reporting period to
currency risk arising from recognized assets or liabilities denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the entity fo which they relate. For presentation purposes, the
amounts of the exposure are shown in USD, translated using the spot rate at the year-end
date.

— 2021 2020

———— T e US$000 US$'000

Other investments 1,016,469 623,641

Cash and cash equivalents 87,035 111,751

Trade and other receivables 49,021 40,262
Trade and other payables (6,284) (7,383)
Loans and borrowings (1,898,726) (3,273,691)
Overall exposure (752,485) (2,505,420)

The following significant exchange rates applied during the year:

Averaqe rates Reporting date spot rate
2021 2020 2021 2020
United States Dollars against RMB 6.4534 6.9003 6.3757 6.5249

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the approximate change in the Group’s profit before taxation
and other components of consolidated equity in response to a 5% strengthening of the USD
against RMB to which the Group had exposure at the balance sheet date. This analysis
assumes that the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates had occurred at the
balance sheet date and had been applied to each for the Group entities’ exposure to
currency risk for financial instruments in existence at that date, and that all other variables, in
particular interest rates, remain constant.

2021 2020
US$'000 US$'000
United States Dollars (37,624) (125,271)

A 5% weakening of the USD against RMB at 31 December would have had the equal but
opposite effect on the RMB to the amounts shown above, on the basis that all other variables
remain constant.
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Financial risk management and fair values of financial instruments (continued)

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign exchange rates had been applied
to re-measure those financial instruments held by the Group which expose the Group to
foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period, including inter-company payables and
receivables within the Group which are denominated in a currency other than the functional
currencies of the lender or the borrower. The analysis excludes differences that would result
from the translation of the financial statements of foreign operations into the Group’s
presentation currency. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 31 December 2020.

Equity price risk

The Group designated three listed equity securities and CCIC GLP REIT at FVOCI (non-
recycling) and other listed investments at FVTPL (see note 18). The Group’s listed
investments are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, Shanghai Stock Exchange and
Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Decisions to buy or sell trading securities are based on daily
monitoring of the performance of individual securities compared to that of the Index and other
industry indicators, as well as the Group’s liquidity needs. Certain listed investments held in
the other investments have been chosen based on their longer term growth potential and are
monitored regularly for performance against expectations. The other listed investments held
in the other investments have been chosen based on short term market performance and
profitability through open market.

At 31 December 2021, it is estimated that an increase of 5% (31 December 2020: 5%) in the
relevant stock market index (for listed investments) with all other variables held constant,
would have increased the Group’s fair value reserve and profit before tax as follows:

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

uUs$'000 US$°000

Other investments 57,386 23,471

A decrease of 5% in the relevant stock market index at 31 December would have had the
equal but opposite effect on the above equity investment to the amounts shown above, on
the basis that all other variables remain constant.

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous change in the Group’s fair value reserve
and profit before tax that would arise assuming that the changes in the stock market index or
other relevant risk variables had occurred at the end of the reporting period and had been
applied to re-measure those financial instruments held by the Group which expose the Group
to equity price risk at the end of the reporting period. It is also assumed that the fair values
of the Group’s equity investments would change in accordance with the historical correlation
with the relevant stock market index or the relevant risk variables, that none of the Group’s
available-for-sale investments would be considered impaired as a result of the decrease in
the relevant stock market index or other relevant risk variables, and that all other variables
remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 31 December 2020.

——— -
=

————— ey
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30. Financial risk management and fair values of financial instruments (continued)

()
(i)

Fair value measurement

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s financial instruments measured at
the end of the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into which a fair
value measurement is classified is determined with reference to the observability and
significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

e Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date

e Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs
which fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data are not

available.

* Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant unobservable inputs

Recurring fair value measurement

Financial assets:
Other investments:
- Listed securities
- Unlisted equity securities

Recurring fair value measurement

Financial assets:
Other investments:
- Listed securities
- Unlisted equity securities

Fair value at
31 December
2021

$'000

1,147,717
1,189,147

Fair value at
31 December
2020

$'000

469,427
1,655,919

104

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2021 cateqorised into

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
$'000 $'000 $'000
1,147,717 - -
- - 1,189,147

Fair value measuremehts as at
31 December 2020 cateqorised into

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
$'000 $'000 $000
469,427 - -
E - 1,655,919
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Financial risk management and fair values of financial instruments (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there were no transfers between Level 1 and
Level 2, and the investments in Eastern Air Logistics Co., Ltd., Jingdong Express Group
Corporation, China Railway Special Cargo Logistics Co., Ltd. and Linklogis Financial
Holdings Inc. were reclassified from Level 3 to Level 1 because these equity securities
became listed during the year (year ended 31 December 2020: none). The Group's policy is
to recognise transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting
period in which they occur.

Valuation techniques Significant unobservable inputs Range
Unlisted equity securities Market approach Discount for lack of marketability 0% - 50%
Unlisted equity securities Market approach Price-to sales ratio 17.2x
Unlisted equity securities Market approach Price-to earnings ratio 12x

The fair value of unlisted equity securities is determined using cost approach and market
approach. The fair value of unlisted equity securities using cost approach uses financial
data. The fair value of unlisted equity securities using market approach uses the price/sales
ratios and price/book ratios of comparable listed companies, post-money valuation and
adjusted for lack of marketability discount. The fair value measurement is negatively
correlated to the discount for lack of marketability.

31 December 31 December
2021 2020
$'000 $000
Unlisted equity securities:
At 1 January 1,655,919 1,026,406
Additional securities acquired 193,550 872,940
Net unrealised gains or losses recognised in profit or
loss during the year 253,494 137,631
Disposals (640,894) (434,256)
Reclassification to listed equity securities (292,243) -
Exchange differences 19,321 53,198
At 31 December 1,189,147 1,655,919
Total gains or losses for the year included in profit or
loss for assets held at the end of the reporting year 253,494 137,631

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at other than fair value
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments carried at cost or amortised cost

are not materially different from their fair values as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December
2020.
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31. Commitments

The Group had the following commitments as at the reporting date:

31 December 31 December
2021 2020
US$'000 UsS$’000
Commitments in relation to share capital of other
investments not yet due and not provided for 345,158 422,716
Development expenditure contracted but
724,242 1,493,469

not provided for

32. Remuneration of key management personnel

Key management personnel of the Group are those persons having the authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group. The
Company’s intermediate parent, GLP Pte. Ltd, has borne and not recharged to the Group
certain key management personnel cost associated with the Group’s fund management
business. The Group has also incurred expenses associated with the fund management
business of GLP group entities in other countries and have not recharged such expenses to

them.

The key management personnel compensation included as part of staff costs for those key
management personnel employed by the Group are as follows:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
US$'000 US$'000
Salaries, bonuses, contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans and other benefits 10,570 12,802
—— _—_____.f:’:.g__‘___-_—__-“‘-"
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Significant related party transactions

In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements,
there were the following significant related party transactions which were carried out in the
normal course of business on terms agreed between the parties during the year:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
US$'000 US$’000
Joint ventures
Asset management fee income from joint ventures 14,218 11,238
Investment management fee income from joint
ventures 1,235 542
Property management fee income from joint ventures 8,963 6,484
Development management fee income from joint
ventures 1,604 4,290
Leasing management fee income from joint ventures 4,453 4,474
Acquisition management fee income from joint
ventures 3,633 6,927
Dividend income received from joint ventures 16,246 4,690
Interest income from joint ventures 33,172 18,456
Interest expenses charged by joint ventures 3) (988)
Associates
Asset management fee income from associates 26,009 6,439
Investment management fee income from associates 33,004 15,773
Property management fee income from associates 6,155 2,767
Development fee income from associates 480 134
Dividend income received from associates 55,306 2,968
Leasing management fee income from associates 3,521 1,582
Acquisition management fee income from associates 968 -
Interest income from associates 5,268 12,160
Interest expenses charged by associates 56 (43)
Fellow subsidiaries
Asset management fee charged by fellow subsidiaries (16,914) (13,074)
Asset management fee income from fellow
subsidiaries 11,169 8,634
Interest income from fellow subsidiaries 435 531
Interest expenses charged by fellow subsidiaries (400) (1,122)
Intermediate holding company
Management service fee charged by intermediate
holding company (4,501) (6,271)
Loan to intermediate holding company 753,760 -
Interest expenses charged by intermediate holding
company (260) (13,950)
e
oA e
e
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Significant related party transactions (continued) e o
Disposal of assets and liabilities to related parties

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group disposed of certain subsidiaries,
associates to CVA lI-ll Fund (Joint venture), GLP RE HOLDINGS PTE. LTD. (entity under
common control), CVA Il Fund (Associate), CIF Il Fund (Associate), CIF Il Fund (Associate),
and GLP GV China Limited (entity under common control).

The assets and liabilities disposed of are provided below:

GLP RE GLP GV

HOLDINGS China
Joint venture Associate PTE. LTD. Limited Total
us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 us$'000
Net assets disposed 122,863 1,425,508 887,759 1,397,002 3,833,132

Disposal gain recognised in profit and

loss 27,238 165,343 142,770 37,241 372,592
Disposal consideration 150,101 1,590,851 1,030,529 1,434,243 4,205,724

Guarantees provided to related parties

The Group has provided guarantees for bank borrowings of related parties, GLP China
Financing Holding Limited’s subsidiaries. As at 31 December 2021, the outstanding amount
of the relevant bank borrowings was approximately US$211,320,000(31 December 2020:
US$160,527,000). As at and during the year ended 31 December 2021, there was no
overdue payment in respect of these bank borrowings (2020: none).

Besides, GLP Commercial Factoring (Chongging) Co., Lid., issued asset-backed securities
amounting to RMB216,000,000 (equivalent to approximately US$33,879,000) in August 2020
with maturity dates ending between years 2020 and 2022 with a fixed interest rate of 3.85%.
The Group has provided guarantee to investors of the asset-backed securities. The scope of
guarantee hereunder includes any shortfall of scheduled payment of debt principal and
interest, penalty, damages and expenses incurred in execution of the creditors’ rights. As at
31 December 2021, the outstanding amount of the relevant asset-backed securities was
approximately US$ 25,910,000 (31 December 2020: US$31,418,000). As at and during the
year ended 31 December 2021, there was no shortfall of scheduled payment to creditors
(2020: none).

Subsequent events
Subsequent to 31 December 2021, the following non-adjusting events have occurred:

In February 2022, CLH Limited, Khangai Company Limited and Khangai Il Company Limited
entered into a share purchase agreement, pursuant to which Khangai Company Limited
transferred 789,750,000 issued shares of the Company and Khangai Il Company Limited
transferred 467,303,653 issued shares of the Company to CLH Limited, as a result of which
CLH Limited would hold 5,857,618,406 shares of the Company, representing an increase of
shareholding to 84.30% while Khangai Company Limited and Khangai Il Company Limited
would be reduced to 7.58% and 4.48% respectively after the completion of share transfer on
8 February 2022.

In March 2022, the Company issued RMB 1,000,000,000 (equivalent to approximately US
$ 156,846,000) of RMB denominated bonds due 2025 on Shanghai Stock Exchange at fixed
interest rate of 4.30% per annum.
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35. Company-level statement of financial position

31 December 31 December

Note 2021 2020
US$'000 US$'000
Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries 12 18,120,812 14,439,971
Other non-current assets 14,384 2,136
Loans to subsidiaries 630,394 763,911
18,765,590 15,206,018
Current assets
Other receivables 4,029,524 3,135,838
Cash and cash equivalents 31,120 70,074
4,060,644 3,205,912
Total assets 22,826,234 18,411,930
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Share capital 23 6,950,825 6,950,825
Reserves (347,361) (331_.579)
Total equity 6,603,464 6,619,255
Non-current liabilities
Loans and borrowings 4,257,884 3,050,841
4,257,884 3,050,841
o] nt llabilities e
urrent lia L %z/—__?.__ plte |
Loans and borrowings o ' 658,930 2,840,330
Other payables 11,289,094 5,900,177
Current tax payable 16,862 1,327
11,964,886 8,741,834
Total liabilities 16,222,770 11,792,675
Total equity and liabllities 22,826,234 18,411,930

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 15 April 2022.
]

= A ¢ &-

L

Fnc?g/ ) Director
7

109



GLP China Holdings Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021

36. Company-level statement of comprehensive income

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
Us$'000 Us$’000
Revenue
Dividend income from a subsidiary - 1,050,990
Other expenses (19,228) (25,371)
(Loss)/profit from operations (19,228) 1,025,619
Finance costs (271,302) (283,500)
Finance income 125,402 226,295
Net finance costs (145,900) (57,205)
(Loss)/profit before taxation (165,128) 968,414
Income tax (3,507) (5,057)
(Loss)/profit for the year (168,635) 963,357
Other comprehensive income for the year
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to
profit of loss:
Exchange differences on translation of
financial statements 152,844 431,658
Total comprehensive income for the year (15,791) 1,395,015
— ‘/
e

—_— = —_——
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37. Company-level cash flow statement

Cash flows from operating activities
(Loss)/profit before taxation
Adjustments for:

Dividend income

Net finance costs
Withholding tax

Changes in working capital:

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other payables

Cash generated from operations

Net cash generated from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities

Interest income received

Repayment of loan from subsidiaries

Loans to subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries

Net cash used in investing activities
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Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
uUs$'000 US$'000
(165,128) 968,414
- (1,050,990)
164,245 (44,732)
3,507 1,668
2,624 (125,640)
(1,244,160) 61,943
6,088,730 1,821,220
4,847,194 1,757,523
4,847,194 1,757,523
46,241 63,454
366,425 448,307
(262,481) (107,186)
(3,656,567) (2,539,712)
(3,506,382) (2,135,137)
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37. Company-level cash flow statement (continued)

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
US$'000 Us$'000
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of bonds 2,648,156 314,118
Repayment of bonds (2,267,021) -
Proceeds from bank loans 5,023,055 4,859,173
Repayment of bank loans (6,499,364) (4,080,545)
Repayment of loans from shareholder (21,436) (451,554)
Interest paid (263,594) (295,058)
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing
activities (1,380,204) 346,134
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (39,392) (31,480)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 70,074 100,406
Effect of exchange rate changes 438 1,148
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 31,120 70,074

38. Immediate parent and ultimate holding company
As at 31 December 2021, the directors consider the immediate parent company and the

ultimate holding company of the Company to be CLH Limited and GLP Holdings, L.P.,
respectively, which are both incorporated in the Cayman Islands.
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Possible impact of amendments, new standards and interpretations issued but

not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2021

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of
amendments and a new standard, HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts, which are not yet
effective for the year ended 31 December 2021 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements. These developments include the following which may be relevant to

the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual Framework

Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use

Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2,
Disclosure of accounting policies

Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of accounting estimates

Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred tax related to assets and
liabilities arising from a single transaction

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
1 January 2022

1 January 2022

1 January 2022

1 January 2022

1 January 2023

1 January 2023

1 January 2023

1 January 2023

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these
developments is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the financial statements.
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